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Important notice

As at the date of this annual report, the company is in compliance with the corgmrataance
requirements applicable to it as a PRC public company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in all
material aspects

All directors have attended the board meeting of considering this report.

The audit opinion of BDO China Shu Lun Pan CPAs to the Company financial report for this year is:
Standard unqualified opinion.

The alternation condition of accounting firm in this report period: The Company accounting firm for
this year has changed to BDChina Shu Lun Pan CPAs.

Non-standard audit opinions notification

I ApplicableR Not Applicable

The Company was unprofitable when it was listed and has not achieved profitability at present.
I ApplicableR Not Applicable

Reportperiod profit distibution plan or transfer plan of provident fund to share capital reviewed by
the board of directors

RApplicable T Not applicable

The Company has passed the preliminary profit distribution plan through consideration of this board
of directors: Based on ¢htotal share capital of date of record in the future implementation of the equity
distribution plan in 2022, after the repurchased shares are deducted, a cash dividend of RMB 3.41
(including tax) will be distributed to all shareholders for every 10 sh@rskares will be distributed to all
shareholders for bonus shares (including tax), and 0 shares will be transferred to all shareholders from the
capital reserve fund for every 10 shares.

Preferred stock profits distribution plan in this reporting pesipproved by the Board of Directors

I Applicabl e I Not Applicable
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SectionN . Company Introduction and Main Financial Indicators

1. Company profile

Stock abbreviation Lepu Medical Stock code 300003
Share exchange for listing Shenzhen Stock Exchange
Contact person and information Board Secretary Securities Aff:?urs
Representative
Name Jiang Weinan Li Jingjing

No. 37 Chaogian Road, No. 37 Chaogian Road,

Office address Changping District, Beijing Changping District, Beijing

Fax 01080120776 01080120776
Tel. 01080120622 01080120622
E-mail zgb@lepumedical.com zgb@lepumedical.com

2. Brief introduction to main businesses or products in the report period

I. Main business and report

We are the only totalsolution provider in the PRC across the full life cycle of
cardiovascular disease management, our business sacalivided into medical devices,
pharmaceuticalsnedical Care Solutions

Medical device We are a pioneer in the innovative coronary medical device market in
the PRC, and primarily offer cardiovascular medical devices such as coronary interventional
products, peripheral interventional products, structural heart disease products, cardrac rhyt
management products, and electrophysiology and digital subtraction angiography (DSA)
equipment, etc. In recent years, we have gradually expanded the resources in precision
manufacturing, design and development, clinical registration, academic pronsdies,
channels and supply chain to roardiovascular medical devices such asiiro diagnosis
and surgical anesthesia by using the industry experience accumulated in cardiovascular
implant intervention for many years. We had obtained 569 NMPA typedl tgpe llI
licenses, 224 CE certificates and 33 FDA approvals in medical devices as of December 31,
2022. During the reporting period, we have been newly approved with 29 Nid&¥ses
and 53 CEcertificates

Pharmaceutical: We are one of the platform companies for cardiovascular disease
management in China, and our products mainly include active pharmaceutical ingredients and
finished dosage forms (FDF) pharmaceuticaf§e had 85 pharmaceuticals included in the

NRDL as of Deember 31, 2022, primarily antihyperlipidemic, antihypertensive,
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antihyperglycemic, antihrombotic and arneart failure pharmaceuticals. During the
reporting period, 5 generic drugs of us have been approved.

Medical Care Solutions We providecardiovascularelated medical care solutiotisrough
our cardiovascular hospital, Internet hospitals, chetkenter, independealinical laboratories, and
online pharmacies. In addition, we provide all kinds of hardware equipment for monitoring
vital signs for hospitals and individual consumers at all levels, and we can provide long
distance dynamic ECG monitoring services based on artificial intelligené&Ca Platform.
Related products include medical equipment, software systems and medical diesufia
present, we are further exploring vertical sectoration areas with strong consumer attributes
such as ophthalmology, dentistry and dermatology through mergers and acquisitions-and self

research.

Facing the challenge of normalization of volutvesse procurement, we adhere to the
development strategies of "innovation, consumption, internationalization, integration,
efficiency improvement and steady development" and resist the price risk of depreciation of a
single product with the advantage of platfio

In terms of innovation, we have been deeply involved in the field of cardiovascular
intervention, continuously invested and iteratively optimized to form an echelon R&D line,
and dynamically adjusted the R&D process through insight into the manketusé, giving
priority to projects with excellent competitive pattern and optimistic commercialization
prospects, and ensuring the leiegm competitiveness of the R&D line. During R&D of
innovative products, we have explored a sustainable way to inculveteative products.
From R&D and commercialization of a single product to the planning and commercialization
of the entire R&D matrix, we have mature experience. At present, our R&D line has covered
various subdivisions of cardiovascular interventionhsas coronary intervention, peripheral
intervention, structural heart disease, cardiac rhythm management and electrophysiology, and
the product portfolio is extensive in different stages of life cycle. Under the normalization
environment of volumdased ppcurement, we insist on innovation, prudently conduct R&D
projects of line layout and product portfolio in the matrix, closely track policy changes to
predict market conditions, promote the progress of project R&D and commercialization in an
orderly mannerand select suitable products in the portfolio for commercialization at the right
time to ensure the stable growth of innovative products with pricing power in the early and
middle life cycle. The following table shows the estimated important produbts listed in
each year from 2023 to 2026 by combing the core products in the existing R&D line in

accordance with the previous R&D experience and the routine time of the approval procedure
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of China Food and Drug Administration. As of the disclosure datéhefreport, some
products have been approved for sales. Under the normalization and institutionalization of
volumebased procurement, we will also horizontally copy the maskiented competitive
advantage accumulated in coronary artery all the yeardraancardiovascular implant
intervention in other subectors, quickly increase the market share to the leading position
before the arrival of volumbased procurement in intprovincial alliance, and actively
respond to volunased procurement in intprovincial alliance or national level in order to
further enhance the market share. And our advantages ofsleatge production can also
ensure further cost control after the products enter voelumsed procurement of provincial
alliance or the nationakVel, and try to hedge the possible risk of depreciation caused by

volumebased procurement.

2023 2024 2025 2026
v Fractional
Flow Reserve v Pulsed sonic .. .
(FFR) balloon dilatation Rapamycin infusion Intra vascular
system ultrasound
measurement catheter
catheter/device
. Drug-coated
Al-QCA Rapamycin-coated coronary scorin
Coronary balloon catheter y 9
balloon
Drug-coated cutting
balloon
Pressurecontrolled
intermittent coronary
sinus occlusion
v Small . . .
ioheral cutti Large peripheral v Vasodilator v Bioabsorbable drug
peripheral cutting cutting balloon administration system eluting stent
balloon
+ Pulsed sonic Rapamvein dru
Peripheral balloon dilatation cogte dialloong
artery catheter

Above-the-knee PTA
drug-coated balloon,
below-the-knee PTA
drug-coated balloon

Peripheral vascular
dissection stent

Transapical mitral Biodegradable left

« Biodegradable Biodegradable ASD . . )
PFO occluder occluder valve clip repalr.system atrial appendage
Structural heart (chordae tendineae) occluder
disease v Transcatheter . . .
aortic valve « Transapical mitral Transfemoral mitral
i i valve clip repair system
replacement TAVR valve clip repair system p rep Y
« Radiofrequency Cryo balloon ablation v Ultrasonic ablgtlon
septal puncture . catheter and device for
. catheter anddevice
needle and device renal artery
CRM/electrophys ) .
- v Pulsed electric field
lolog blation cath d
Smart pacemaker a auo_n cat ete_r an
device for atrial
fibrillation
« Implantable cardiac v Implantable
contractility modulator resynchronization
Heart failure y therapy pacemaker
Left atrium assist
device
Health . AED . Al CGM
management
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v

v Orthokeratology « Polylactic acid dermis -
Orthokeratology lenses (Xingtai) injection filling agent Composite filling agent
lenses (Ventura)
Orthokeratology v Crosslinked sodium
consumer lensescare solution hyaluronate for
healthcare series injection

v Modified sodium
hyaluronate solution
for injection

In terms of consumption, in addition to the existing health management medical device
products, as shown in the above table, we have also explored in various vertical sectors,
acquired relevant products and channel resources through acquisition andtiamteigra
ophthalmology, dentistry and dermatology, and cooperated with the R&D team in the layout
and incubation of relevant pipelines. In 2023, this sector is expected to become a new source
of revenue and profit growth of us. At present, the living statsdaf residents have
improved, and the COVIR19 epidemic has also had a great impact on people's health
awareness. We believe that there will be a huge market space for medical products with
consumption attributes. Under the background of volbamsed prourement in China, we
hope to achieve a steady growth of overall performance through-chalinel income
sources, so in recent years, we have explored the layout of consumer medical field. We have
sold the existing health management medical device p®thuciugh online-eommerce and
offline pharmacies, among which the offline pharmacy under the charge of the retail team of
the Company, having a certain synergistic effect with the pharmaceutical sales outside
hospitals. Online €ommerce is the focus daur strategic layout. Through continuous
internal resource integration, we are gradually optimizing the managemerdoaimerce
channels, improving the marketing ability of online s®gerated stores, enhancing our brand
reputation and product awarenedsough highquality products and perfect afisales
service system, and improving customer stickiness.

About internationalization we continue to tap the potential of overseas business
development through extensive product portfolio and rehiéinnel sies system. We have
continuously promoted product registration and declaration of products overseas. During the
reporting period, we had 53 new CE certifications, and at present, our products and services
are sold in more than 150 overseas countries agidn® Our products sold overseas include
coronary interventional products, occluder, in vitro diagnosis, staplers, ultrasonic scalpel and
active pharmaceutical ingredients, etc. In 2023, with the convenience of overseas navigation,
we are actively partipating in medical device exhibitions around the world, fully exploiting
the resources of overseas distributors and hospitals, and promoting overseas registration and
commercialization of products of various business lines. As of the disclosure date of the
report, we have confirmed to participate in medical device exhibitions in Turkey, Thailand,
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Uzbekistan, Malaysia, Japan, India, Brazil, Scotland, the United States, South Korea, Saudi
Arabia, South Africa, Spain, Germany and Russia, etc. The Companyctiilg display
various products including but not limited to coronary interventional products, occluder, vital
signs monitoring, irvitro diagnosis and surgical anesthesia, etc., at the exhibition, so as to
enhance the international reputation of our tran

During the reporting periodthe Companywas listed on Six Swiss Exchange in
Switzerland, and after underwriting fees was deducted, it raised a net capital of USD 220
million. In the future, we plan to develop overseas business from the following four
directions: (1) We plan to set up overseas R&D centers to try global R&D, including clinical
and registration applications for innovative products with proprietary intellectual property
rights; (2) We plan to invest in new production bases overseas ¢asgcproduction capacity
and support global product supply; (3) We plan to set up a BD center overseas to authorize
the introduction or joint development of products with leading technologies; (4) We plan to
establish a sales and distribution network vetistomer service capability overseas, so as to
penetrate the sales channels into the global medical institutions and retail channels and
improve the global brand awareness of Lepu.

(1) Medical device

The medical device sector is the largest revenue sector of our business, it mainly
includes cardiovascular intervention, in vitro diagnosis and surgical anesthesia, among which
cardiovascular intervention is the core business sector of us. During thengeperiod, the
medical device sector of the Company realized an operating income of 33vi88487
million, the main reason for the decline in revenue of the medical device sector is that the
export of detection reagents related to COM®contributed #ot to the operating income of
this sector in the same period last year. After the impact of this part of income is deducted,
the operating income of the regular business of our medical device sector hatha yeaar
increase 085.64%.

The representate products of our cardiovascular intervention business sector are shown
in the following table. The income of cardiovascular intervention mainly comes from
coronary intervention and structural heart disease business, and the product lines of
peripheral itervention, cardiac rhythm management and electrophysiology are being
enriched, and their income contribution is still low at this stage. With the implementation of
centralized volumdévased procurement of coronary stents organized by the central
governmentthe proportion of traditional coronary metal stents business continued to decline,
and the operating income of innovative product portfoliocafdiovascular intervention

increased by3.60% yearonyear during the reporting period.
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Major class | Segmentation type Product name Category
Partner® intra vascular drug (rapamycin) eluting st Class Il
system
Nano plus ® intra vascular carriefree pastille

X ) Class 1l
(rapamycin) eluting stent system
Stent - -
GuReater® cobaltbase alloy rapamycin eluting ste
Class 1l
system
Coronary NeoVas ® bioabsorbable coronary artery rapamy|
. i s Class Il
interventional eluting stent system
roducts in ®
p Drug-coated balloon Vesselin coronary artery drugoated balloor Class Il
catheter
Functional balloon Vesscide® cutting balloon system Class Il
Fractional Flow Reserve (FFR) measurement cathel Class llI
Diagnostic category
VessTeéM disposable tubular stapler Class llI
MemoPart ® atrial septal defect occluder (doul
L Class 1l
riveting)
MemoCarn& atrial septal defect occluder (oxide filn| Class IlI
MemoPart® ventricular septal defect occluder (dou
Uati Class IlI
riveting)
Congenital heart disease | MemoCarn& ventricular septal defect occluder (oxi
; Class Il
occluder products film)
Structural MemoPart® patent ductus arteriosus occluder (doy

heart disease L P ( Class 1l

riveting)
MemoCarna® patent ductus arteriosus occluder (ox
X Class 1l
film)
MemoSork® fully degradable occluder Class llI
Cardioembolic stroke
prevention occluder MemolLefort® Left atrial appendage occluder Class lll
products
Cardiac Qinming2312 single chamber pacemaker Class Il
rhythm
{ Pacemaker

managemen Qinming8631 D/DR Series double chamber pacem{ Class I

products

_Per|pheral Balloon Peripheral cutting balloon Class IlI

intervention
Medical angiographic Xay machine VicotCV Robin

i Class Il
C/Robin F type
DSA Medical angiographic Xay machine VicolCV Swift Class Il
type
Vicor-LARK Mobile C-shaped arm >ay machine Class I
Medical image process Vicor-AE Class Il
system

Image device High pressure injector High pressure injector for angiography Class Il
Diasonograph (type: LP3) Class Il
Diasonograph (type: LP5) Class Il

Color ultrasound
Diasonograph (type: LP7) Class Il
Diasonograph (type: L20) Class I
Liver ultrasound Quantitative liver shear wave diasonograph (Lescarl Class Il
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Coronary intervention is most affected by the policies of volmaed procurement
among our business sectors. At present, the business sector has achieved a smooth transition
of centralized purchasing cycle. With the listing of new innovative produascdlonary
intervention business is expected to start a new round of growth. In terms of coronary metal
stents, influenced by the national policies on volkbased procurement, our revenue of
coronary metal stents decreased significantly in 2021. In 2022Zompleted the renewal of
the bid, and the winning price of the product was RMB 798 (excluding incidental service fee).
In the last round, our product won the bid price of RMB 645 (including the incidental service
fee), and the price increased slightlly.terms of druegcoated balloons, in March 2023, we
completed the renewal of the drugated balloons of the BeijinBianjin-Hebei 3+N
Alliance, and the winning bid price of the product was RMB 6,285. The price system
remained stable; In terms of corongathway products, products such as coronary guidewire,
coronary guide catheter, and coronary dilation balloon, etc. have won the bid one after
another in the volumbased procurement of provincial alliances. We haeéstablished the
sales team of pathwagccessories consumables, hoping to increase market share through
centralized procurement and realize the sales revenue growth of this business. Under the
continuous influence of the thrgear policies on volumbased procurement, we combed the
R&D line ard continuously polished. Relying on the accumulated experience of R&D,
clinical application and registration in the field of cardiovascular-imhe consumables for
more than 20 years, we realized the research, development and sales of a series of
cardiovascular innovative medical device products, including dated balloons,
degradable stents, cutting balloons (coronary artery), biodegradable occluders, cutting
balloons (periphery), disposable tubular staplers and Fractional Flow Reserve (FFR)
measurment catheter, etc., cooperated with the advantages of channel, realized the
optimization and adjustment of income structure, effectively eliminated policy risks, and
promoted the sustainable and benign development of cardiovascular intervention deetor in
future.

In the field of coronary intervention, our products have basically covered the whole
process of PCI surgery, including DSA equipment needed for imaging diagnosis, various
accessories needed for establishing vascular pathway for interversiogaly, functional
balloons involved in PCI surgery, traditional metal stents, degradable stents arumbakerd)
balloons. As of the disclosure date of the report, our important produetstional Flow
Reserve (FFR) measurement cathé@XZB 2022307158) and Fractional Flow Reserve
(FFR) measurememntevice(GXZB 20233070007), have obtained the registration certificate

of medical devices approved by National Medical Products Administration. The products can
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calculate and obtain coronary blood flow FrantiFlow Reservation (FFR), the FFR value

can evaluate the hemodynamic significance of coronary artery stenosis. If the FFR value is
lower than 0.8, it indicates that coronary artery stenosis has significantly led to myocardial
ischemia, and coronary artemgvascularization needs PCI or other interventional therapy. At
present, FFR is the "gold standard” for the functional evaluation of coronary artery stenosis,
including Guidelines on Myocardial RevascularizatiohESC/EACTS (European Society of
Cardiolog/European Association for Cardiothoracic Surgerilgy Update of Expert
Consensus Statemeimt 2018 of SCAI (Society for Cardiovascular Angiography and
Interventions) of the United States, @adideline for Percutaneous Coronary Intervention in
Chinapublished in China, all of them use FFR to guide PCl and make precise treatment plans
for coronary artery stenosis. In the field of vascular access products, during the reporting
period, our disposable microcathetand radial artery compression hemostat were
successfully approved and registered by NMPA, which can be used for various interventional
operations at the same time, further enriching our pathway product line. During the reporting
period, the research and development progress of our key produatsdoary intervention

is shown in the following table. At present, we have submitted a registration application to
NMPA for pulsed sonic balloon, and we are preparing to submit a registration application for

the anchoring balloon.

Category Product Designstage | Preclinical | Clinica| Registratio
I n
« Pulsed sonic balloon a a a a
dilatationcatheter
Percutaneous transluminal a a a a
coronaryangioplasty (PTCA)
balloondilatation
Functional Coronary §coring)alloon <’El <’El a a
balloon Anchoring balloon a a P_repar_e
registration
Drug-coated coronary scoring a
balloon
Drug-coated cutting balloon a
Pressureontrolled intermittent a
coronary sinus occlusion
Drug » Rapamycin infusion a a a
coated §ystem — — —
balloon Rapamycinrcoated balloon a a a
catheter
Intra v Intravascular ultrasound a
vascular (IVUS)
meastjreme Pressure sensor system a
n

Note: The anchoring balloon has passed the comparison of the same variety and did not involve clinical trials

In the field of structural heart disease, our existing commercial products are mainly
occluders, including cardiac occluders and cardiac stpokvention occluders. In the field of
10
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congenital heart disease, our products include atrial septal defect (ASD), ventricular septal
defect (VSD) and patent ductus arteriosus (PDA) occluders. We insist on innovation, from
the first generation (single/dolbriveting) to the second generation (single riveting of oxide
film), and gradually iterate and wupgrade until the third generation s
biodegradable/bioabsorbable. In February, 2022, our key innovative product, MemoSorb®
biodegradable occluder, obtainede timedical device registration certificate approved by
NMPA, it is the first biodegradable occluder approved for marketing in the world, avoiding
various complications of traditional metal occluders and benefiting patients for a long time.
MemoSorb® has beeclinically applied in many hospitals in China since its sales. For
biodegradable atrial septal (ASD) occluder, the registration application is expected to be
submitted to NMPA in the second quarter of 2023. In the field of cardiogenic stroke
prevention,our left atrial appendage (LAA) occluder has been commercialized, and the
biodegradable left atrial appendage (LAA) occluder is currently in the clinical trial stage. Our
traditional patent foramen ovale (PFO) occluder (single/double metal riveting) bas be
certified by CE and listed overseas. At present, the biodegradable traditional patent foramen
ovale (PFO) occluder has been submitted to NMPA for registration and is being
supplemented, and it is expected to be approved for sales in 2023.

In the future we will further lay out the field of valvular disease. At present, the clinical
products include transcatheter implantable aortic valve system, apical mitral valve repair
system (chordae tendineae) and apical mitral valve clip repair system. Aseapseifiing,
prebending and shodtent valve, our ScienCrown® valve is obviously different from the
domestic selexpanding valve products and foreign Batpanding valve products in the
market at present. In terms of valve performance, it has the advamagmooth bowing,
coaxial release, stable deployment, good support and 100% recovery, etc. under working
conditions, solving the pain points of existing clinical demands and bringing new standard
treatment methods to patients. ScienCrown ® transcatimepdantable aortic valve system
has completed clinical enroliment, and it is expected that, the registration application will be
submitted to NMPA in the fourth quarter of 2023. The clinical enrollment of Mem@C&p
transapical mitral valve clip repaigystem will be completed soon, and it is expected to be
complete in the second quarter of 2023 and the registration application will be submiited to
NMPA in the fourth quarter of 2023.

Category | Product Design Preclinica Clinical Registratio
stage | n
MemoSorb® biodegradable atrial a a a Prepare
septal defect occluder registration
Occluder | v MemoSorb® biodegradable pater a a a a
foramen ovale occluder
MemoSorb® bioabsorbable patent a a a

11
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foramen ovale occluder
Bio-Lefort® biodegradable left atria a a a
appendage occluder
v ScienCrown® transcatheter aorti a a a
valve replacement TAVR
» ScienMelon® transcatheter hear a a
valve prosthesis with
macromolecular valve leaflet

Aortic Transcatheter aortic valve (balloon a a

valve dilatation)
ScienChute® transcatheter aortic a
valve stenosis treatment
ScienChute® pulsed sonic generati a
equipment
Aortic valve infusion system a
v MemoClip-A ® transapical mitral a a a
valve clip repair system (clip)
MemoChor& transapical mitral a a a
valve clip repair system (chordae
tendineae)

Mitral Transcatheter valve ring repair a a

valve system - - - - =
MemoClip-F ® transapical mitral a a
valve clip repair system
Transcatheter mitral valve a a
replacement
Transcatheter musculi papillares a a
repair system
MemoClamp® transcatheter a

Tricuspid | tricuspid valve repair system

valve Transcatheter tricuspid valve a

replacement
Pulmonary| Transcatheter pulmonary valve a
valve replacement

Through the collaboration of our internal R&D platform and the research on the
development stages of the subdivided fields, we have further laid out corresponding R&D
lines in the fields of peripheral implant intervention, cardiac rhythm management,
electiophysiology, heart failure and neumodulation, and these business sectors are
expected to become the new driving force for our subsequent cardiovascular implant
intervention business growth.

In the field of peripheral implantation intervention, durirge treporting period, our
peripheral cutting balloon was approved by National Medical Products Administration. This
is the first domesticaljunded product approved for marketing in the field of peripheral
arterial disease treatment in China, filling thiark of domestic similar products. This
product can cut the hyperplastic or slightly calcified intima, with little irregular tear on the
intima and little vascular damage, and is also conducive to the falotkeatment of drug
coated balloons, providingore accurate surgical treatment tools for patients with peripheral

arterial diseases and clinicians, and enriching clinical treatment schemes.
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In the field of cardiac rhythm management and electrophysiology, the registration
applications of our REEance®radiofrequency septal puncture instrument andLBRice®
disposable radiofrequency septal puncture needle have been submitted to NMPA as of the
disclosure date of the repo8eptal puncture is a necessary part of electrophysiological and
structural heartlisease surgery. Traditional mechanical puncture has a long learning curve,
therefore, it is difficult for doctors to accurately predict the puncture point during operations,
and the risk of complications is high. Radiofrequency septal puncture usedreagdiency
energy to puncture, effectively reducing the risk of atrial septal puncture complications and
shortening the learning curve of atrial septal puncture. At present, there is no
commercialization of similar products in China, and it is expectedtirgtroduct can fill the
market gap and realize the first mover advantage.

Category Product Design| Preclinical| Clinical | Registration
stage
Peripheral intervention
- Bioabsorbable drug a a
Stent _ eluting stent _ _ _ _
Peripheral vasculatissection a a a
stent
Abovetheknee PTA drug a a a
coated balloon
Below-the-knee PTA drug a a a
coated balloon
« Vasodilator a a a
Drug-coated balloon administration system
» Rapamycin peripheral a a a
drug-coated balloon
v Rapamycin infusion a
system
Large cutting balloon a a a Prepare
. registration
Functional balloon v Pulsed sonic balloon a a a Prepare
dilatation catheter registration
Thrombus aspiration devic| &
Waterpowered a
thrombectomy device
Volume reduction Peripheral plaque rotationd & a
atherectomy system
Rapid thrombus aspiratior] & a a
catheter and device
Electrophysiolog
« Ultrasonic ablation a a a
catheter and device for ren
Ultrasonic ablation dgnervatllon po
Ultrasonic ablation cathetey &
and device for pulmonary
artery denervation
v RFLance® a a a a
Radiofrequency ablation radiofrequency puncture
instrument
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v RFLance® disposable a a
radiofrequency septal
puncture needle
Radiofrequency ablation a a
catheter and device for ren
denervation
Radiofrequency ablation a
catheter and device for
chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COP[
Radiofrequency venous a a
cavity closing catheter anc
device
v Pulsed electric field a
Pulsed electric field ablation] ablation catheter and devid
for atrial fibrillation
 Cryo balloon ablation a a
catheter andevice
Spray cryocatheter for a
Cryo ablation chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COP[
Transbronchoscopic a
intracavitary cryocatheter
Cardiac rhythm management products
Qinming8632 smart a a
pacemaker
Cardiac rhythm manageme MRI compatible smart a a
products pacemaker - -
Implantable cardiac a
resynchronization
defibrillator
Neuro-modulation
Implantable deep brain a a
nerve stimulator
Neuromodulation Implanta_ble vagus nerve a
stimulator
Implantable spinal nerve a
stimulator
Heart failure
Interatrial shunt device | a a
Interatrial shunt device I a a
Interatrial shunt device _(biodegradable) _ _
FireyDeva® interatrial a a
shunt device I
(radiofrequency ablation)
Transcatheter left a a
ventricular assist device
. . Expandable left ventriculal a
Circular mechanical suppo . ;
assist device
Coronary artery protection &
and assist device
» Implantable a
resynchronization therapy
Others pacemaker
» Implantable cardiac a a

contractility modulator
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In the field of in vitro diagnosisye can provide nearly a full product line of in vitro
diagnostic products, including instruments, equipment and reagent consumables, covering
biochemical, immune (chemiluminescence), molecular, blood and coagulation, POCT and
other in vitro diagnosis sulields and important technical platformg/e has a strong
advantage in instrument manufacturing. The products are upgraded and iterated in accordance
with clinical demands, and the performance is continuously improved. In the fureivell
further supplement the research and development and approval of supporting diagnostic
reagents. Benefiting from the strong global demand for related products in CTViD
20212022, the increasing variety of conventional products and the rapidsapaof sales
channels, this business sector has a good growth trend.

In view of the policies of volumbased procurement in the field of in vitro diagnosis,
we actively participates in it, and it is expected to further explore thespital channelsnal
achieve steady business growth through volbased procurement. In November, 2022,
Jiangxi Province Healthcare Security Administration annoumdetice on the Publicity of
the Results of the Intended Volubesed Procurement of Liver Function Biocheahic
Testing Reagents by Intprovincial Alliance and the results of the selected prices and
manufacturers in the volum®ased procurement of liver function biochemical reagents in 23
provinces and cities were announced, and all the declared itertiee dibmpany were
selected as finalists.

As of the disclosure date of the report, the Company has approved 30 Class Il and llI
instruments and equipment listed in the field of in vitro diagnosis, and 339 supporting
diagnostic reagents. The following table showssme representative instruments and
equipment and supporting diagnostic reagents of the Company. In the biochemical field, the
products of the Company cover the detection of liver function, kidney function, electrolyte,
glucose metabolism, blood lipid, rcac markers and other related markers. In the field of
chemiluminescence, the magnetic particle fully automated chemiluminescence immunoassay
analyzer of the Company has formed a series of products, covering the detection of cardiac
markers, tumors, infgious diseases, nail art, sex hormones, inflammation, autoimmune
antibodies, glucose metabolism, bone metabolism and other related markers. Té@ebah
magnetic particle chemiluminescence instrument obtained the registration certificate in
December 202 In the aspect of coagulation and blood diagnosis, the Company has been
iterating over the thromboelastograph, and launched a fully fully automated
thromboelastograph, performing eigiitannel detection at the same time to meet the
demands of blood andagulationrelated detection. In the field of molecular diagnosis, the

fully fully automated medical PCR analysis system, fully fully automated nucleic acid
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extractor and other products of the Company have superior performance, and fast PCR
analysis systerand dualmodule PCR are being registered.

In vitro diagnostic device In-vitro diagnostic reagent / test kit

N-terminal prebrain natriuretic peptide, high
Fluorescence immunochromatoaraphy analvzer LEH sensitivity cardiac troponin I, cardiac troponin I/heart
grapny y type fatty acid binding protein, cardiac troponin

Fluo-1800 ) . . X
Fluorescence immunochromatography analyzer LER I/myoglobln/crea_ltlne kinase |soenzymed[_bner, SlQQ
b protein, procal ci tystati

QuantFiuo 800 C, neutrophil gelatinase e | at ed | i-poc
microglobulin

N-terminal prebrain natriuretic peptide, cardiac
troponin |, heartype fatty acid binding protein, cardia
troponin I/myoglobin/creatine kinase isoenzyme, D
dimer, myeloperoxidase, lipoprotein phospholipase /
C-reactive protein, procalcitonin, and seramyloid
A/C-reactive protein

Colloidal gold immunochromatographic analyzer

Liver function, kidney function, electrolyte, glucose

Fully automated biochemical analyzers metabolism, blood lipid and cardiac markers, etc.

Cardiac markers, tumors, infectious diseases, thyroi
Fully automated chemiluminescence immunoassay | function, sex hormones, inflammation, autoimmune

analyzer iTube 3000 antibodies, glucose metabolism, markers related to |
metabolism, etc.

ABO, RhD blood type antigen test card, Rh blood gr

Fully automated blood group analyzer typing test card, antiuman globulin test card, etc.

Fully-automated thromboelastographic analyzer CFN Heparinase cup and general cup
LEPU-Auto8

Thromboelastographic analyzer CFMS LEPU
8880/8800

Epoxidasel platelet aggregation detection test kit ca

Fully automated platelet aggregator LEPU FastRing P2Y12 receptor platelet aggregation detection test k

1000

card

Fully automated medical PCR analysis system Nucleic acid extraction, purification reagent

Blood sugar, ketone body and uric acid detector Blood sugar test paper, carcass test paper and uric
test paper

Pipeline Automatic ELISA Workstation General test paper

In the field of surgicabnd anesthesialevices and consumabjdble business sector of
the Company has maintained a rapid growth in recent years, benefiting from the domestic
substitution brought about by the polices of voldmased procurement. As shown in the
following table, lepu Surgery has a comprehensive layout in open surgical stapler,
endoscopic surgical stapler, endoscopic surgical auxiliary products;vaseualar
interventional stents (esophageal/respiratory/biliary/intestinal stents) and anesthetic
consumables. In opesurgery, the Company has a extensive stapler product line and
complete specifications. In terms of endoscopic surgery, the products of the Company cover
stapler, ultrasonic scalpel and various auxiliary products, and the R&D line of absorbable
material tisue holders is an important layout of the innovative products of the Company. In
December, 2022, Fujian Provincial Healthcare Security Bureau organized the provincial

alliance for volumebased procurement of medical consumables such as endoscope cutting,
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kissing and suturing devices. All products of the whole lines of endoscope series of the
several brands owned by Lepu Surgery won the bid, and the manual and electric endoscope
of Changsha Runjie, a brand owned by Lepu Surgery, was qualified for theldicatian of

surplus. In 2023, by winning the bid of volurbhased procurement, the market share of
relevant products of the Company is expected to further increase, and this business sector can
achieve steady growth.

Major class Subcategory

Linear\ tubular stapler, anorectal stapler, linkarc cutting staple
and skin stapler

Endoscopic stapler | (manual), endoscopic stapler Il (man
electric endoscopic stapler

Stapler (open)

Stapler (endoscope

Ultrasonic scalpel
Surgery (open and Host and 3mm cutter head
endoscope)
Auxiliary products | Puncture device, tissue holder, ligature device, fascia closer, in
(endoscope) protective sleeve, etc.
Non-vascular
interventional stent

Esophageal stent, respiratory stent, biliary stent and intestinal st

Medicated central venous catheter, central venous catheter, tr
Anesthesia Consumables intubation, arterial blood sample collector, medical laryngeal m
anesthesia mask and portable infusion pump, etc.

During the reporting period, Vsonic 600 for ultrasonic diageasguipment for digestive
tract endoscope independently developed by the Company obtained NMPA registration
certificate. The product consists of an ultrasonic probe, a probe driver, an image processor, a
keyboard and a foot switch, and can realize ultrasmmaging of the human digestive tract
(including esophagus, stomach, duodenum and colon) and surrounding tissues. As shown in
the following table, in addition to the approved products during the reporting period, the

company will further lay out the enslcope and its supporting consumables.

Design stagel Preclinical Clinical Registration App;c;\(:g for

Ultrasonic diagnostic
equipment for digestive tract a a a a a
endoscope
Electronic lower ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

: : a a a a a
gastrointestinal endoscope
Ultrasonic diagnostic .

. : x x x x Expected in
equipment for respiratory tract a a a a 202303
endoscope
Electronic upper x x x x x

: . a a a a a
gastrointestinal endoscope
Disposable pyeloscope a a a a Expected in
p Py p 2023Q2
. N ~ Expected in
Electronic bronchoscope a a 202401

o . N ~ Expected in

170°electronic colonoscope a a 202401
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Disposable electronic 5 5 Expected in
bronchoscope 2024Q1
Ultrasonic endoscope for 5 5 Expected in
digestive tract 2024Q3
Ultrasonic endoscope for 5 5 Expected in
respiratory tract 2024Q3
Transbronchoscopic .

. ) . ~ Expected in
intracavitary freezing treatmel a 202501
machine

Oneway valve system fo 5 Expected in
bronchus 202504

(2) Pharmaceutical

The pharmaceutical sector is a letegm and stable cash flow business of the Company,
mainly divided into FDF (generic drugs) andAPl. During the reporting period, the
pharmaceutical sector realized an operating income of RMER0886 million , with a year
onryear increase 06.526; Among them, theé-DF (generic drugsyealized an operating
income of RMB29888238 million, with a yeaton-year increase 06.08%; The operating
income of active pharmaceutical ingredient reached RMB2649, with a yeaton-year
increase 0R2.06%.

The FDF products include all kinds of generic drugs and Chinese patent medicines. The
product layout of the Company closely focuses on the core strategy of serving the majority of
cardiovascular patients, méintargeting the main cardiovascular indications, including
lowering blood fat, lowering blood sugar, lowering blood pressure, resisting heart failure and
thrombosis. At present, the important generic drugs of the Company in the cardiovascular
field include clopidogrel bisulfate, atorvastatin calcium, valsartan capsules, amlodipine
besylate tablets, losartan potassium and hydrochlorothiazide tablets, isosorbide mononitrate
sustaineetelease tablets, Tigrello tablets, apixaban tablets and acarbose tableByring
the reporting period, as shown in the following table, clopidogyerogen sulfatespirin
tablets, aspirin enterdcoated tablets, rivaroxaban tablets, sitagliptin phosphate tablets and
valsartan and amlodipine tablets (I) of the Company ladiveeen registered in accordance

with the conformity evaluation of generic drugs, and have been approved for sales.

Registration

Pharmaceutical name Indications o
classification

Clopidogrel hydrogen sulfate| Acute coronary syndrome, myocardial infarction, Chemical drug 4

aspirin tablets stable angina pectoris
Aspirin enteriecoated tablets It can |nh|_b|t platelet aggregation and prevent Chemical drug 4
thrombosis

Prevention and treatment of venous thrombosis by

Rivaroxabarablests .
acute hip or knee replacement surgery

Chemical drug 4

Sitagliptin phosphate tablets| Type Il diabetes Chemical drug 4
Valsartan and amlodipine . .
tablets (1) Hypertension Chemical drug 4

Note: Valsartan and amlodipine tablets (I) valsartan 80mg, amlodipine 5mg
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In 2023, the Company will continue to actively use the brand advantages in the
cardiovascular field, exert synergies in various marketing channels, continuously tap the
market space of existing generic drugs and proprietary Chinese medicines, fully pituanote
newly approved generic drugs, promote the market competition pattern as shown in the
following table, and actively seek cooperation opportunities for potential innovative drugs in

the cardiovascular field, so as to seek the stable development bitimegeeutical sector.

Type Pharmaceutical name Indications Stage
Sitagliptin phosphate tablety Diabetes mellitus Resigtration
Invokana and metformin Diabetes mellitus Resigtration
extendedrelease tablets
Hyperglycemia Jardiance Diabetes mellitus Resigtration
Recom_bmant GLH receptor Diabetes mellitus Clinical
stimulant injection
Insulin glargine Diabetes mellitus Resigtration
Doxazosin mesylate extendqd Symptomatic treatment of benign . .
. . ' Resigtration
Hypertension release tablets prostatic hyperplasia Hypertensior
Nifedipine controlled release) . . .
tablets Hypertension Resigtration
Rosuvastatin calcium tablet] Reducing blood lipid Resigtration
Hyperlipidemia Ezetimibe and pitavastatin| Lipid-lowering, treatment of acute Clinical
calcium tablet coronary syndrome
Oseltamivir phosphate for | Used for the prevention and . .
. : Resigtration
suspension treatment of viral cold.
Tofacitinib citrate sustained| Rheumatoid arthritis, psoriatic . .
" . " Resigtration
release tablets arthritis, ulcerative colitis
Ursodeoxycholic acid capsu Sterol gallstones, cholestatic liver Resigtration

disease, bile reflux gastritis
Others Treatment of advanced or non
progressive AIDS patients
independently or in combination
Ritonavir tablet with antiretroviral nucleoside drugy Resigtration
It can be used in combination with
Nematode tablets for the treatmen
of COVID-19.

(3) Medical Care Solutions

The medicalcare solutionsectoris a new business sector actively cultivated by the
Company. This business is an innovative business of the Company, with constantly
increasing investment. In the future, the business will rely on the advantages of dlata an
technology to continuously expand its sales channels. In the reporting period, the medical
service and health management sector realized an operating income oflFEMB048
million, with a yeaton-year increase 04.91%. Compared with the same periodiadt year,

excluding the contribution of products related to COMI® epidemic in this sector, the
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operating income of routine business in the medical service and health management sector of
the Company has a yean-year increase df1.73%.

() Medical Service

Based on the platform strategy of estep service for cardiovascular diseases of the
Company, the Company strategically deplogechrdiovascular specialist hospijtahternet
hospitals, acheckup center, Internet hospitals and independginical laboratories, and

onlinepharmacies

High-Tech Specialized Cardiovascular Hospital in Hefei is a laogdée tertiary
specialized hospital focusing on the treatment of cardiovascular diseases, with a total
establishment of 500 beds, integrating dical treatment, first aid, rehabilitation and
scientific research, and providing comprehensive diagnosis and treatment services for
patients with cardiovascular diseases. In accordance with the strategic layout of the Company,
the hospital is an importapiart of innovative product clinical trials of the Company. As of
the disclosure date of the report, the Company has conducted and completed clinical trials in
this hospital with some important innovative products, such as the transcatheter aortic valve
replacement (ScienCroWd, the transapical mitral valve clip system (Memo@\p), the
transapical mitral valve artificial chordae repair system, biodegradable patent foramen ovale
occluder and biodegradable atrial septal defect occluder, etc. At pregehgstbital animal
testing center has been put into operation, it increases new sources of income for the hospital
and enhance its profitability. It is expected that the hospital operation will break even in 2023.

(I Health management

The health managesnt business of the Company has formed a series of product
solutions for vital sign monitoring, chronic disease management and rehabilitation
management based on artificial intelligence technology, connecting different health scenes
inside and outside thénospital, realizing the interconnection of various independent
diagnostic products, covering disease prevention, diagnosis, treatment and rehabilitation.

In terms of vital sign monitoring, the Company has a wide range of vital sign monitoring
products wih AI-ECG as the core, realizing various functions such as dynamic ECG, static
ECG, bedside monitoring and wearable telemetry, etc., helpful for hospital information
construction to improve the efficiency of diagnosis and treatment, and at the same time,
providing convenience for vital sign monitoring of patients at home. The accuracy of Al
ECG atrtificial intelligence technology of the Company has been tested by authoritative
databases such as CSE, MIT, AHA, NST and CTS. The intelligent diagnosis categeries

refined to 16 categories, and there are more than 100 kinds of abnormal ECG events. The
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accuracy of P wave group positioning can reach 98.9%, the accuracy of atrial fibrillation
identification can reach 99.97%, and the comprehensive accuracy of EQGisaraand
diagnosis can reach over 95.2%. At present, the Company has cooperated with
14,000+medical institutions nationwide for ECG artificial intelligence technology, the
accumulated ECG redéime data has exceeded 220 million, and the total ECG repert h
reached 3.8 million.

In terms of chronic disease management, the Company provides complete solutions for
family chronic disease management, including health integrated machine, oximeter, ECG
detector, ventilator, oxygen generator, etc. Through its OWQ sales team, the company
gradually spreads all kinds of products including integrated machine in pharmacies, and also
actively carries out online@mmerce platform sales.

In terms of rehabilitation management, the products of the Company includd neur
function reconstruction, pelvic floor rehabilitation, sports rehabilitation and other products to
realize remote rehabilitation guidance and optimize home rehabilitation management.

The Company launched a strategic layout in the field of consumer ahelémces, and
constantly explored the consumer market. As shown in the following table, at present, there
are products in the fields of dentistry, ophthalmology and dermatology. In the field of
dentistry, Leqi, a subsidiary company of Lepu, focuses wisible orthodontics for children
and adults, and in accordance with the demands of market sectors, it has launched a series of
special products such as efree children's growth trend aligner and ifree children's and
adolescents' invisible aligner to proeiduality products for more age groups. In the field of
ophthalmology, Shanghai Essence, a subsidiary company, represents and sells
orthokeratology lenses and supporting nursing products. The Company is also rapidly
promoting the independent research areletbpment of orthokeratology lenses and
supporting nursing products. As of the disclosure date of the report, the orthokeratology
lenses of Ventura, a subsidiary company, have been approved for sales. In the field of
dermatology, the Company has laid auseries of dermatology products by using the R&D
platform of materials science. At present, B5 hyaluronic acid moisturizing essence has been
sold on the eommerce platform. On the basis of cosmetic products, the Company will

further launch injection pragtts.

Dental Ophthalmology Dermatology Health
department Department Department management
Brand Lepu Leqi Ventura/Ventura | Lepu Lab Lepu
TOPSPEED Orthokeratology B5 hyaluronic acid VltaI_S|g_ns _
Product ; secondary monitoring (static
Bracket series lenses (Ventura) L )
polishing essence | and dynamic
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ECG/bedside
monitoring/wearable
telemetry)
efree Blue copper Chronic care
o Orthokeratology | peptide conotoxin | management
Growth invisible .
aligner lenses (Ventura) sec_on_dary (qomprehenswe/slee
polishing essence | ping)
. Rehabilitation
firee management (pelvic
Threein-one g \P
R . floor/nerve/pain/spor
invisible aligner 9
Lepu Leqi
Invisible aligner

Il. Position of the Company in the industry

We are the only totalsolution provider in the PRC across the full life cycle of
cardiovascular disease management, our products and services involve medical devices,
pharmaceuticalsnedicalcaresolutions We are one of the earliest companies in the PRC to
offer coronary interventional products, have the only national engineering technology
research center for interventional diagnosis and treatment of cardiac implants awarded by the
Ministry of Science and Technology, and has successfully developed and cortireek tiee
first domestic coronary stent, the first pacemaker, the first bioabsorbable stent, the first
coronary cutting balloon and the first-BICG Platform in China.

After more than 20 years of concentrated management, we have consolidated-our first
mover advantage in the field of cardiovascular disease. In accordance with the analysis of
Frost & Sullivan, in 2021, our revenue of innovative products such as coronary bioabsorbable
stent, coronary drugoated balloon, congenital heart disease occludercarahary cutting
balloon will rank among the top three in China market. As a REiden enterprise, we
adhere to the principle of "one generation under R&D, one generation under registration, and
one generation under production and sales". As of Decenib&022, we have applied for
1,650 patents, more than 600 products sold in China and overseas countries, 569 class Il and
[l medical device registration certificates approved by NMPA, 33 certifications by the US
FDA and 224 certifications by the EU CE.

3. Major accounting data and financialindicators
(1) Major accounting data and financial index in recent three years

Does the Company need to retrospectively adjust or restate previous annual accounting data?

I Yes R No
RMB
End of 2022 End of 2021 % Change End of 2020
Total assets (RMB) 24,484,033,145.01 20,698,662,317.9¢ 18.29% 18,156,865,082.27
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Total equity
attributable to
shareholders of the
Company(RMB)

15,146,202,761.3( 11,473,861,050.6( 32.01% 9,872,791,251.61]

2022 2021 % Change 2020

Operating

10,609,442,080.61 10,659,734,875.07 -0.47% 8,038,667,540.97
revenue(RMB)

Net profit attributable
to shareholders of the 2,202,809,390.54 1,719,324,578.0Z 28.12% 1,801,932,532.92
Company (RMB)

Net profit attributable
to shareholders of the
Company after
deducting non
recurring profit and
loss (RMB)

2,142,486,458.55 1,854,940,941.11 15.50% 1,412,890,674.82

Net cash flows from
operating activities 2,790,709,307.02 3,061,991,851.71 -8.86% 2,089,699,304.8¢
(RMB)

Basic earnings per

1.222 . 27.38% 1.0141
share (RMB /share) 3 0.9596 38% 0

Diluted earnings per

0,
share (RMB /share) 1.2124 0.9510 27.49% 1.0141

Return on weighted

17.60% 16.00% 1.60% 21.12%
average net assets

(2) Main accounting data in each quarter

Unit: RMB

The first quarter The second quarter The third quarter The fourth quarter

Operating

2,549,111,243.52 2,784,395,695.0Z 2,428,292,257.91 2,847,642,884.1¢
revenue(RMB)

Net profit attributable
to shareholders of the 545,393,656.31 722,633,989.40 542,075,039.22 392,706,705.61
Company (RMB)

Net profit attributable
to shareholders of the
Company after
deducting non
recurring profit and
loss (RMB)

547,208,342.77 716,302,01.19 541,264,649.98 337,711,448.61

Net cash flows from
operating activities 448,932,891.19 729,360,086.55 643,377,663.85 969,038,665.43
(RMB)

Whether there are significant differences between above financial indexes and their total value and relevant finargial indexe
in the revealed quarterly reports and samaual bulletin of the Company

T Yes R No
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4. Capital stock and shareholders

(1) Table of number of common stockholders and preferred shareholders recovering voting rights and shareholdings
of top 10 shareholders

Unit: Share
Total number
of preferred
Th f
Total number of esumo shareholders Total
preferred .
common recovering number of
Total number of stock o
shareholders at voting rights shareholders
common the end of the shareholders atthe end of | O | holdin
shareholders at 96,059 83,934 | recovering . 9 0
month before o the month special
the end of the . voting rights .
reporting period the disclosure at the end of before the voting
P gp date of the renortin disclosure shares (if
Annual Report p. 9 date of the any)
period
Annual
Report
Shareholding of the top 10 shareholders
Number of Pledge, marking or freezing
Shareholders' | Nature of Shareholding shares held with
. Number of shares held . Stock
name shareholder proportion restricted Quantity
conditions status
725th Research
Institute of
China State Stateowned
Shipbuilding 12.98% 244,063,788.00
Corporation legal person
Limited
Domestic
PU Zhongjie natural 12.13% 228,074,749.00 173,402,757.00 Pledge 167,230,000.0Q
person
WP MEDICAL Foreian
TECHNOLOGI legal intit 6.59% 123,968,600.00 92,976,450.00
ES, INC g y
Banker's Foreign 4.70% 88,421,980.00
undertaking legal entity
Hong Kong
Securities Foreian
Clearing 9 . 4.53% 85,206,638.00
legal entity
Company
Limited
Houde Yimin .
Domestic
(Beijing) nonstate
Investment 3.60% 67,750,000.00 Pledge 23,634,454.00
owned legal
Management erson
Co., Ltd. P
Houde Yimin .
) Domestic
(Ningbo)
non-state
Investment 1.91% 35,850,000.00
owned legal
Management erson
Co., Ltd. P
Bank Of China
Limited -
H |
uabao CSI 1y o 0.92% 17,347,235.00
medical trading
openend index
securities
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investment fund
Domestic
XI.ONG natural 0.75% 14,120,400.00
Qingchuan
person
Monetary
Authority of Foreign . 0.73% 13.658.161.00
Macao- self legal entity
owned funds
Mr. PU Zhongjie, WP Medical Technologies, Inc., Houde Yimin (Beijing) Investment
Description of associated Management Co., Ltd. and Houde Yimin (Ningbo) Investment Management Co., Ltd. wer
relationships or concerted persons acting in concert within the meaning of PRC law. There is no relationship betwe
action of the above other shareholders of the Company or concerted action as stipuledsures for the
shareholders Administration of Acquisition of Listed Compan{€der No.35 of China Securities
Regulatory Commission).

Does the Company have voting rights difference arrangement?
I Applicable R Not Applicable

(2) Table of total number of the preferred shareholders and shareholdings of top 10 preferred shareholders of the
Company

There is not details about statement of shareholding informations of preferred shareholders in the reporting period of the
Company.

(3) Property right and control relationship between the Company and the actual controller is disclosed in the form of
block diagram

PU Zhongjie

1
1l Houde Yimin (Beijing)
Investment Managemen

12.13% Co., Ltd.

I

Houde Yimin (Ningbo)

3.60% : Investmcegt I\Ifltgnagemer 6.59%

|
1.91%
] v i k4
I
24.23%

WP Company

Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

5. Bonds existing on approval date of the annual report

I Applicable R Not Applicable
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Sectioni . Ma n a g e nlEsnussibs andAnlysis

During the reporting period, although some hospital businesses were affected to some
extent due to COVIEL9, the regular business of the Company still achieved steady growth.
Details are as follows:

During the reporting period, the Company realized anraippgy income of RMB
106094421 million , net profit attributable to shareholders of the Compamyas RMB
22028094 million, with a yeafonyear increase 0£28.126; net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company after deducting-meaarring profit and losswas RMB
21424865 million, with a yeafon-year growth of15.50%; net cash flow from operating
activities amounted to RMR7907093 million . The main reason for the decline of the
abovementioned income indicators and net cash flow indicators from operating activities is
that the detection reagent products related to COMU[zontributed a lot to the revenue and
net profit in the same periddst year.

At the end of the reporting period, total assets of the Company were ZZKRI0331
million , with an increase ofl8.2%6 compared with that in the beginninget assets
attributable to shareholders of the Compamgs RMB151462028million , with an increase
of 32.0%6 compared with that in the beginnimgturn on weighted average net assetss
17.60%.

1. Medical device

The medical device sector is the largest sector of the business of the Company. During
the reporting period, the sector realized an operating income of 38VI83487 million.

With the implementation of centralized volurbased procurement of coronary $gen
organized by the central government, the business of traditional metal drug stents dropped
significantly, but the innovative product portfolio of the Company increased significantly.
During the reporting period, the operating incomecafdiovascularinnovative product
portfolio has a yeaonyear increase af3.60%.

In the same period of last year, tdetection reagents related to COVID contributed a
lot to the growth of the operating income of the medical device sector of the Company.
Excluding his part of the income, the operating income of the medical device sector of the
Company had a yeam-year increase 035.64% compared with that in the same period of
last year. After the centralized collection of coronary metal stents, the routinedsusirtae
medical device plate of the Company quickly resumed a good growth trend, leading to the

overall performance growth of the Company.
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2. Pharmaceutical

The pharmaceutical sector is a letegm and stable cash flow business of the Company,
mainly dvided into preparations (generic drugs) and active pharmaceutical ingredients.
During the reporting period, the pharmaceutical sector realized an operating income of RMB
34380886 million, with a yeaton-year increase 05.526; Among them, thé-DF (generc
drugs) realized an operating income of RK®388238million, with a yearon-year increase
of 6.08%; The operating income of active pharmaceutical ingredient reached4aRE549
million , with a yeaton-year increase dt.06%.

3. Medical care solution

The medicalcare solutionsectoris a new business sector actively cultivated by the
Company. This business is an innovative business of the Company, with constantly
increasing investment. In the future, the business will rely on the advantages of dlata an
technology to continuously expand its sales channels. In the reporting period, the medical
care solutiorsector realized an operating income of RME25048million, with a yearon-
year increase 0#.91%. Compared with the same period of last yeatcluding the
contribution of products related to COUI® epidemic in this sector, the operating income
of routine business in the medical service and health management sector of the Company has

a yearonyear increase dfl.73%.

Sectionn . Corporate Governance

I. Overview of Corporate Governance

During the reporting period, the Company strictly complied with the Company Law, the
Securities Law, the Governance Guidelines for Listed Companies, the GEM Listing Rules of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the Guidelines on the Standardized Operation of GEM Liste
Companies of Shenzhen Stock Exchange and other relevant laws and administrative
regulations, as well as the Articles of Association, Rules of Procedure for the Shareholders'
Meeting, Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors and the provisionsesfiotérnal
control systems, and constantly improved the corporate governance structure.

1. Shareholders and Shareholders' Meeting

The Company shall convene and hold the general meeting of shareholders in strict
accordance with the Rules of the Shareholders' Meeting of Listed Companies, the Articles of

Association, the Rules of Procedure for the Shareholders' Meeting and othemopsy\asid
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shall provide convenience for the shareholders to attend the meeting so that they can fully
exercise their rights as shareholders. The Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company has a
procedure in the process of reviewing each proposal, during whishaiholders will be
equally treated and the explanation and description will be given in terms of the inquiry of
shareholders, together with the reception of suggestions and opinions of shareholders, to
ensure the right of voice of minority shareholders.

2. About Company, controlling shareholders and actual controllers

The Company, independent of the controlling shareholders and actual controllers in
personnel, assets, business, management organization and financial accounting system, has
independent ah complete main business and independent management ability, and can
independently operate, run and assume responsibilities and risks.

The controlling shareholders and actual controllers of the Company can exercise their
rights and undertake correspondiobligations according to the law. During the reporting
period, there is no direct or indirect intervention in the Company's decrsaking and
operating activities beyond the authorized authority of the shareholders' meeting and the
Board of Directors, ninfringement of other shareholders' interests by its controlling position,
which has no adverse impact on the corporate governance structure and independence.

3. About Director and Board of Directors:

The condition that the Company directors, whoseoapment and removal strictly
follow the approval procedures of the Board of Directors and the Shareholders' Meeting, are
not allowed to serve as Company directors as stipulated in Article 147 of the Company Law
does not occur, not incompliance with thetiéles of Association of the Company and
relevant laws and regulations. All directors work rigorously, diligently and responsibly
during their tenure, continue to pay attention to the Company's operating conditions, take the
initiative to participate in devant training, and improve the standard operation level. They
actively involve in Board meetings, give full play to their professional expertise, make
prudent decisions, and safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders.

The convening and hdliy of Board meetings of the Company are in line with the
requirements of relevant regulations; The contents of the Board minutes are authentic,
accurate, complete, and safe to be filed; Meeting resolutions shall be fully, accurately and
timely disclosed;The Board of Directors consists of strategy committee, audit committee,
compensation and evaluation committee and nomination committee.

4. About Supervisor and Board of Supervisors

The condition that the supervisor of the Company, who is qualifiedlyirtgoounder
the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association, is not prohibited from serving as the
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supervisor of the Company as stipulated in Article 147 of the Company Law does not occur.
The procedures of convening, holding and voting of thetingpef the Board of Supervisors
of the Company shall comply with the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Supervisors.

The Company's supervisors can exercise the powers of the Board of Supervisors and
fulfill their duties conscientiously and diligently.

5. About Performance Assessment, Incentive and Restraint Mechanism

The Company has established an enterprise performance evaluation and incentive
system, and it is fair and transparent as for the performance evaluation standards and
procedures of directorsupervisors and senior executives, whose income is linked to the
business performance of the Company. And it is open and transparent in terms of the
appointment of senior executives that is in line with the provisions of laws and regulations.

6. About Information Disclosure and Transparency

During the reporting period, the Company shall disclose the Company's information
truthfully, accurately, completely, timely and fairly in strict accordance with relevant laws
and regulations, the Articles of Assaoxm of the Company, the Information Disclosure
Management System and other provisions. The Company has issued 4 regular reports and
103 provisional announcements through China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News,
Securities Times, Securities Daandwww.cninfo.com.cn, designated media by the CSRC.

7. About Investor Relationship Management

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations and the requirements of the Investor
Relationship Management System, the Company designates the secretagyBafard of
Directors as the person in charge of investor relationship management, responsible for
coordinating investor relationship, receiving shareholder visits, answering investor inquiries,
providing investors with information disclosed by the Conypatc. The Company responds
to investor inquiries the forms such as the telephone, email, investor relation interaction
platform, "Investor Relation” column on the Company website, investor reception day and
others, to strengthen information communicatiamd promote positive interaction with
investors, while effectively improving the transparency of the Company.

8. About Stakeholders

The Company fully respects and maintains the legitimate rights and interests of relevant
stakeholders, realizes the coomation and balance of the interests of shareholders,
employees, doctors, patients, society and other parties, and pays attention to environmental
protection and actively participates in public welfare undertakings while maintaining the
sustainable and hiday development of the Company and realizing the interests of
shareholders.
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9. Establishment and Implementation of Internal Audit System

Under the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee is mainly in charge of
communication, supervision, meeting orgatian and verification of internal and external
audit of the Company. The Audit Department is set up under the Audit Committee as the
daily office. After the Company is listed, the Audit Department actively operates and
improves the department functionsdapersonnel arrangement in accordance with the
requirements of the listed company, and inspects and supervises the establishment and
implementation of the Company's internal control system as well as the authenticity and

integrity of the Company's finan¢igmformation.

Are there significant differences between the actual situation of corporate governance
and laws, administrative regulations, and the regulations on listed company governance

issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commi8sion
I YesR No

The actual situation of corporate governance is fully in accordance with laws,

administrative regulations and the provisions of CSRC on the governance of listed companies.

Il. The Independence of the Company in Terms of Assets, Personnel, Finance,
Organization and Business, etc. Relative to the Controlling Shareholders and Actual
Controllers.

Compared with the controlling shareholders, the Company is independent in business,
personnel, assets, institutions, finance and other aspects, and has a corsjpless Bystem

and the ability to operate independently.

n .Remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Executives

Decisionmaking procedure for remuneration of directors, supervisors and senior
executives of the Company for the fifth term: The allowance scheme for directors and
supervisors of the Company has been reviewed and approved by the annual Shareholders'
Meeting in 2021; The 2022 base salary plan for the Company's senior executives was
reviewed and approved by the 26th meeting of the fifth Board of Directors, and the 2022
performance appraisal compensation was reviewed and approved by the 33rd meeting of the
fifth Board of Directors.

Basis of confirmation for remuneration of directors, supervisors and senior executives of
the Company for the fifth term: The allowance of the Company's directors and supervisors
shall be determined by the allowance plan decidethdwnnual Shareholders' Meeting in
2021; The compensation of the Company's senior executives shall be determined by the sum
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of the 2022 basic remuneration decided at the 26th meeting of the fifth Board of Directors
and the 2022 performance remuneratienided at the 33rd meeting of the fifth Board of
Directors.

Actual payment of remuneration of directors, supervisors and senior executives of the
Company for the fifth term: During the reporting period, the Company paid the payable

remuneration of the déctors, supervisors and senior executives in full.

IV. Work of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors did not found any risks of the Company during the

supervision activity within the reporting period

The Board of Supervisors commonly condiet supervision matters during the

reporting period.

V. Situation of the Company Personnel

1. Employees' Quantity, Major Composition as well as Educational Status

Number of current employees of parent company at the enc 2115
reporting period (person(s)) '
Number of current employees of main subsidiaries at the e
. . 8,537
reporting period (person(s))
Total number of current employees at the end of reporting
. 10,652
period (person(s))
Total number of employees paid in the current period
10,652
(person(s))
The number of retired staff paid by parent company and mg 0
subsidiaries (person(s))
Professional composition
Professional composition classification Number of profession (person(s))
Production personnel 3,622
Salesperson 3,409
Technical personnel 2,663
Financial staff 278
Administrative staff 680
Total 10,652
Educational level
Education level classification Quantity (person(s))
Doctor 39
Postgraduate 716
Undergraduate 3,408
Junior College 3,180
Junior college below 3,309
Total 10,652
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2. Remuneration policy

In terms of salary policy, the Company has set up a fair remuneration distribution
system to attract and retain talents and fully motivate employees in line with the principles of
rewarding the advanced, urging the laggard and improving the work enthusiasm
employees. Based on the market salary standard, with reference to the industry salary level
and the promotion and development needs of employees, the Company will carry out
remuneration adjustment of varying ranges every year to ensure that the Csmpany
remuneration is competitive in the industry, so as to enhance the work enthusiasm of
employees, improve work efficiency and create more profits for the Company.
3. Training plan

The Company has a perfect training system, which adopts the mode ofnowmbi
internal training and external training, and has developed a perfect training system for
employees in different positions and corresponding personnel training plans: including new
employee induction training, iservice personnel professional skillsprovement training,
management quality and skills training, and the establishment of the Company's internal

trainer team.

O . Profit distribution of common stocks and increased capital stock by transferring of
capital reserves.

On May 17, 2022, the 2021 annual Shareholders' Meeting of the Company reviewed and
approved the 2021 annual profit distribution plan. On June 23, 2022, the Company disclosed
the 2021 Annual Announcement on the Implementation of Equity Distribution
(Announ@ment No. : 202D50), that is, on the basis of 1,804,589,657 shares of the total
capital stock of the Company minus 1,774,493,376 shares of the total capital stock after
30,096,281 shares of the repurchased shares, the Company pays RMB 2.75 in cagig(inclu
tax) to all shareholders for every 10 shares, and a total of RMB 487,985,678.40 (including tax)
was paid as cash dividends. The registration of equity for current equity allocation dated on
June 29, 2022, and the-aghts and exdividend dated on Jen30, 2022. By the end of this
report, the Company has completed the implementation of equity allocation in 2021.

VII. Construction and Implementation of Internal Control System during the Reporting
Period

1. Construction and Implementation of Internain@ol

According to the CSRC, Securities Law, and Basic Norms for Enterprise Internal

Control and other relevant regulations, the Company has established a strong applicability
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and operability of the internal control management system. During the reporting period, the
Company combined industry characteristics and actual conditions to further improve the
construction of internal control system, optimize the management and aootte| improve

the internal control mechanism, system and process, strengthen the internal audit supervision
and the internal audit department's supervision over the implementation of the Company's
internal control system, ensure the effective implememtatiothe internal control system,

and continuously enhance the standard operation level of the Company, effectively prevent
the risk of operation and management, and promote the sustainable, stable and rapid

development of the Company.

2. The Specific Coumstances of the Internal Control of Significant Defects Found within the
Reporting Period

During the reporting period, the Company has no major defects in internal control.

O . Internal Control Self-evaluation Report or Internal Control Audit Report

1. Internal Control Selassessment Report

Disclosure date of full internal control

; April 26, 2023
appraisal report

Disclosure index of full internal control

. http://www.cninfo.com.cn
appraisal report

Proportion of the evaluation unit assets

in the total assets of the Company's 100.00%
consolidated financial statements

Proportion of operating income which is

included in the evaluation accounted fo

inclu i valuati u 100.00%

the Company's consolidated financial
statements opating income

Defect identification standard

Category Financial Statement Non-financial Statement

Major defects: Identify any level of
malpractice in senior management;
Correct published financial reports; The
certified public accountant finds that
there is a material misstatement in the

Major defects: The Company's decisior
making procedure causes significant
errors; Lack of institutional control or
systemic failure of important business,
and lack of effective compensatory

Qualitative standard

current financial report, but the internal
control fails to findthe misstatement in
the process of operation; The supervisi
of the Audit Committee of the Company
and the internal audit structure of the
Company on its internal control is
ineffective;

Significant defects: Accounting policy is
not selected and applién accordance
with the accepted accounting standard
No procedures and control measures
against fraud was not established. Fail

control; Serious loss of middle and
senior executives and senior technical
personnel; The results of internal contr
evaluation, especiallthe major defects,
have not been rectify. Other situations
that have a major negative impact on tk
Company.

Significant defects: Decisiemaking
procedures lead to general failures;
Defects in the important business
institution or system; The key post
business personnel are seriously lost T|
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to establish appropriate control
procedures for the accounting of
unconventional or special transactions;
Ineffective contrbover the financial
reporting process of the ending period.
Common defect: Other internal control
defects not reaching the standards for {
major defects or significant defects.

results of internal control evaluation,
especially the significant defects, have
not been rectify. Other situations that
have a relatively significant negative
impact on the Company.

Common defect: Inefficient desion
making process; Defects in the general
business institution or system; The
general post business personnel are
seriously lost; The common defect fails
to be corrected;

Quantitative standard

Major defects: The amount of
misstatement of the total &ts is equal
to or not less than 1% of the total asset
in the consolidated accounting
statements; The amount of misstateme
of operating income is equal to or not
less than 1% of the total operating
income of consolidated accounting
statements; Gross msistement of profit
is equal to or not less than 5% of the
gross profit in consolidated accounting
statements.

Significant defects: 0.5% of total assets
in consolidated accounting statements
equal to or not more than 1% of the
misstatement of total asts in
consolidated accounting statements 0.4
of total income in consolidated
accounting statements is equal to or ng
more than 1% of the misstatement of
total income in consolidated accounting
statements 3% of total profits in
consolidated accountingateéments is
equal to or not more than 5% of the
misstatement of total profits in
consolidated accounting statements
Common defect: 0.5% of the
misstatement of total assets in
consolidated accounting statements;
0.5% of the misstatement of total incon
in consolidated accounting statements;
3% of the misstatement of total income
in consolidated accounting statements;

Major defects: The amount of direct
losses 0.5% of total assets.

Significant defects: 0.2% of total asset
is not more than the amountdifect loss
that is equal to or not more than 0.5% (¢
total assets.

Common defect: The amount of direct
losses is equal to or not more than 0.24
of total assets.

Number of major defects in financial

report (number) 0
Number of major defects in ndmancial 0
report (number)

Number of significant defects in 0
financial report (number)

Number of significant defects in non 0

financial report (number)
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Section V Environmental and Social Responsibility

|. Major environmental protection issues

Whether the listed company and its subsidiaries are affiliated to key pollution discharge units published by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection

RYes 1 No

Environmental protection related policies and industandards

During the reporting period, the relevant laws, regulations and industry standards
complied by the Company's subsidiaries involved in pollution discharge in the production
and operation process are as follows:

Mixed Preparation Pharmaceuticéhdustry Water Pollution Discharge Standard
GB219082008, Pharmaceutical Industry Air Pollutant Discharge Standard GB32A(8X3
Boiler Air Pollutant Discharge Standard GB1322114, Technical Specification for
Hazardous Waste Identification Standard HB&2022, Hazardous Waste Storage Pollution
Control Standard GB18592001, Regulations on Pollution Discharge Permit Management,
Measures on Pollution Discharge Permit Management, Pharmaceutical Industry Air Pollutant
Discharge Standard DB33/31002621, Canprehensive Sewage Discharge Standard
GB89781996, Quality Standard of Sewage Discharged to the Urban Sewer GB/T-31962
2015, Indirect Emission Limits of Nitrogen and Phosphorus Pollutants in the Industrial
Enterprise Wastewater DB33/82D013.

Administrative permit for environmental protection

Lepu Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (West Factory) : Received on: July 20, 2020, Validity
period: 3 years

Lepu Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (West Factory) : Received on: July 17, 2020, Validity
period: 3 years

Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd. Received on: July 24, 2020, Validity
period: 3 years

Zhejiang Lepu Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.: Received on: September 22, 2022, Validity

period: 5 years

Treatment of pollutants

1) Lepu Pharmaceuticals
(1) Construction and operation of wastewater treatment facilities:
The existing sewage treatment station of Henan Lepu Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. has a

treatment capacity of 100t/d. After wastewater treatment, it is discharged into Xiangcheng
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Municipal sevage treatment plant through the urban sewage network. Currently, the sewage
treatment facility in the plant runs normally, and the treatment effect can meet the receiving
standards of the urban sewage treatment plant of the city. Due to the newly lwlulttjno
projects in the east and west plant areas, in order to meet the subsequent sewage treatment
needs, a set of sewage treatment facilities have been built in the east and west plant areas of
the Company, which are currently undergoing commissionirg.oAling to the national
regulations on hazardous waste management, a hazardous waste storage warehouse has been
built in the plant area, which has been put into use. IMgdical Technology(Beijing) Co.,
Ltd. to build 100t/d sewage treatment facilitiesltompleted the bidding work.

(2) Construction and operation of wastewater treatment facilities:

All the pollutants in the boiler exhaust gas are discharged up to the standard, and the
exhaust gas treatment facilities are in normal operation. VOC astdadel discharged up to
the standard through testing. Two sets of dust treatment facilities have been built in the solid
workshop, and are currently in normal operation.

2) Zhengjiang Lepu

(1) Construction and operation of wastewater treatment facilities

The current wastewater treatment station of Zhejiang Lepu Pharmaceutical has a
treatment capacity of 1200t/d. After treatment, the wastewater uniformly enters Jiaojiang
Municipal Sewage Treatment Plant, with good COD and total nitrogen removal effect in
terms of wastewater treatment, and can ensure that the effluent meets the management
standard of subsequent sewage treatment plant.

(2) Construction and operation of wastewater treatment facilities:

The Company has established a whakmnt waste gas dection and treatment system:
In a single production workshop, the waste gas exhaust pipe of the production equipment is
connected to the main exhaust pipe (negative pressure); The part that is easy to produce the
waste gas without organization dischaigjarranged on the upper part of the collecting hood,
and connected to the exhaust gas discharge main. The Company also takes different treatment
measures according to the characteristics of the waste gas discharged by the production
process of differentmpducts. All kinds of organic solvent waste gas are absorbed into the
waste gas main by twstage condensation and estage water spray. The waste water
treatment station shall be covered and treated with negative pressure air extraction. After
pretreatmat, it shall be put into the main pipe for RTO incineration. After biological
deodorization, it shall be discharged to the standard.

Emergency plan for environmental emergencies
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In order to prevent and reduce the occurrence of envinst@inemergencies, control,
mitigate and eliminate the hazards caused by environmental emergencies, establish and
improve the emergency mechanism of environmental emergencies, improve the ability of the
enterprise to deal with environmental emergencies, edfattively prevent, timely control
and eliminate all kinds of environmental emergencies, the Company shall take the following
measures:

1. Composition of headquarters

2. Emergency response

(1) Alarm and communication

(2) Onsite rescue

3. Emergency rescue of environmental pollution accidents

(1) Pollutants and main sources

(2) Cause analysis of environmental pollution

(3) Emergency rescue measures for environmental pollution accidents

(4) Disposal of environmental pollution accideatsl preventive measures

4. Safeguard measures

(1) Material supply guarantee

(2) System guarantee

5. Training and drilling

Environmental self-monitoring program

1) Lepu Pharmaceuticals

The Company formulates a seffonitoring plan according to the requirements of the
government environmental protection department and the discharge permit implementation
standards and entrusts a qualified thpedty monitoring company to carry out monitay in
order to improve the Company's environmental management, master the Company's emission
of various pollutants, evaluate the Company's impact on the surrounding environment,
strengthen the Company's emission management of pollutants in the prodquctess,
accept the supervision and inspection of the environmental protection department.

(1) Monitoring items

Wastewater monitoring items: Flow rate, pH value, chemical oxygen demand, ammonia
nitrogen, total phosphorus, total nitrogen, suspended métterday BOD, acute toxicity,
total organic carbon;

Waste gas monitoring items: Nitrogen oxides, particulate matter, sulfur dioxide, non
methane hydrocarbons, Riggleman blackness;

Noise monitoring items: Noise of the factory boundary;
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Surrounding envonment quality monitoring item: Nemethane hydrocarbon, odor
concentration, hydrogen sulfide, ammonia, particulate matter.

(2) Monitoring frequency

Frequency of wastewater monitoring: Flow rate, pH value, chemical oxygen demand,
ammonia nitrogen, totgdhosphorus, total nitrogen, suspended matter;daxeBOD once a
month, acute toxicity, total organic carbon once half a year;

Organized waste gas monitoring: Nitrogen oxides once a monthmatrane
hydrocarbon, sulfur dioxide, Ringelmann blacknesstigulate matter once half a year;

Frequency of monitoring around unorganized waste gas plant boundarymnétbane
hydrocarbon, odor concentration, hydrogen sulfide, ammonia, particulate matter once half a
year.

2) Zhejiang Lepu Pharmaceuticals

The Canpany formulates a sefhonitoring plan according to the requirements of the
government environmental protection department and the discharge permit implementation
standards and entrusts a qualified thpedty monitoring company to carry out monitoring in
order to improve the Company's environmental management, master the Company's emission
of various pollutants, evaluate the Company's impact on the surrounding environment,
strengthen the Company's emission management of pollutants in the productiors,proces
accept the supervision and inspection of the environmental protection department.

(1) Monitoring Items

Wastewater monitoring items: Volatile phenols, total nitrogen (calculated by N), total
phosphorus (calculated by P), anilines, total organic carbon, total cyanide, chroma, suspended
matter, pH value, formaldehyde;day BOD, animal and vegetable oil, adsarle organic
halides, petroleum, trichloromethane, toluene, sulfide, flow rate, BOD, ammonia nitrogen;

Waste gas monitoring items: Volatile organic compoundsexane, tetrahydrofuran,
acetone, dichloromethane, hydrogen chloride, methanol, odor caateamtrethyl acetate,
acetonitrile, ethanol, toluene, acetic acid, ammonia (ammonia), isopropyl alcohol, sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxides, hydrogen sulfidesheptane, triethylamine, particulate matter,
dioxins, noamethane hydrocarbons, formaldehyde, clyekane;

Noise monitoring items: Noise of the factory boundary;

Groundwater and soil

Surrounding environment quality monitoring item: Noethane hydrocarbon, odor
concentration, ammonia, hydrogen chloride, methylene chloride, toluene, ethyl acetate,
methanol, formaldehyde, acetone, acetonitrile, benzene series, volatile organic compounds;

(2) Monitoring frequency
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Frequency of wastewater monitoring: Flow rate, pH value, chemical oxygen demand,
ammonia nitrogen once six hours, total nitrogen once a day, total phosphorus once a month,
sulfide once half a year, anilines, total organic caytbatal cyanide, chrominance, suspended
solids, pH value, formaldehyde, faday BOD, animal and vegetable oil, adsorbable organic
halides, petroleum, trichloromethane, toluene, sulfide once a quarter;

Frequency of wastewater monitoring: Norethane hydrarbons once every six hours,
volatile organic compounds once every month, particulate matter once every quarter, n
hexane, tetrahydrofuran, acetone, dichloromethane, hydrogen chloride, methanol, odor
concentration, ethyl acetate, acetonitrile, ethandlietee, acetic acid, ammonia (ammonia),
isopropyl alcohol, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, hydrogen sulfidggptane, triethylamine,
dioxins, formaldehyde, cyclohexane once a year;

Frequency of monitoring around unorganized waste gas plant boundaryné&tbane
hydrocarbon, odor concentration, ammonia, hydrogen chloride, methylene chloride, toluene,
ethyl acetate, methanol, formaldehyde, acetone, acetonitrile, benzene series, volatile organic
compounds once half a year;

Factory boundary noise monitorifrigquency: Noise once a quarter;

Frequency of groundwater and soil monitoring: Full index once a year;

Conditions related to the investment in environmental governance and protection
and payment of environmental protection tax

1) In 2022, Lepu Pharmagticals invested RMB 11,396,168.18 in environmental
governance and protection, and paid RMB 6,962.79 of environmental protection tax.

2) In 2022, Zhejiang Lepu Pharmaceuticals invested RMB 27,360,000 in environmental governance

and protection, and paid RBML,627.74 of environmental protection tax.

Measures to reduce carbon emissions during the reporting period and effects

I Applicable R Not Applicable

Administrative penalties for environmental problems during the reporting period

The impact on the
Name of the . . .
Cause of L L production and Corrective action
Company or . Violation situation Penalty result - i
- punishment operation of listed| of the Company
subsidiary '
companies
Lepu
Pharmaceuticals | None None None None None
Co., Ltd
Lepu
Pharmaceuticals | None None None None None
Co., Ltd.
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SectionO . Financial Report

Auditor' sReport

Xin Kuai Shi Bao Zi2023Z2GB001
To the $areholdes of Lepu Medical Technology (Beijin§)o., Ltd

Opinion

We have audited the accompanyiimgancial statements of Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co.,

Ltd ("LEPU"), which comprise the consolidated and company's balance sheets as at 31 December
2022, the consolidated and company's income statements, the consolidated and company's statements
of cash flows, and the consolidated and company's statements of changes in owners' equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
corsolidated and company's financial position as at 31 December 2022 and the consolidated and
company's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing ("CSAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repbf.are independent of LEPU in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("CICPA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the CICPA Cde. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit ofthe financial statements of the current period. These mattersdaressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion there on, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We identifiedthe following key audit matters in our audit:
1. Impairment of Goodwill

2. Revenue recognition

Key Audit Matters _ How these matters were addressed in the au

1. Impairment of Goodwill

As at 31 December 2022, the carryamgount of We performed the following audit procedurt

goodwill of the Lepu was among others, in relation to the impairme
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Key Audit Matters

How these matters were addressed in the au

RMB3,493,493,303.00, with a provision

goodwill impairment of RMB162,516,492.1
Please refer to note V.21 to the consolide
financial statements for further detai
Management of Lepu performed impairment t
for based on whic

annually goodwill,

management adjusted the carrying amo
accordingly.The calculation of the impairment
goodwill involved significant manageme
judgements and assumptions, such as future
and growth rate, gross profit rate, net profit re
discount rates etc., wticare key parameters fi
the estimate of asset
flows. As the assessment process is relati
complicated and involves significant estimat
which may be affected by unexpected fut
market and economic conditions, impairm
assessment of goodwill was considered as a

audit matter during the year.

assessment of goodwill:
(1) obtaining an understanding of key interr

controls of goodwill fom management t

assess their design and operat
effectiveness.
(2) wal uating reasonab

identification of each asset group as well
goodwill allocation into asset groups
combinations of asset groups.

3)

performingimpairment test ogoodwill at year

end to evaluate whether the realiz
operating performance of the relevant as
group has reached the profit forecast in
earlier period; reviewing earnings forec:
statement prepared by management, u:
the "Present Value of Expedtd-uture Net
Cash Flow" model for evaluation. The maj
parameters such as future sales and grc
rate, gross profit rate, net profit rate a
discount rate were selected based on
parameters at the time of acquisition,
were corrected according tthe current
situation and the judgment of the futu
market; reviewing the appropriateness of
assumptions and methods adopted by
external appraisal agency.
(4) for related asset groups that were |
evaluated at the time of acquisition, \
performed ealuation using models an
discount rates that were widely accept
Moreover, we involved internal apprais
experts to evaluate the assumptions
methods adopted by management,
particular the discount rate used in the a:

groupso6 c as bndtheé aash flok
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Key Audit Matters

How these matters were addressed in the au

growth rate beyond 5 years. Particu
attention was paid to the future revenue
operating results in the cash flow projectio
by means of making comparison betwe
historical and

performance operatil

development programme.
)

evaluaing sufficiency of disclosures relatin

goodwiill.

2. Revenue recognition

Please refer to disclosures on reve
recognition i n Al
Policies and Accounting Estimates (2
Revenue and not e 46 t

financial statementsFor the year ended 3
December 2022, Lepu and its subsidiaries
AGroupo)

RMB10,609,442,080.61.

generated

revenue was considered as a key audit m
during the year due to the inheterisk that
management might potentially manipulate tim
of revenuerecognition to achieve specific goe
as i

or expectations

performance indicators.

We performed the following audit procedure

among others, in relation to &h revenue

recognition:

(1) obtaining an understanding of key interr
controls of revenue recognition fro
management to assess their design
operating effectiveness.

(2) selecting significant customers to check

sales contracts signed between the Group

the customers, and conducting intervie
with  management;

performing fivaep

analysis to identify single performance
obligation and contract terms relating
transfer of control, to evaluate wheth
revenue recognition is in compliance wi
the Accountng Standards for Busine:
Enterprises.

(3) performing analytical review on revenue a
gross profit combined by product type
identify any abnormal fluctuation.

(4) on sample basis of significance a
exceptional criteria, examining supportil
documents in relan to revenue recognitior
such as accounting vouchers, sales recc
contracts,

shipping documents, receif

delivery receipts, customs declarations, b
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Key Audit Matters

How these matters were addressed in the au

(5)

(6)

of lading etc. to verify the existence a
accuracy of revenue.

sending confirmation to selectednajor
customersin conjunction with the auditing
of accounts receivables, advance paym
to verify th

and contract liabilities,

transaction amount during the reporti
period and yeaend balance, and checkir
subsequent receipt after the balance
date to verify the accuracy of revent
accounts receivables, advance payments
contract liabilities.

performing cutoff test on salesransadbns
before and after the balance sheet date
sample basis, by reviewing sales contra
sales invoices,warehouse delivery note
customs declarations, bills of lading, goc
receipts and other supporting docume
related to revenue recognition to evalu
recorded in

whether revenue was

appropriate period.

Other Information

Management ofEPU( A management 0)

is responsible for

information comprises all of the information included in the 2022 annual repdBRid, other than

the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financiatatements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider wheatlthe other information is materially inconsistent with

t

he

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.
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If, based orthe work we have performed, wenclude that there &smaterial misstament otthe

other information, ware required toeport that fact. We have nothing to report in teigard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation fairdpresentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements thare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing LEPU's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, if applicable, matters related to going comttesing the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate LEPU or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeindgd fiRidcial reportingprocess.

Auditor 's Responsibilities forthe Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, Esdi¢can auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can aésfrom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with GSAve exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit pohoes responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud ray involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

(2) Obtain an understaimg) of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circuntgts, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on LEPU's abilitgpntinue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opom. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause LEPU to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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(5) Evaluate the overall presentation (including the discésy, structure and contents of the
financial statements, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regardingitiaadial information of the entities

or business activities within LEPU to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible forw audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identifguring our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thoughbear on our independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the curreod e are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be commueétan our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountant of China:
Certified Public Accountants LLP (Engagement Partner)

Certified Public Accountant of China:
Shanghai, China
25 April 2023
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 December 2022

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated

Assets Note 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand V.1 5,467,278,785.39 3,797,546,828.74
Settlement reserve
Lending funds
Financial assetseld-for-trading V.2 277,214,058.48
Derivative financial assets
Notes receivable V.3 98,366,738.81| 53,771,351.46
Accounts receivable V.4 1,908,630,201.34 1,661,121,687.3§
Receivable financing V.5 134,291,997.64 81,021,515.38
Prepayments V.6 381,572,138.39 283,134,355.78
Insurance premium receivable
Reinsurance premium receivable
Reserves for reassurance contracts
receivable
Other receivables V.7 124,645,400.43 178,277,572.38
Financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell
Inventories V.8 2,266,591,888.0€ 1,938,933,788.59
Contract assets
Assets held for sale
Nornrcurrent assets due within one year V.9 4,844,368.53] 31,853,472.12
Other current assets V.10 85,517,197.42 121,667,039.96
Total current assets 10,748,952,774.44 8,147,327,611.8(
Non-current assets:
Loans and advances granted
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Longterm receivables V.11 8,259,759.08 11,129,273.70
Longterm equity investments V.12 1,229,469,446.74 1,071,749,553.79
Investments in other equity instruments V.13 1,168,919,655.06 1,509,640,296.41
Other norcurrent financial assets V.14 158,610,000.0( 93,840,000.00
Investment properties V.15 330,246,655.45 317,595,880.00
Fixed assets V.16 2,604,619,204.3( 2,182,280,171.6§
Construction in progress V.17 1,513,606,170.3( 1,158,461,800.35
Productive biological assets
Oil and gas assets
Rightof-use assets V.18 221,916,109.85 189,321,935.56
Intangible assets V.19 1,369,652,469.86 1,398,639,683.6(
Development expenses V.20 988,319,738.44 711,493,159.25
Goodwill V.21 3,330,976,810.8¢ 3,273,478,338.61
Longtermdeferredexpenses V.22 232,882,532.36 197,778,637.7(Q
Deferredincometax assets V.23 131,471,432.94 137,554,855.18
Othernon-current assets V.24 446,130,385.24 298,371,120.27

Total non-current assets

13,735,080,370.54

12,551,334,706.1¢

Total assets

24,484,033,145.01

20,698,662,317.9¢

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Consolidated Balance ShedContinued)

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated

31 December 2022

Liabilities and ownersequity

Note 2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Current liabilities:

Shorttermborrowings

V.25 380,767,436.73

583,919,755.3C

Loans from central bank

Placements from banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities helefor-trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

V.26 182,573,344.2¢

228,532,548.74

Accounts payable

V.27 1,337,648,654.76

1,134,629,803.37

Advances from customers

Contract liabilities

V.28 731,115,959.06

353,961,526.94

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Deposits from customers airderbanks

Receiving from vicariously traded securities

Receiving from vicariously sold securities

Employee benefits payable

V.29 206,701,431.48

199,547,939.45

Taxes payable

V.30 332,693,089.65

210,761,655.01

Other payable

V.31 481,937,974.61

327,402,746.63

Fee and commission payable

Reinsured accounts payable

Liabilities held for sale

Non-current liabilities due within one year

V.32 1,560,077,144.39

249,739,598.07

Other current liabilities

V.33 109,821,099.32

43,833,317.73

Total current liabilities

5,323,336,134.19

3,332,328,891.1¢

Nonrcurrent liabilities:

Reservdund for insurance contracts

Longterm borrowings V.34 731,548,392.02 1,209,505,484.75
Bonds payable V.35 1,506,513,884.7§ 2,673,396,874.2¢
Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities V.36 162,725,224.80 125,111,500.56€
Longterm payable

Longterm employee benefits payable

Estimated liabilities

Deferred income V.37 183,747,808.29 140,026,782.82
Deferredincometax liabilities V.23 205,678,436.74 264,770,701.75
Other norcurrent liabilities V.38 679,985,509.35

Total non-current liabilities

2,790,213,746.63

5,092,796,853.57

Total liabilities

8,113,549,880.87

8,425,125,744.71

Owners'equity:

Share capital V.39 1,880,609,691.0( 1,804,587,310.0(
Other equity instruments V.40 214,753,553.08 214,766,365.3(
Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserve V.41 3,243,079,193.31 983,705,934.14
Less: Treasury shares V.42 355,820,438.37 364,191,936.22
Other comprehensive income V.43 -90,764,197.71 128,902,935.45
Special reserve

Surplus reserve V.44 664,046,161.45 585,170,176.55
Provision for general risks

Retained earnings V.45 9,590,298,798.54 8,120,920,265.3¢

Total equityattributable to shareholders of the
Company

15,146,202,761.3(

11,473,861,050.6(

Non-controlling interests

1,224,280,502.89

799,675,522.65

Total equity

16,370,483,264.14

12,273,536,573.2F

Total liabilities and equity

24,484,033,145.0]

20,698,662,317.9¢

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Company's Balance Sheet
31 December2022

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated

Assets Note 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand 2,453,996,209.6¢ 1,001,509,986.73
Financial assets hefdr-trading
Derivative financial assets
Notes receivable XV.1 500,000.00 3,050,820.01
Accounts receivable XV.2 190,424,139.66 343,228,479.65
Receivable financing XV.3 466,906.50 4,024,270.06
Prepayments 75,915,731.60 60,855,894.42
Other receivables XV.4 1,738,194,238.89 729,429,377.06
Inventories 268,471,006.13 240,998,491.74
Contract assets
Assets held for sale
Nonrcurrent assets due within one year
Other current assets 1,332,439.64 945,122.02
Total current assets 4,729,300,672.1( 2,384,042,441.69
Non-current assets:
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Longterm receivables
Longterm equity investments XV.5 9,415,081,474.03 9,263,375,632.84
Investments in othexquity instruments 761,235,737.08 864,934,804.50
Other norcurrent financial assets 158,610,000.0( 93,840,000.00

Investment properties

42,167,219.61

44,221,277.73

Fixed assets

354,883,224.71

355,710,242.4]

Construction in progress

12,861,392.97

15,656,621.52

Productive biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Rightof-use assets

9,919,402.63

10,833,025.13

Intangible assets

66,671,398.74

71,648,738.95

Development expenses

232,640,379.55

135,087,802.38

Goodwill

Longtermdeferredexpenses

68,922,923.03

72,473,109.47

Deferredincometax assets

30,806,901.71

51,889,967.70

Other noncurrent assets

764,504,704.02

1,088,098,155.23

Total non-current assets

11,918,304,758.0§

12,067,769,377.8¢

Total assets

16,647,605,430.1§

14,451,811,819.55

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Company's Balance SheefContinued)
31 December 2022

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated

Liabilities and ownersequity Note 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Current liabilities:
Shortterm borrowings 150,143,041.7¢ 412,983,794.02
Financial liabilities helefor-trading
Derivative financial liabilities
Notes payable
Accounts payable 111,555,122.95 70,970,087.03

Advances from customers

Contract liabilities

52,735,425.78

47,482,165.20

Employee benefits payable

34,106,247.66

37,713,780.61

Taxes payable

34,722,931.40

47,548,039.98

Other payables

1,933,265,762.01

785,381,961.2])

Liabilities held for sale

Non-current liabilities due within one year

1,502,513,339.28

189,681,125.49

Other current liabilities

5,417,976.46

4,799,659.70

Total current liabilities

3,824,459,847.24

1,596,560,613.24

Noncurrent liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

731,548,392.02

1,209,505,484.75

Bonds payable

1,506,513,884.79

2,673,396,874.29

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

5,072,677.98

5,499,073.48

Long-term payable

Long-term employee benefits payable

Estimated liabilities

Deferred income

12,566,666.67

16,986,345.19

Deferredincometax liabilities

27,082,481.39

Other norcurrent liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

2,255,701,621.49

3,932,470,259.1(

Total liabilities

6,080,161,468.69

5,529,030,872.34

Ownes' equity:

Share capital

1,880,609,691.0(

1,804,587,310.0(

Other equity instruments

214,753,553.08

214,766,365.30

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserve

3,887,723,492.11

2,561,836,944.67

Less: Treasury shares

355,820,438.37

364,191,936.22

Othercomprehensive income

-3,824,056.34

65,171,925.73

Special reserve

Surplus reserve

788,470,523.96

709,594,539.06

Retained earnings

4,155,531,196.05

3,931,015,798.74

Total equity

10,567,443,961.49

8,922,780,947.21

Total liabilities and equity

16,647,605,430.1§

14,451,811,819.55

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Consolidatedlncome Statement

2022
(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated
Item Note 2022 2021

|. Total operatingevenue 10,609,442,080.61] 10,659,734,875.07
Including: Operatingevenue V.46 10,609,442,080.61 10,659,734,875.07|
Interest income
Premium earned
Income for handling charges and commissions
II. Total operating costs 7,926,747,100.31 8,207,652,668.99
Including: Operating cost V.46 3,983,285,816.15| 4,156,636,959.74
Interest expense
Handling charges and commissions
Refunded premiums
Net amount of compensation payout
Net amount withdrawn for insurance contract reserves
Policy dividendexpense
Reinsured expenses
Taxes and surcharges V.47 117,466,953.94 113,779,694.00
Selling expenses V.48 2,033,685,507.32 2,109,190,634.47|
Administrative expenses V.49 742,669,161.21 748,343,631.51
Research and development expenses V.50 957,062,067.79 907,941,337.65
Finandal expenses V.51 92,577,593.90 171,760,411.62
Including: Interest expenses 188,775,142.07 228,486,195.36

Interest income 87,989,301.57 57,585,210.52
Add: Other income V.52 83,567,038.34 79,518,644.90
Investment incoméossexpressed with-") V.53 -75,334,941.16 -396,883,394.79
Including: Income from investment in associates and joint ventures -90,833,476.49 -152,253,735.93
Gains from derecognition of financial assets
measured at amortised cost
Exchange gaiflossexpressed with-")
Net exposure hedging benefitsss expressed with'")
Gairs fromchange in fair valufloss expressed with™) V.54 4,420,275.05 29,340,000.00
Loss on impairment of crediioss expressed with") V.55 -34,280,115.19 -29,907,564.58
Loss on impairment of tess expressed with") V.56 -37,952,811.58 -9,448,114.80
Gains from disposal of asgébss expressed with™) V.57 24,271.66 19,900,661.89
Il. Operating profit(loss expressed with") 2,623,138,697.42 2,144,602,438.70
Add: Nonoperating income V.58 14,130,594.23 63,653,152.61
Less: Noroperating expenses V.59 25,487,685.30 62,103,610.25
IV. Total profit before tax fotal loss expressed with") 2,611,781,606.35| 2,146,151,981.06
Less: Income tarxpense V.60 367,094,359.34 365,733,333.63

V. Net profit(net loss expressed witH')

2,244,687,247.01]

1,780,418,647.43

() Classified by continuity of operations

1.Net profit from continuing operatior{set loss expressed witH""

2,244,687,247.01]

1,780,418,647.43

2.Net profit from discontinued operatio(iset loss expressed witH')}

(I1) Classified by ownership

1.Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Comp@®y loss expressed with'y

2,202,809,390.54

1,719,324,578.02

2.Net profit attributable to nenontrolling interestgnet loss expressed witH')

41,877,856.47

61,094,069.41

VI. Net other comprehensive income after tax

-403,722,885.20

169,088,418.98

Net other comprehensive income after tax attributab#héweholdersf the Company

-386,236,335.41

160,971,791.96

(1) Other comprehensive income that may not be subsequently reclassified to profit and Ig

-438,712,349.53

188,125,333.50

1.Change iremeasurement of defined benefit plans

2.Share of other comprehensive income accounted for using equity method that will not b)|

reclassified to profit or loss

503,001.06

3.Change in fair value of investments in other equity instruments

-439,215,350.59

188,125,333.50

4.Changes in fair value of other equity instrument investments

(I1) Other comprehensive income that will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

52,476,014.12

-27,153,541.54

1.Share of other comprehensive incoaweounted for using equity method that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

-148,238.03

-1,940.44

2.Change in fair value of other debt investments

3.Amount of financial assets reclassified into other comprehensive income

4.Provision for creditmpairment of other debt investments

5.Cash flow hedging reserve

6.Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign currency financial statements

52,624,252.15

-27,151,601.10

7.0thers

Net other comprehensive income attributablado-controlling interests after tax

-17,486,549.79

8,116,627.02

VII.Total comprehensive income

1,840,964,361.81]

1,949,507,066.41]

Total comprehensive income attributableskareholdersf the Company

1,816,573,055.13

1,880,296,369.98

Total comprehensive income attributable to remmtrolling interests

24,391,306.68

69,210,696.43

VIII. Earnings per share:

() Basic earnings per shaf®MB/sharg

1.2223

0.9596

(I1) Diluted earnings per sha(BMB/sharg

1.2124

0.9510

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Company's Income Statement

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated

Item Note 2022 2021
|. Operatingevenue XV.6 1,518,250,388.99 1,211,444,098.16
Less: Operating cost XV.6 497,421,331.93 433,464,850.28|
Taxes and surcharges 21,379,761.87 15,963,789.94
Selling expense 206,164,920.08 237,514,057.42
Administrative expense 217,227,730.67 201,190,241.91
Research and development expsnse 149,048,425.47 193,800,232.29
Finandal expenses 128,760,620.55 195,025,100.48
Including: Interest expense 214,253,359.06 244,090,531.96
Interest income 85,397,159.04 54,576,575.25
Add: Other income 15,552,030.79 9,759,241.16
Investment incoméoss expressed with") XV.7 507,587,665.77 1,811,811,122.25

Including: Income from investment in associates and joint
ventures

-79,890,010.05

-144,846,560.15

Gains from derecognition of financial assetsasured at
amortised cost

Net exposure hedging benefitsss expressed with'")

Gairs from change in fair valuéloss expressed with") 4,770,000.00 29,340,000.00
Loss on impairment of credjloss expressed with") -3,948,234.65 -2,123,514.02
Loss on impairment of assdtess expressed with") -1,505,465.52 -5,910,972.78
Gainfrom disposal of assetfoss expressed with™) 11,921.61

Il. Operating profitLoss expressed with™) 820,715,516.42 1,777,361,702.45
Add: Nonoperating income 498,981.99 94,248.40
Less: Noroperating expenses 1,625,037.56 3,179,086.25

IIl. Total profit before tax lpss expressed with")

819,589,460.85

1,774,276,864.60

Less: Income tax expense

30,829,611.82

-52,079,094.44

IV. Net profit (Net loss expressed with")

788,759,849.03

1,826,355,959.04|

(1) Net profit from continuing operatior{set loss expressed
with "-")

788,759,849.03

1,826,355,959.04

(I1) Net profit from discontinued operatio(iset loss
expressed with-")

V. Net other comprehensive income after tax attributable tq
shareholdersf the company

-66,378,778.64

81,019,693.91

(1) Other comprehensive incomes that will not be reclassifig
into profit or loss

-66,393,902.74

81,021,634.35

1.Change in remeasurement of defined benefit plans

2.Share of other comprehensive incoateounted for using
equity method that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

3.Change in fair value of investments in other
equity instruments

-66,393,902.74

81,021,634.35

4.Change in fair value of credit risks of own credit risks

(1) Other comprehensive income that will be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

15,124.10

-1,940.44

1.Share of other comprehensive income accounted for usir|
equity method that will be reclassified to profit or loss

15,124.10

-1,940.44

2.Change irfair value of other debt investment

3.Amount of financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income

4.Provision of credit impairment of other debt investments

5.Cash flow hedging reserve

6.Exchange differences arising frdranslation of foreign

currency financial statements

7.0thers

VI. Total comprehensive income

722,381,070.39

1,907,375,652.95

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2022

(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated

Item

Note

2022

2021

I. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of services

11,498,883,714.13

11,490,798,837.57]

Net increase in deposit from customer and due from bank andfioiduecial
institutions

Net increase iborrowingsfrom central bank

Net increase iborrowingsfrom other financial institutions

Cash received from premium income from direct insurance contracts

Net cash received from reinsurance business

Net increase in policyholders' deposits and investments contract liabilities

Cash received from interests, handling charges and commissions

Net increase in loans from other banks and other financial institutions

Net increase in repurchabasiness

Net cash received from agency purchases and sales of securities

Cash received from tax refund

169,038,553.17

254,636,208.28

Cash receiedrelating tootheroperating activities

263,686,758.18

170,426,947.19

Subtotal of cash inflowsrom operating activities

11,931,609,025.48

11,915,861,993.04

Cash paid for goods and services

3,963,940,294.76|

3,709,334,148.82

Net increase in loans and advances to customers

Net increase in central bank and interbank deposits

Cash paid foclaims of direct insurance contracts

Net increase in lending funds

Cash paid for interests, handling charges and commissions

Cash paid for the policy dividends

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

2,048,842,320.61

1,841,263,775.09

Payments of taxeand surcharges

1,131,995,185.10]

979,847,523.70

Cash pa relating tootheoperating activities

1,996,121,917.99

2,323,424,693.72

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

9,140,899,718.46|

8,853,870,141.33

Net cash flowsfrom operating activities

2,790,709,307.02]

3,061,991,851.71]

II. Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash receiedfrom disposal of investments

74,591,199.57

280,258,031.88

Cash recefedfrom investment income

24,562,502.50

533,267,218.26

Netcash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other |
term assets

2,553,222.51

2,085,938.02

Net cash received from the disposal of subsidiaries and other business entiti

152,601.60

Cash received relating to other invegtactivities

106,638,371.02

191,981,098.59

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

208,345,295.60

1,007,744,888.35|

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible assets and oth¢etong
assets

905,215,530.83

984,395,333.19

Cashpaid for investments

723,484,521.01

171,080,114.83

Net increase in pledged loans

Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and other business units

21,426,911.42

453,005,901.62

Cash paid relating to other investing activities

157,547,347.59

259,728,283.53

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

1,807,674,310.85]

1,868,209,633.17|

Net cash flows from investing activities

-1,599,329,015.25

-860,464,744.82

Ill. Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash received from capitebntributions

2,115,818,452.87|

51,584,210.16

Including: Cash received by subsidiaries from receiving investments made b
minority interest

582,821,869.41

51,584,210.16

Cash recefedfrom borrowings

1,828,000,000.00]

3,745,333,033.33

Cash receivecelating to other financing activities

262,979,778.11

619,740,000.00

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities

4,206,798,230.98

4,416,657,243.49

Cash repayment of borrowings

2,515,370,360.00]

4,258,985,903.55|

Cash payments for distributiarf dividends profits or interest expenses

642,484,722.41

636,041,211.20

Including: Dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries to-nontrolling interests

6,837,837.84

48,998,909.59

Cash payments for other financing activities

636,194,538.06

419,036,019.36

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities

3,794,049,620.47|

5,314,063,134.11]]

Net cash flows from financing activities

412,748,610.51

-897,405,890.62

IV. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents

21,125,242.47

-11,314,831.22

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,625,254,144.75

1,292,806,385.05)

Add: Beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents

3,684,043,645.03

2,391,237,259.98)

VI. Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents

5,309,297,789.78

3,684,043,645.03

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Company's Statementof Cash Flows
2022
(Al amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated

Item

Note

2022

2021

I. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received frorsale of goods or rendering of services

1,798,438,630.91

1,285,482,388.63

Cash received from tax refund

757,793.03

246,653.35

Cash receiedrelating tootheroperating activities

69,610,996.85

52,444,171.7§

Subtotal of cash inflows from operatiragtivities

1,868,807,420.79

1,338,173,213.74

Cash paid for goods and services

275,215,879.95

258,958,674.15

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

518,223,146.99

496,027,593.28

Payments of taxesurcharges

197,004,139.03

76,128,368.68

Cash pa relating tootheoperating activities

333,719,239.73

296,030,414.11

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

1,324,162,405.64

1,127,145,050.22

Net cash flows from operating activities

544,645,015.10

211,028,163.52

Il. Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments

10,451,867.42

227,457,709.68

Cash received from returns on investments

87,099,853.08

1,526,495,610.42

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangibl
assets and othtong-term assets

38,381.61

8,190,545.40

Net cash received from the disposal of subsidiaries and 0|
business entities

276,815,056.74

584,200,000.00

Cash receiedrelating to other investing activities

47,459,501.39

66,915,493.17

Subtotal of cashinflows from investing activities

421,864,660.24

2,413,259,358.67

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets and d
long-term assets

55,784,943.19

81,666,857.93

Cash paid to acquire investments

232,611,914.0Q

274,936,871.79

Net cash paidor acquisition of subsidiaries and other
business units

297,023,363.98

1,061,635,658.99

Cash paid relating to other investing activities

92,800,000.00

140,000,000.00

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

678,220,221.17

1,558,239,388.7(

Net cash flows from investing activities

-256,355,560.93

855,019,969.97

11l. Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash received from capital contributions

1,532,996,583.46

Cash received from borrowings

1,544,000,000.0(

3,395,959,700.0(

Cash received relating to other financing activities

1,162,505,236.24

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities

4,239,501,819.7(

3,395,959,700.0(

Cash repayment of borrowings

2,205,250,000.0(

3,432,575,903.54

Cashpayments for distribution of dividends profits or
interest expenses

626,500,099.81

578,728,101.16

Cash payments for other financing activities

248,144,533.54

122,018,435.54

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities

3,079,894,633.37

4,133,322,440.25

Net cash flows from financing activities

1,159,607,186.33

-737,362,740.25

IV. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash and

cash equivalents 2,367,969.41 -2,601,051.82
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,450,264,609.91 326,084,341.42
Add: Beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents 1,001,034,621.87 674,950,280.41

VI. Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents

2,451,299,231.74

1,001,034,621.83

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong

Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Ownergquity
2022
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise statepl

2022
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Compan
Other equity instruments Provisio
Item Prefer Less: Other . . Minority .
Share capital ence Perpe Capital reserve Treasury comprehensi Special Surplus n for Reta_lned Subtotal interests Total equity
tual Others : reserve reserve general earnings
share shares ve income .
s bonds risks

1. Ending balance of | 1,804,587,310.0 214,766,365.30| 983,705,934.14 364,191,936.| 128,902,935. 585,170,176. 8,120,920,265.3| 11,473,861,050. 799,675,522.65 12,273,536,573.
last year 0 22 45 55 8 60 25
Add: Changes in
accounting policies
Correction of
previous errors
Business
combination under
common control
Others
II. Beginning balance| 1,804,587,310.0 214,766,365.30| 983,705,934.14 364,191,936.| 128,902,935. 585,170,176. 8,120,920,265.3| 11,473,861,050. 799,675,522.65 12,273,536,573.
of the year 0 22 45 55 8 60 25
11l. Increase/decrease .
for the year 2,259,373,259.1 - 78,875,984.9 1,469,378,533.1| 3,672,341,710.7| 4,096,946,690.9
(Decrease expressed 76,022,381.00 -12,812.22 7 8,371,497.85 219,667,1135. 0 6 o 424,604,980.24 2
with "-")
() Total ’ 2,202,809,390.5| 1,816,573,055.1 1,840,964,361.8
comprehensive 386,236,335. T 4 e 3' 24,391,306.68| T 1
income 41
(I1) Capital paid in ;
and reduced by 76,022,381.00 -12,812.22 2,170,699,155.7 2,255,080,222.4 405,113,673.56 2,660,193,895.9

8 | 8,371,497.85 1 7
shareholders
l.Qrdlnary shares 88,421,980.00 1,427,519,194.1] 1,515,941,174.1] 1,515,941,174.1]
paid by shareholders 0 0 0
2.Capital paid by
holders of other 3,182.00 -12,812.22 95,579.92 85,949.70 85,949.70
equity instruments
3.Amount of share
based payments 80,945,128.77 80,945,128.77|  2,036,248.35| 82,981,377.12
recognized in
owners' equity

- 1,061,185,395.0

4.0Others -12,402,781.00 662,139,252.99 8.371,497.85 658,107,969.84| 403,077,425.21 5
(I.") .F’“°f" 78,875,984.9 -566,861,655.13| -487,985,670.23 -4,900,000.00( -492,885,670.23
distribution 0
1.Transfer to surplus 78,875,984.9 -78,875,984.90
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2022
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Compan

Other equity instruments
Item Prefer Less: Other

Provisio
Share capital ence iﬁ;’?e Others Capital reserve Treasury comprehensi Special Surplus n for Retained

B reserve reserve general earnings
share shares ve income .
s bonds risks

Minority

Subtotal interests Total equity

reserve 0

2.Transfer to
provision for general
risks

3.Distribution to
owners (or -487,985,670.23| -487,985,670.23 -4,900,000.00( -492,885,670.23
shareholders)

4.0thers

(IV) Transfer within 166,569,202.

owners' equity 25 -166,569,202.25

1.Capitalization of
capital reserve
(or share capital)

2.Capitalization of
surplus reserve
(or share capital)

3.Loss offset by
surplusreserve

4.Transfer to retained
earnings arising from
change in defined
benefit plans

5.Transfer from other
comprehensive 166,569,202.
income to retained 25

earnings

-166,569,202.25

6.0thers

(V) Special reserve

1.Transfer in the year|

2.Utilisation in the
year

(V1) Others 88,674,103.39 88,674,103.39 88,674,103.39

IV. Ending balance 1,880,609,691.0| 3,243,079,193.3| 355,820,438.
of the year 0 1 37

664,046,161. 9,590,298,798.5| 15,146,202,761.| 1,224,280,502.8| 16,370,483,264.

90,764,197.7 45 2 30 9 19

1

214,753,553.08

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owner&quity (Continued)
2022
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise statepl

2021
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Compan
Other equity instruments Provisio
Item Prefer Less: Other . . Minority .
Share capital ence Perpe Capital reserve Treasury comprehensi Special Surplus n for Reta_lned Subtotal interests Total equity
share tual Others shares ve income reserve reserve ggneral earnings
s bonds risks
I. Ending balance of | 1,804,581,117.0 959,178,574.08 254,282,089.| 37,457,150.3 402,534,580. 6,923,321,919.5| 9,872,791,251.6 664,635,196.86 10,537,426,448.
last year 0 95 0 65 3 1 47
Add: Changes in
accounting policies
Correction of
previous errors
Business
combination under
common control
Others
1l. Beginning balance| 1,804,581,117.0 959,178,574.08 254,282,089.| 37,457,150.3 402,534,580. 6,923,321,919.5| 9,872,791,251.6 664,635,196.86 10,537,426,448.
of the year 0 95 0 65 3 1 47
11l. Increase/decrease
for the year 6.193.00 214,766,365.30|  24,527,360.06 109,909,846.| 91,445,785.1 182,635,595. 1,197,598,345.8| 1,601,069,798.9 135,040,325.79 1,736,110,124.7|
(Decrease expressed| 27 5 90 5 9 8
with "-")
() Total 160,971,791 1,719,324,578.0| 1,880,296,369.9| 1,949,507,066.4
F;omprehensive T 96. o 2' e 8l 69,210,696.43| T T 1
income
(I1) Capital paid in 109.909.846
and reduced by 6,193.00 214,766,365.30 -31,521,783.42 ’ ! 27' 73,340,928.61| 114,828,538.95| 188,169,467.56
shareholders
1.Ordinary shares 51,584,210.16|  51,584,210.16
paid by shareholders
2.Capital paid by
holders of other 6,193.00 214,790,321.83 175,754.15 214,972,268.98 214,972,268.98
equity instruments
3.Amount of share
based payments 43,377,811.14 43,377,811.14|  1,081,340.12|  44,459,151.26
recognized in
owners' equity
4.Others -23,956.53 -75,075,348.71 109’909’8;76' -185,009,151.51 62,162,988.67| -122,846,162.84
() Profit 182,635,595, -591,252,238.98 -408,616,643.08| -48,998,909.59| -457,615,552.67
distribution 90
1.Transfer to surplus 182,635,595. -182,635,595.90
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2021
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Compan

Other equity instruments
Item Prefer Less: Other

Provisio
Share capital ence Perpe Capital reserve Treasury comprehensi Special Surplus n for Retained
tual Others

B reserve reserve general earnings
share shares ve income .
s bonds risks

Minority

Subtotal interests Total equity

reserve 90

2.Transfer to
provision for general
risks

3.Distribution to
owners(or -408,616,643.08| -408,616,643.08| -48,998,909.59| -457,615,552.67
shareholders)

4.0thers

69,526,006.8 69,526,006.81
1

(IV) Transfer within
owners' equity

1.Capitalization of
capital reserve
(or share capital)

2.Capitalization of
surplus reserve
(or share capital)

3.Loss offset by
surplus reserve

4.Transfer to retained
earnings arising from
change in defined
benefit plans

5.Transfer from other
comprehensive
income to retained
earnings

69,526,006.8 69,526,006.81
1

6.0thers

(V) Special reserve

1.Transfer in the year]

2.Utilisation in the
year

(V1) Others 56,049,143.48 56,049,143.48 56,049,143.48

IV. Ending balance 1,804,587,310.0 214,766,365.30| 983,705,934.14 364,191,936.| 128,902,935. 585,170,176. 8,120,920,265.3| 11,473,861,050. 799,675,522.65 12,273,536,573.
of the year 0 22 45 55 8 60 25

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Company's Statement of Changes in Ownetr&quity (Continued)
2022
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise statepl

2022
ltem Other equity instruments Other
Share capital Preference Perpetual oth Capital reserve Less: Treasurghares | comprehensive Special reserve Surplus reserve Retained earnings Total equity
ers .
shares bonds income
:‘ Ending balance of 1,804,587,310.00 214,766,365.30|  2,561,836,944.62 364,191,936.22|  65,171,925.73 709,594,539.06 3,931,015,798.72|  8,922,780,947.21
ast year
Add: Changes in
accounting policies
Correction of previous
errors
Others
"% ieg'””'”g balance | g0, 587,310.00 214,766,365.30|  2,561,836,944.62 364,191,936.22|  65,171,925.73 709,594,539.06 3,931,015,798.72|  8,922,780,947.21
of the year
Increase/decrease for
the year (Decrease 76,022,381.00 12,812.22| 1,325,886,547.49) -8,371,497.85| -68,995,982.07 78,875,984.90 224,515,397.33  1,644,663,014.28
expressed with-")
()Total

-66,378,778.64 788,759,849.03 722,381,070.39
comprehensive income

(I Capital paid in and
reduced by 76,022,381.00 -12,812.22 1,237,941,098.33] -8,371,497.85 1,322,322,164.96

shareholders

1.Ordinaryshares paid

88,421,980.00 1,427,519,194.10 1,515,941,174.10
by shareholders
2.Capital paid by
holders of other equity 3,182.00 -12,812.22 95,579.92 85,949.70
instruments
3.Amount of share
based payments 52,205,633.26 52,205,633.26
recognized in owners'
equity
4.,0Others -12,402,781.00 -241,879,308.95 -8,371,497.85 -245,910,592.10
(IIProfit distribution 78,875,984.90 -566,861,655.13 -487,985,670.23
1.Transfer to surplus 78,875,984.90 -78,875,984.90

reserve
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2022
Other equity instruments Other

Item
Share capital Preference Perpetual oth Capital reserve Less: Treasurghares | comprehensive Special reserve Surplus reserve Retained earnings Total equity

thers .
shares bonds income

2.Distribution to
owners (or -487,985,670.23 -487,985,670.23
shareholders)

3.0thers

(IV)Transfer within

-2,617,203.43 2,617,203.43
owners' equity

1.Capitalization of
capital reserve (or
share capital)

2.Capitalization of
surplus reserve
(or share capital)

3.Loss offset by
surplus reserve

4.Transfer to retained
earnings arising from
change in defined
benefit plans

5.Transfer from other
comprehensive incomg -2,617,203.43 2,617,203.43
to retained earnings

6.0thers

(V)Special reserve

1.Transfer in the year

2.Utilisation in the
year

(VI)Others 87,945,449.16 87,945,449.16

1IV. Ending balance of

h 1,880,609,691.00| 214,753,553.08| 3,887,723,492.11 355,820,438.37 -3,824,056.34 788,470,523.96 4,155,531,196.05 10,567,443,961.49
theyear

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd
Company's Statement of Changes in Ownetr&quity (Continued)
2022
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise statepl

2021
tem Other equity instruments Other
Share capital Preference | Perpetual Others Capital reserve Less: Treasury share] comprehensive Special reserve Surplus reserve Retained earnings Total equity
shares bonds income

I. Ending balance of
last year 1,804,581,117.00| 2,486,335,584.16| 254,282,089.95 526,958,943.16 2,680,064,310.48  7,243,657,864.85
Add: Changes in
accounting policies
Correction of previous
errors
Others
11. Beginning balance
of the year 1,804,581,117.00| 2,486,335,584.16| 254,282,089.95 526,958,943.16 2,680,064,310.48  7,243,657,864.85
ll. Increase/decrease
for the year (Decrease 6,193.00 214,766,365.30 75,501,360.46 109,909,846.27|  65,171,925.73 182,635,595.90 1,250,951,488.24f  1,679,123,082.36|

expressed with-")

() Total comprehensive

) 81,021,634.35 1,826,355,959.04  1,907,377,593.39
Income

(I1) Capital paid in and
reduced by 6,193.00 214,766,365.30 19,452,216.98 109,909,846.27 124,314,929.01
shareholders

1.Ordinary shares paid
by shareholders

2.Capital paid by
holders of other equity 6,193.00 214,790,321.83 175,754.15 214,972,268.98
instruments

3.Amount of share
based payments

) 19,276,462.83 19,276,462.83
recognizedn owners'
equity
4.Others -23,956.53 109,909,846.27 -109,933,802.80
(11 Profit distribution 182,635,595.90 -591,252,238.98 -408,616,643.08
1.Transfer to surplus
182,635,595.90 -182,635,595.90

reserve
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2021
Other equity instruments Other

Item
Share capital Preference | Perpetual oth Capital reserve | Less: Treasury sharej comprehensive Special reserve | Surplus reserve|  Retained earnings Total equity

ers )
shares bonds income

2.Distribution to

owners (or -408,616,643.08 -408,616,643.08
shareholders)

3.0thers

(IV) Transfer within

. -15,847,768.18 15,847,768.18
owners' equity

1.Capitalization of
capital reserve
(or share capital)

2.Capitalization of
surplus reserve
(or share capital)

3.Loss offset by surplus|
reserve

4.Transfer to retained
earnings arising from
change in defined
benefit plans

5.Transfer from other

comprehensive income -15,847,768.18 15,847,768.18
to retained earnings

6.0thers

(V) Special reserve

1.Transfer in the year

2.Utilisation in the year

(VI) Others 56,049,143.48 -1,940.44 56,047,203.04

IV. Endingbalance of

the year 1,804,587,310.00| 214,766,365.30[ 2,561,836,944.62 364,191,936.22 65,171,925.73 709,594,539.06 3,931,015,798.72]  8,922,780,947.21]

Legal representative: Pu Zhongjie Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yong Accounting Manager: Li Yun
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Lepu Medical Technology(Beijing) Co., Ltd

Notes to the FinancialStatements
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise statejl

Basic Information of the Company
(1) General

Lepu Medical TechnologyBeijing) Co., Ltd (the "Company), formerly known as
Beijing Lepu Medical Instrumen€o., Ltd, was establishedn 11 June 199 with the
approval fromBeijing Municipal Administrative Bureau for Industry and Commerce. The
registered share capital of the Company was RMB12.60 mtlienwith Luoyang Ship
Material Research Institute contributing the capital in cadRMB8.82 milion and WP
Medical Technologiesinc (hereinafter referred to as the " US WRbntributing the
capital in technology oRMB3.78 million. The aforementioned paid capital was
verified by Beijing Yanping CPA Co., Ltd. who issued the verification repamnbered
Yankuakeyanzi(2000 No. 018.

As at31 DecembeR022, the Company has cumulatively issued 1,880,609,691.00
shares with a registered share capital of RMB1,804,581,117, as of the approval date of
this report, the change of industrial and commereigistration is in progress.

Social credit code: 911100007000084768

Registered address: No. 37 Chaogian Road, Changping DB#ijihg

Legal representative: MPu Zhongjie (6 )

Scope of business: Producti@md sales of medical equipment and accessori
Technical development of medical instruments and accessories; Provide technical
consulting services for seffroduced products; Import and export of the above products;
Technology import and export; Commission agent (excluding auction, commodities
involving quota license management and special regulation management shall be handled
according to relevant state regulations). (Market subjects independently choose business
projects and carry out business activities according to law; For projects subject to
approval according to law, business activities shall be carried out according to the
approved contents after approval by relevant departments; Shall not engage in the
business activities of the projects prohibited or restricted by the industrial poficles o
State and this municipality)

The financial statements have been approved by the board of Directors of the

Company on 23pril 2023.
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(2) Scope of the consolidated financial statements
As at 31 December 2022, par tsewndevalr s

subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Lepu Qianshi Digital Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Lepu Medical Equipment(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Beijing Ruixiang Taikang Technology Co., Ltd.

Beijing Tiandi Hexie Technology Co., Ltd.

Lepu Medical Electronics Technology Co., Ltd.

Lepu Scientech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd

Ningbo Bingkun Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

Beijing Lepu Medical Technology Co., Ltd.(used name: Beijing Lepu Medical Technology Co.,

Lepu Medical(Europe) Codperatief U.A.

Beijing Star GK Medical Device Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Sonolepu Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Lepu Intelligent Medical Equipment Co., Ltd.

Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Zhejiang Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Beijing Haihetian Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Beijing Lepucare Technology Co., Ltd.

Beijing Lejian Medical Investment Co., Ltd.

Beijing JWJ Science & Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Anhui High Tech Cardiovascular Hospital Management Co., Ltd.

Beijing Guoyihui Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd.

Beijing Lepu Growth Investment Management Co., Ltd.

Lepu Medical (Shenzhen) International Development Center Co., Ltd.

Lepu (Shenzhen) Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

Qingdao Minyi Investment Centérimited Partnership)

Beijing Lepu Tongxin Technology Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Purwell Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Yuhengjia Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

Xiangcheng Lepu Hospital Management Co., Ltd.

Liaoning Bo'ao Bigpharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Lepu CloudMed Co., Ltd(used name: Shanghai Yocaly Health Management Co. Ltd)

Beijing Lepu Precision Medical Technology Co., Ltd.(used name:Beijing Weikangtongda M
Technology Co., Ltd.)

Lepu International Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
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Name of subsidiary

LepuRuikang (Shanghai) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd

Lepu Guanzhi Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

LepuYoukang (Beijing) Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.

Yinchuan Lepu Internet Hospital Co., Ltd.

Shanxi Xingtai Biotechnology Co., Ltd

Sichuan Xingtaipuld/ledical Technology Co., Ltd.

Aonuo (Qingdao) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Suzhou Bonsmile Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

Tibet Tiandome Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Beijing Huaco Healthcare Technologies Co., Ltd.

Lepu (Beijing) Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

Lepu (Shenzhen) Surgical Medical Instrument Co., Ltd.

Beijing Ledongpukang Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

LepuRuikang (Beijing) Pension Service Management Co., LTD

LepuJiantang Pharmaceutical (Chongqin) Qdd.

. Basis of Preparation for the Financial Statements

(1) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance wittActminting
Standards for Business EnterprisésBasic Standardsand other various accounting
standards, Application Guideline of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises,
Interpretation of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and other relevant
regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance (heafter referred to as the "Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises”), as welNas 15 of Regulations on Information
Disclosures of Companies that Issue Public Offering Sha@@sneral Rules of Preparing

Financial Reportsssued by China Securiti@egulatory Commission (CSRC)

(2) Going concern
As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any material uncertain eventuality

t hat may prejudice the Companyds ability

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estirates

(1) Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business
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Enterprises
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 are in
compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterpissegd by the
Ministry of Finance, and truly and completely present the consolidated and cdsnpany
financial position of the Company as3tt Decembef022, and of the consolidated and

companss financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

(2) Accounting period
The accounting periocof the Company is from 1 January to 31 December of each

calendar year.

(3) Operating cycle

The Companys operating cycle is 12 months.

(4) Reporting currency
The Companys reporting currency is RenminBRMB").

(5) Accounting treatment for business combinations under common control and

business combinations not under common control

For business combination under common control: The assets and liafiiitiesling the

goodwill that generated from the ultimate contrddlexrcquisition of theombined party

that the combining party obtains in a business combination shall be measured at their

respective carrying amounts as recorded by the combined party in the consolidated

financial statements of the ultimate controller on the combining ddte. difference

between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the carrying amount of

consideration paid for the combinatiofm total par value of issued shgreshall be

adjusted to capital stock premium in the capital reserve. If the batdreagpital stock

premium is insufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained earnings.

For business combination that are not under common control: The cost of the combination

is the fair value of assets paid, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equititiee issued

by the acquirer to obtain control over the acquiree at the date of purchase. Goodwill is

recognized by the difference between the cost of business combination over the fair value

of net identifiable assets acquired. In case the cost aidsscombination is smaller than

the fair value of net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the negative balance shall be
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counted into current profit and loss. For identifiable net assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree obtained frobusiness combination that meet the recognition
conditions shall be measured at fair value on the acquisition date.

The relevant direct costs of the combination shall be recorded into the current profit or
loss when incurred. The transaction costs ofetipgity securities or debt securities issued
for business combination shall be included in the initially confirmed amount of the equity

securities or debt securities.

(6) Methods of preparation of consolidated financial statements

1a Consolidation scope
The scopeof consolidation in the consolidated financial statements is determined
on a control basis, including tl@mpany and all subsidiaries. Control means that
the company has the power over the invested entity, can obtain variable returns
from its participatbn in relevant activities of the invested entity, and is capable of
affecting the amount of returns by using the power over the invested entity.

23 Consolidation procedure
The Company regards the entire enterprise group as an accounting entity and
prepares aasolidated financial statements in accordance with unified accounting
policies to reflect the overall financial status, operating results and cash flow. The
impact of internal transactions between @@mpany and its subsidiaries as well
between subsidias shall be offset. If the relevant assets are impaired in internal
transaction, the loss shall be recognized in full. If the accounting policies and
accounting periods adopted by the subsidiaries are different from those of the
Company, some necessary @tinents shall be made by following the accounting
policies and accounting periods of t@empany when preparing the consolidated
financial statements.
The owne's equity of the subsidiary, the share of the current net profit or loss and
current compreheng income attributable to the minority shareholder shall be
separately presented under the ovenequity of the consolidated balance sheet, the
net profit and the total comprehensive income of the consolidated income
statement. If the current loss assdnby the minority shareholders of a subsidiary
exceeds the share in the opening ovgnequity of the subsidiary, the balance shall
be offset against the minority shareholtegiity.

(1) Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses
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During the reporting peod, if a subsidiary or businesses are acquired due to the
business combination under the common control, the opening balance of the
operating results and cash flow for the period of the combination shall be included
in the consolidated financial statemenslditionally, the opening balance of the
consolidated financial statements and the relative items in the comparative
statements shall be adjusted, as if the reporting entity of the combination always
exists since the ultimate controller begins the cdntro
For control over the invested entity under the common control due to additional
investment or the like, the equity investment held prior to obtaining the control
over the combined party, the profits or losses, other comprehensive income and
other changgin the net assets recognized for the period from the acquisition date
or the date when the combining party and the combined party are under the same
control, whichever is later, to the combining date, shall be offset against the
opening retained earnings current profit or loss in the period of the comparative
statements respectively.
During the reporting period, if a subsidiary or businesses are acquired due to the
business combinations not under common control, they shall be included in the
consolidatd financial statements on the basis of the fair value of all identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities determined from the acquisition date.
For control over the invested entity not under the common control due to additional
investment o the like, the equity of the acquiree held before the acquisition date
will be remeasured at the fair value on the acquisition date, and the difference
between the fair value and its book value shall be included in the current
investment income. Wheredbge equity of the acquiree held before the acquisition
date involving other comprehensive income that can be reclassified into profit or
loss afterwards, and other changes in owreguity under the equity method shall
be converted into the current inve@sint income of the period including the
acquisition date.

(2) Disposal of subsidiaries

W General approach
When lose the control over the invested party for the disposal of part of equity
investmentsor other reasons, it shall remeasure the remaining equity at the fair
value on the date that the control power is lost. The difference between the sum of

the consideration derived from the equity disposal and the fair value of the
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remaining equity shares, érthe sum of the net asset share entitled from the
acquisition date or combining date continually calculated by the original
shareholding ratio in subsidiaries and goodwill, shall be included in the investment
income of the current period when the confroWer is lost. Other comprehensive
income related to the original equity investment in the subsidiaries that can be
reclassified into profit and loss afterwards, and other changes in 'sveuglity
under the equity method shall be converted into the dumeestment income
when lose the control.
Y Disposal of subsidiaries by stages
For the disposal of equity investment in subsidiaries through multiple transactions
until lose the power of control, the said transactions shall be accounted as a
package dedf the terms, conditions and economic effects of all transactions for
the disposal of equity investment in subsidiaries satisfy one or more of the
following circumstances:
. These transactions are concluded at the same time or in consideration of
mutual nfluence;
. Only these transactions as a whole can achieve a complete business result.
. One transaction depends on at least one other transaction.
. The singletransaction is not economic, but it will be economic when
considering it together with oth&ransactions.
If each transaction is a package deal, it shall be treated as a transaction for disposal
of subsidiaries and the control over the subsidiaries will be lost; however, before
losing control power, the difference between each disposal pritéhamet asset
share of the subsidiary entitled corresponding to the disposal investment shall be
recognized as other comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements,
and then included in profits and losses of the period that the contrel olest.
If each transaction is not a package deal, it shall be treated as the partial disposal of
equity investment in the subsidiary without loss of control before losing the power
of control; however,it shall follow the general approach to the didpok
subsidiariesn case of loss of control.
(3) Acquisition of minority interests in subsidiaries
The difference between the lotgrm equity investment newly acquired due to the
acquisition of minority interest and the share of net assets of thelismpsintitied

from the acquisition date or combining date continually calculated by the new
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shareholding ratio shall be offset against the share premium under capital reserve
in the consolidated balance sheet. If the capital reserve is insufficienséb i
difference, any excess shall be adjusted against the retained earnings.

(4) Partial disposal of equity investments in subsidiaries without loss of
control
The difference between the disposal price and the share of net assets entitled
correspondingto the disposalof longterm equity investmens continually
calculated from the acquisition date or combining date shall be offset against the
share premium under capital reserve in the consolidated balance sheet. If the
capital reserve is insufficient to offset the difference, any excess shall lsteddju

against the retained earnings.

(7) Recognition criteria for cash and cash equivalents
Cash indicates both cash on hand and the deposit held in bank which are available for
payment at any time. Cash equivalents are referred as investment that heloririexrsh
highly liquid and were readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to

insignificant risk of value change.

(8) Classification of joint arrangement and accounting methods for joint
operation
Joint arrangement includes joint operation gk venture.
A joint venture party shares the related assets and liabilities, which means joint
operation. TheCompany confirms that the following items are related to the share of
interests in joint operation:
(1) The assets held by tigzompany alone, and theintly-held assets by the share of
the Gompany.
(2) The liabilities held by th€ompany alone, and theintly-held liabilities by the
share othe Gmpany.
(3) The revenue from the sales of shares ebgeration output.
(4) The rexenue from the sales according to ratio iroperation output.
(5) The expenditure arose alone and frorroperation according to the share of the
Company.

The ¢ o mp atermny dgsity investimgnts in joint ventures are accounted for under the
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equity metlod, further details are given in NGt@ll) 10.Long ter m equity i nve

in this note

(9) Foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign exchange financial

statements

1. Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translatdo RMB using the spot exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction date.
At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into RMB using the spot exchange rates on the balance sheet date.
Exchange differencesiaing from these translations are recognized in profit or loss
for the current period, except for those attributable to special foreign currency
borrowings that have been taken out for the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets, which are cafiitad according to the principle of borrowing
costs.

2. Translation of foreign currency financial statements
The asset and liability items in the balance sheets are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the balance sheet date. Amongwthes equity itens, the
items other than "undistributed profits" are translated at the spot exchange rates on
the transaction date. The income and expense items in the income statements are
translated at the spot exchange rates of the transaction date.
When disposing of f@ign operations, the difference arising from the translation of
financial statements for the foreign operations shall be transferred from the owner's
equity to profit or loss.

(10) Financial instruments
When theCompany becomes a party in the financial insgotrcontract, a financial asset,
financial liability or equity instruments will be recognized.

1. Classification of the financial instruments
Based on the business model under whichGbmpany manages assets and the
characteristics of contractual cash flosfSfinancial assets, the financial assets are
divided into financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The Company classifies a financiatset that meets any of the following conditions,

as well is not designated to be financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
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assets at amortized cost:

- The business model is in order to collect contractual cash flows.

- Contract cash flow ionly the payment of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The Company classifies a financial asset that meets any of the following
conditions, as well is not designated to be measured at fair value through profit and
loss as financiahssets at fair value through other comprehensive inqoeiat
instrumentk

- The business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets.

- Contract cash flow is only the payment of principald interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The Company can irrevocably designate equity instruments not held for trading as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive inc@ueity
instrument¥ at initial recognition. The designatiois made on the basis of
individual investment, and the relevant investment conforms to the definition of
equity instrument from the perspective of the issuer.

Financial assets other than the above financial assets at amortized cost and
financial assetstdair value through other comprehensive income, Gbenpany
classifies all other financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss. If the accounting mismatch can be eliminated or significantly reduced, at
initial recognition, theCompany can irrevocably designate the financial assets that
should be classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income as financial assets measured at fair value through profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities a& divided into financial liabilities at fair value through profit

and loss, and financial liabilities at amortized cost at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities that meet any of the following conditions camésignated to
financial liabilities at f& value through profit and loss:

1) The designation can eliminate or significantly reduce the accounting
mismatches.

2) Manage and take performance evaluation of a portfolio of financial
liabilities or a portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities aofair value

basis in accordance with the risk management or investment strategy of the
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enterprise as set out in formal written documentation, and report to the key
managers on this basis within the company.

3) The financial liability contains embedded datives that are subject to a
separate spioff.

2. Recognition basis and measure method of financial instruments

(1) Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost include notes receivables and accounts
receivables, other receivables, leegm receivables, and debt investments,etc
which are initially measured at fair value, and the relevant transaction expenses are
included in the initially recognized amount; however, accounts receivable without
major financing components and accountseieable with financing component
less than one year left out by the Company are initially measured at the contract
transaction price.
The interest calculated by the effective interest rate method is included in profit or
loss during the holding period.
The difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of the financial
asset is included in profit or loss upon recovery or disposal.

(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive infoebe
instrumenty
Financial assets afair value through other comprehensive incorfaebt
instrument} include receivables financing, other debt investment, edtich are
initially measured at fair value, and the relevant transaction expenses are included
in the initially recognized amounthe financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Except for the interest calculated by the effective interest rate method,
impairment losses or gains and exchange gains or losses, changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the accumulated gains or losses previously included in other
comprehensive income shall be transferred from other comprehensive income to
profit or loss.

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incequgty
instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive ifcematy
instrument¥ include equity instrument investments ,etc, which are initially

measured at fair value, and the relevant transaction expenses are included in the
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initially recognized amount. Such financial assets subsequently measured at fair
value, and the changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income.
As well the dividends obtained are included in current profits and losses.
Upon derecognition, the accumuldtgains or losses previously included in other
comprehensive income shall be transferred from other comprehensive income to
retained earnings.

(4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss theltrading financial assets,
derivative financial assets and other +womrent financial assets, which are initially
measured at fair value, and the relevant transaction expenses are included in profit
or lose. The financial asset is subsequently measairefdir value, where the
changes in fair value are included in profit or lose.

(5) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include trading financial
liabilities, and derivative fiancial liabilities, et¢ which are initially measured at
fair value, and the relevant transaction expenses are indlugedfit or loss The
financial liability is subsequently measured at fair value, where the changes in fair
value are includeth prdfit or loss
Upon derecognition, the difference between its book value and the paid
consideration is includeid profit or loss

(6) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortized cost include skerm loans, notes payable,
accoums payable, other payable, leteym loans, bonds payable, and lgagm
accounts payable, which are initially measured at fair value, and the relevant
transaction expenses are included in the initially recognized amount.
The interest calculated by tleéfective interest method is included in profit or loss
during the holding period.
Upon derecognition, the difference between the paid consideration and the book
value of the financial liability isncludedin profit or loss

3a Derecognition and transfer offinancial assets
The Company derecogrés financial assets if any of the following conditions is
met:

- the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset expires,

- the financial asset has been transferred and almost all risks and rewards
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relatingto the financial asset have been transferred to the transferee,

- the financial asset has been transferred to the transferee, aGdntipany
has not transferred or retained substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
financial asset, nor does itaintain the control over the financial asset.

When a financial asset is transferred, if almost all risks and rewards relating to the
financial asset are retained, the recognition of the financial asset will not be
terminated.

When judging whether the trdes of financial assets meets the above conditions
for derecognition of financial assets, the company adopts the principle of substance
over form.

The Company divides the transfer of financial assets into overall transfer and
partial transfer. In case the overall transfer of the financial asset meets the criteria
for derecognition, the difference between the following two items will be included
in profit or loss

(1) The book value of transferred financial assets.

(2) the sum of the consideration received as a result of the transfer and the
accumulated changes in fair value which were previously directly included in
ownefs equity(the financial asset inled in transfer is the financial asset at fair
value through other comprehensive income(debt instruments)

In case where the transfer of only part of the financial asset meets the criteria for
derecognition, the carrying amount of financial asset beangterred is allocated
between the portions to be derecognized and the portion that continued to be
recognized according to their relative fair value. The difference between the
following two items will be includeih profit or loss

(1) The book value athederecognized pafinancial assets;

(2) The sum of the consideration of the derecognized part and the amount
corresponding to the derecognized part of the accumulated changes in fair value
which were previously included in owreequity(the financial assahvolved in
transfer is the financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income(debt instruments)

If the transfer of a financial asset does not meet the conditions for derecognition,
the financial asset shall continue to be recognized, tancbnsideration shall be
recognized as a financial liability.

4a Derecognition of financial liabilities
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A financial liability or a part of financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled in whatepart.
An agreement between the Group and a lender to replace the original financial
liability with a new financial liability with substantially different terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recogniton of a new financial liability.
As for substantive changes made to all or part of the contract terms of the existing
financial liabilities, the existing financial liabilities or part of them will be
derecognized. And financial liabilities after term rémiswill be recognized as a
new financial liability.
When financial liabilities are derecognized in whole or in part, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paidincluding noncash assetsransferred out or new financial
liabilities assumedis recognized in profit or loss for the period.
If the Company repurchases partial financial liabilities, the overall book value of
the financial liabilities shall be distributed according to the reddtir value of the
continuously recognized part and the derecognized part on the repurchase date.The
difference between the book value allocated to the derecognized part and the
consideration paidincluding noncash assets transferred out or new findncia
liabilities assumedshall be included in profit or loss for the period.

52 Method for determination of fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities
For financial instruments with an active market, their fair value shall be determined
by the quotation in the active market. In case there is no active market, the fair
value shall be calculated by valuation technology. During the valuation, the
Company adpts the valuation technology which is the most appropriate at that
time and with sufficient available data and other information, selects the input
value consistent with the characteristics of asset or liability considered by market
participants in the tevant transaction, and gives priority to the use of relevant
observable input values. Unobservable input values are used only when the
relevant observable input values cannot be obtained or it is impractical to obtain
them.

6a Test method and accounting metbd for impairment of financial

assets
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The Company estimates expected credit loss for financial assets at amortized cost,
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments), and financial guarantee contract, etiividually or in combination.

The Company considers reasonable and reliable information about past events,
current situation and forecast of future economic situation, taking the weight risk
of default, calculating the probability weighted amount of tres@nt value of the
difference between the cash flow receivable from the contract and the cash flow
expected to be received and recognizing the expected credit loss.

If the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition, theCompany shall measure the provision for loss based on the
expected credit loss of the instrument over the entire duration. If the credit risk of
financial instruments has not increased significantly since the initial recognition,
the Company shall measure the provision for loss based on the expected credit loss
in the next 12 months. The increase or reversal amount of the provision for loss
arising therefrom shall be included in the current profits and losses as impairment
losses or gains.

The Company compares the risk of default of a financial instrument on the balance
sheet date with the risk on the initial recognition date to determine the relative
change of default risk during the expected duration of the financial instrument, so
as toevaluate whether the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased
significantly since the initial recognition. Generally, when it is overdue for more
than 30 days, thEompany considers that the credit risk of the financial instrument
has increask significantly, unless there is conclusive evidence to prove the credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

If the credit risk of a financial instrument is low on the balance sheet date, the
Company considers that the creddkriof the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If there is objective evidence indicating that a financial asset has been impaired, the
company shall make provision for impairment of the financial asset indiyduall

For the receivables and contract assets arising from transactions regulated by the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises NbR&denu@017), whether or

not they contain significant financing components, their loss allowance is always
measuredt the amount of the expected credit losses for the lifetime.

For lease receivables, th€ompany chooses to always measure their loss
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allowance at the amount of the expected credit losses for the lifetime.
If the Company no longer reasonably expects that contractual cash flow of
financial assets can be recovered in whole or in part, the book balance of the

financial assets shall be written down.

(11) Inventories

Classification and cost of inventories
The inventories include raw materials, finished goodd,vaork in progress,etc.
Inventories are initially measured at cost, which includes the cost of purchase,
processing costs and other expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Valuation method of inventory delivaed
When inventories are delivered, the actual cost is determined using the weighted
average method.

Basis for determining the net realizable value of inventories
At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable alue. When its net realizable value is lower than its cost, a provision for
decline in value of inventories shall be made. Net realizable value refers to the
amount of estimated price deducting estimated completion cost, sale expenses and
related sales tas in daily activities.
In the normal production and operation process, the net realizable value of finished
goods, work in process and materials for sale, is determined by estimated price
deducting estimated selling costs and related taxes. For thednyvehimaterials
that need to be processed, its net realizable value is determined by estimated price
deducting estimated completion cost, sale expenses and related sales taxes. For
inventories held for the execution of sales contracts or labor contthetset
realizable value is calculated based on the contract price. If the quantity of
inventories held is more than the quantity ordered in the sales contract, the net
realizable value of excess inventories is calculated based on the general sales price.
After the provision for inventory value decline is made, if the factors affecting the
previous writedown of inventory value have disappeared, resulting in the net
realizable value of the inventory being higher than its carrying value, the provision
for inventory value decline is reversed within the amount originally provided for,

and the reversed amount is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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4. Inventory system
The Company adapts a perpetual inventory system.
5. Amortization method of low-value consumables and packaging materials
(1) Low-value consumables are amortized using thetiome reversal methqd

(2) Packaging materials are amortized using thetione reversal method.

(12) Contract asset

1. Methods and criteria for recognition of contractassets
The Company presents contract assets or contract liabilities in the balance sheet
based on the relationship between the performance obligation Gbthpany and
the payment by the customer. The right to receive consideration for goods
transferred pservices provided by th@ompany to the customéand where that
right is dependent on factors other than the passage Jfisireleown as a contract
asset. Contract assets and contract liabilities under the same contract are presented
on a net basis. EhCompan' unconditionaldepending only on the passage of
time) rights to receive consideration from customers are shown separately as
receivables.

2. Method of expected credit loss of contract assets and accounting treatment
The method of determining exped credit losses on contract assets and the
accounting treatment are detailed in notél J 10. Test method and accounting

method for impairment of financial assets" in this note.

(13) Held for sale
The carrying amount of a namurrent asset or disposal gmis classified as held for sale
if it is recovered principally through sal@écluding exchange of nemonetary assets
with commercial substanteather than through continuing use.
The Company classifies namrrent assets or disposal groups as heldgdt@ when both
of the following conditions are met:
(1) The sale is immediate in its present condition, based on the practice of selling such
assets or disposal groups in similar transactions
(2) It is highly probable that the sale will occur, i.e. the Corygdaas resolved on a plan
of sale and obtained firm purchase commitments, and the sale is expected to be completed
within one year. Where the relevant regulations require the approval of the relevant

authority or regulatory authority of the Company beforsake can take place, and such
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approval has been obtained.

(1) The sale is immediate in its present condition, based on the practice of selling
such assets or disposal groups in similar transagtions

(2) Itis highly probable that the sale will occur, itee Company has resolved on a
plan of sale and obtained firm purchase commitments, and the sale is expected to be
completed within one year. Where the relevant regulations require the approval of the
relevant authority or regulatory authority of the Camyp before a sale can take place,
and such approval has been obtajned
Non-current assets classified as held for sale (excluding financial assets, deferred income
tax assets, assetdsing from employee befits) or disposal groups, the book value of
which is higher than the net amount of the fair value less sales expenses is written down
to such net amount recognized as impairment loss of assets, and included in profit or loss,

while impairment of assets held for sale is also provided.

(14) Long-term equity investments

1. Judgement criteria for common control that have significant influence
Joint control refers to the common control over an arrangement according to
relevant agreements, whose relevant activities can only be decided after the
unanimous consent of the participants sharing control. Wher€dhgany and
other joint venture partejointly control the invested entity and have rights to the
net assets of it, the invested entitjtsjoint venture of the company.
Significant influence means that the enterprise has the power to participate in the
financial and operational decisio$ the invested entity, but cannot control or
jointly control the formulation of these policies with other parties. The invested
entity is an associated enterprise of tbempany, whereat can influence the
invested entity significantly.

2. Determination of initial investment cost

(1) Long-term equity investments acquired through business combinations

For longterm equity investments obtained through business combination under
common control, proportion of carrying value of net assets obtained on the date of
combiation in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controller shall
be accounted as the initial investment cost of the-teng investment.
The difference between the initial investment cost of a-tenm equity investment

and the carryingvalue of the consideration paid is adjusted against the equity
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premium in capital reserve; if the equity premium in capital reserve is not sufficient
for elimination, retained earnings are adjusted. If additional investments exercise
control over an invese under the common control, the difference between the
initial investment cost of the loAgrm equity investment recognized in accordance
with the above principles and the sum of the carrying amount of thetdomg
equity investment before it reachesisolidation plus the carrying amount of the
consideration paid for the further acquisition of shares at the date of consolidation
is adjusted against equity premium, and if the equity premium is not sufficient for
elimination, it is reduced against retadnearnings.

For longterm equity investment acquired through business combination not under
common control, cost of combination on the purchase date will be treated as the
initial investment cost. If the investee not under common control can be controlled
due to additional investment and other reasons, the sum of the book value of the
originally held equity investment plus the new investment cost shall be regarded as
the initial investment cost.

(2) Long-term equity investments acquired by other means
For longterm equity investments acquired by cash payment, the initial cost of
investment is the actual amount of cash paid for the purchase.

For longterm equity investments acquired by issuing equity securities, the initial
cost of investment is the fair valuetbe equity securities issued.
3. Subsequent measurement and recognition method of profit or loss

(1) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the cost method
The compang longterm equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
using the cost metid, unless the investment meets the conditions of holding for
sale. In addition to the cash dividends or profits declared but not yet distributed
included in the price actually paid or consideration when obtaining the investment,
the company recognizes baslividends or profits declared by the investee as
investment income for the period in accordance with the amount to which they are
attributable.

(2) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method
Longterm equity investments in associatesl joint ventures are accounted for
under the equity method. If the initial investment cost of a-teng equity
investment is higher than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of

the investee at the time of investment, the initiekestment cost of the lorgrm
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equity investment is not adjusted. If the initial investment cost is less than the share
of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the investee at the time of
investment, the difference is recognized in profitamsl for the current period and
the cost of the longerm equity investment is adjusted.
The investment income and other comprehensive income are recognized in
accordance with the investeeshare of net profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, respeively, and the carrying value of loagrm equity investments is
adjusted. The carrying value of loteym equity investments is reduced
accordingly to the extent of the investeshare of profits or cash dividends
declared by the investee. For changeghie ownership interest of the investee
other than net profit or loss , other comprehensive income and profit distribution
(hereinafter referred to as "other changes in owmeguity), the carrying value of
the longterm equity investment is adjusteddanecognized as owrigrequity.
The share of net profit or loss of the investee, other comprehensive income and
other changes in owrgrequity is recognized on the basis of the fair value of the
investe&s identifiable assets at the time of acquisition,accordance with the
Companys accounting policies and accounting periods, and after adjusting the net
profit and other comprehensive income of the investee.
The portion of the unrealized gains or losses from internal transactions with
associates and jdirentures that is attributable to the company in proportion to the
shareholding shall be offset, and investment income is recognized on this basis,
except where the assets invested or sold constitute a business. Unrealized internal
transaction losses inged with the investee are recognized in full if they belong to
asset impairment losses.
In recognizing the share of net loss incurred by the associates or joint ventures, not
only the company has the obligation to bear extra losses, but also the carrying
value of longterm equity investments and other lelegm interests that
substantially constitute a net investment in the associates or joint ventures are
written down to zero. If the associates or joint ventures achieve net profit in
subsequent periodd)d company resumes recognition of revenue sharing after the
revenue sharing amount makes up for the unrecognized loss sharing amount.

(3) Disposal of longerm equity investments
On disposal of a lonterm equity investment, the difference between the carrying

value and the consideration actually received is recognized in profit or loss for the
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period.

For partial disposal of lonterm equity investment accounted by equity metfifod,

the remaining equity is still accounted by equity method, other comprehensive
income recorded in previous equity method shall be transferred in proportion on
the same basis as the investabrect disposal of relevant assets or liabilities, and
other tanges in ownér equity shall be transferred into the loss or profit in
proportion.

For loss of joint control or significant influence in the investee due to reasons such
as disposal of part of the equity investment, other comprehensive income
recognizedn the original equity investment which is accounted for using equity
method, upon it will no longer be accounted for under equity method, it shall be
using the same accounting basis as the investee directly disposing related assets or
liabilities. Other bianges in owné&s equity shall be transferred to the current profit
and loss when the equity method is terminated.

For loss of control in the investee due to reasons such as disposal of part of the
equity investment, if remaining shareholding can appiymon control or impose
significant influence to the investee, it shall be accounted for under equity method
when preparing individual financial statements, as well as be treated as accounting
for under equity method since the shareholding is obtained adji4stment. The

other comprehensive income recognized before taking control of the investee shall
be carried forward in portion on the same accounting basis as the investee directly
disposing related assets or liabilities, and other changes in 'cvaaiity under

the equity method shall be carried forward to the current profit and loss in
proportion. If the remaining equity cannot exercise joint control or exert significant
influence on the investee, it shall be recognized as a financial asset, and the
difference between its fair value and book value on the date of loss of control shall
be included in the current profits and losses. Other comprehensive income and
other changes in owrsrequity recognized before obtaining the control of the
investee shalbe carried forward in full.

If the transactions from the stéy-step disposal of equity to the loss of controlling
equity fall under a series of transactions, each transaction is accounted for as a
disposal of subsidiary with control lost. However, tthiéerence between the
consideration for each transaction before losing control and the carrying value of

the longterm equity investments corresponding to the equity disposed of is
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1.

recognized as other comprehensive income and transferred to profis amplas
loss of control. If the transaction do not fall under a series of transactions, the

Company shall separately carry out accounting treatment for each transaction.

(15) Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or
both, which include the leased land use right, the land use right held and ready to be
transferred after appreciation and buildings that have been leasdihauting the
buildings used for leasing after the completion of -setistruction or development
activities and the buildings used for leasing in the future in the process of construction or
development
Subsequent expenditures related to investment propeati included in the cost of
investment properties if it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow and the cost can be measured reliably. Otherwise, the expenditures are charged
to the current profit or loss as incurred.
The Company uses the cost model to measure the existing investment properties. For "the
investment propertiebuildings for rent" on the cost model, the same depreciation policy
as the fixed assets in t@®mpany is adopted, and the land right for rerniiglemented

according to the same amortization policy as intangible assets.

(16) Fixed assets
Recognition and initial measurement of fixed assets
Fixed assets are tangible assets that held for production of goods or provision of
services, leasing to others, for administrative purposes, which have useful life
over one accounting year. Fixed assets are recognized when the following
conditions are met at the same time:
(1) It is probable that the related economic benefits of fixed assets will flow to
the compay;
(2) The costs of fixed assets can be reliably measured.
Fixed assets are initially measured at cfaking into account the impact of
expected disposal expenses
Subsequent expenditures related to fixed assets are included in the cost of the fixed
assets, if it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the fixed assets

will flow and their cost can be measured reliably, and the carrying amount of the
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replaced part is derecognized. Subsequent expenditures other than these are

charged to tl current profit or loss as incurred.

2. Depreciation method

The Company made provision for the fixed assets by using striighimethod,

and determined the depreciation ratio according to the category of fixed assets, the

estimated useful life and estimated rate of salvage value. For fixed assets with

provision for inpairment, the depreciation amount shall be determined in the future

according to the book value after deducting the provision for impairment and the

remaining useful life. If the useful lives of the components of fixed assets are

different or they provideconomic benefits to the enterprise in different ways, the

Company will choose different depreciation rates or depreciation methods for them

and depreciate separately.

The depreciation method, useful life, residual value ratio and annual depreciation

rateof fixed assets are as below:

Depreciation

Residual value

Annual

Type method Useful life (yea ratio (%) depreciation
rate (%)
Buildings and structures Straightline 20-40 5 2.384.75
method
. . Straightline
Machinery and equipment method 6-15 5 6.3315.83
. . Straightline
Transportation equipment method 3-12 5 7.9231.67
Office equipment and others Straightline 2-10 5 9.5047.50
method

Disposal of fixed assets

Fixed assets are derecognized when being disposed of, or expected no economic

benefits will begenerated through use or disposaPaiceeds from the disposal of

fixed assets on sale, transfer, retirement or destruction, net of their carrying amount

and related taxes, are included in profit or loss for the current period.

(17) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined on the basis of actual construction

expenditures, including construction costs, installation costs, borrowing costs capitalized

and other necessary expenses before the construction reaches its interidestateab

Construction in progress is transferred to the fixed assets when it reaches the intended

usable state, and the depreciation shall be accrued from the following month.

(18) Borrowing costs
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1. Principles for recognition of capitalized borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred by the Company that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or production of assets eligible for capitalization are capitalized and
charged to the cost of the relevant assets; other borrowing costs are recognized as
expenses ten incurred and charged to current profit or loss in accordance with the
amounts incurred.
Assets eligible for capitaation are assets such as fixed assets, investment
properties and inventories that require a substantial time period for their aoquisiti
or production activities to reach their intended use or saleable condition.

2. Period of capitalization of borrowing costs
The capitalization period is the period from the point at which capitalization of
borrowing costs commences to the point at whiclitaligation ceases, excluding
the period during which capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended.
Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when both of the following
conditions are met:
(1) Asset expenditures were incurred, which include expenditure éash paid,
noncash assets transfed or interestbearing debts assumed for the acquisition or
production of an asset eligible for capitalization;
(2) Borrowing costs were incurred;
(3) Necessary acquisition or production activities were carried out to briagsat
to reach its intended use or saleable condition.
Borrowing costs cease to be capitalized when the acquisition or production of an

asset eligible for capitalization reaches its intended use or saleable condition.

3. Suspension of capitalization of borowing costs
Borrowing costs are suspended when there is an unusual interruption in the process
of acquisition or production of an asset eligible for capitalization that lasts for more
than three consecutive months; if the interruption is necessary totheangsset
eligible for capitalization to its intended usable or saleable condition, the
borrowing costs continue to be capitalized. Borrowing costs incurred during the
period of interruption are recognized in profit or loss, and the costs continue to be

capitalized until construction of assets or production activities resumed.

4. Calculation of the capitalization rate and capitalized amount of borrowing costs
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1.

2.

Where funds are borrowed under a spegficpose borrowings for the acquisition

or production of amasset eligible for capitalization, the capitalized amount of
borrowing costs is the actual expense incurred on that borrowing for the period less
any bank interest earned from depositing the borrowed funds before being used on
the asset or any investméntome on the temporary investment of those funds.
Where funds are borrowed under gengraipose borrowings for the acquisition or
production of an asset eligible for capitalization, the amount of borrowing costs to
be capitalized for general borrowings é¢alculated by multiplying the weighted
average amount of asset expenditure in excess of the portion of accumulated asset
expenditure over special borrowings by the capitalization rate of the general
borrowings taken up. The capitalization rate shall dleutated and determined
according to the weighted average interest rate of the general borrowing.

Exchange differences on the principal and interest on special borrowings in foreign
currencies during the period of capitalization are capitalized and ettludthe

cost of the assets eligible for capitalization. Except the foreign currency special
borrowings, the exchange differences arising on the principal of and interest on

other foreign currency borrowings are included in profit or loss for the period.

(19) Intangible assets

Valuation method of intangible asset

(1) An intangible asset is initially measured at cost when it is acquired by the
Company
The cost of an externally acquired intangible asset comprises the purchase price,
related taxes and other expenditudirectly attributable to bringing the asset to its
intended use.

(2) Subsequent measurement
The useful life of an intangible asset is analyzed at the time of acquisition.
Tangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over the period in which they
will generate economic benefits for the enterprise. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are not amortized if it is not foreseeable that they will provide

economic benefits to the enterprise.

The estimation of intangible assets with finite usefdives

The useful life and amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives
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are reviewed at the end of each year.

3. The judgment basis of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and procedures

for reviewing their useful lives
The Company identifies intangible assets with indefinite useful lives when it is not
foreseeable that the asset will provileeconomic benefits to the company, or
when the useful life of the asset is uncertain.
Judgments on the basis of indefinite useful ffederived from contractual rights
or other legal rights, but there is no clear useful life under the contract or the law;
(i) the period during which the intangible asset brings economic benefits to the
Company still cannot be judged after taking imtoccount the situation in same
industries or relevant expert arguments, etc.
At the end of each year, a review of the useful lives of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives is conducted, mainly on a botigmbasis, by the relevant
departments usinthe intangible assets, to evaluate whether there are changes in

the basis for determining indefinite useful lives, etc.

4. Specific criteria for classifying the research and development phases
Expenditure on research and development projects withiG@dhgany is divided
into research phase expenditure and development phase expenditure.
Research phase: The stage of original and planned investigation and research
activities to acquire and understand new scientific or technical knowledge, etc.
Development pha&s The stage in which research results or other knowledge is
applied to a plan or design to produce new or substantially improved materials,

devices, products, etc., prior to commercial production or use.

5. Specific conditions for capitalization of developrant stage expenditure
Research stage expenditures are charged to current profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure in the development phase is recognized as an intangible asset if it
meets both of the following conditions, otherwise it is charged to cyprefit or
loss:
(1) It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it can be
used or solpg

(2) There is an intention to complete the intangible asset and use ar sell it
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(3) The manner in which intangible assets generate economic benefits,
including the ability to demonstrate the existence of a market for the product
produced using the intangible asset or for the intangible asset itself and, where the
intangible asset will be used internally, the ability to demonstrate its usefulness

(4) There is suftient support in terms of technology, financial resources and
other resources in order to complete the development of the intangible asset, and
there is capability to use or sell the intangible asset

(5) The expenditure attributable to the development stdgie intangible
asset can be measured reliably
Where it is impossible to distinguish between research phase expenditure and
development phase expenditure, all research and development expenditures

incurred are charged to current profit or loss.

(20) Impairm ent of longterm assets
Long-term equity investments, investment properties measured under the cost model,
fixed assets, construction in progress, Aghtise assets, intangible assets with finite
useful lives, oil and gas assets and other -teng assets are tested for impairment if
there is an indication of impairment at the balance sheet date. If the result of the
impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment is maie the difference and an impairment loss is
recorded. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and the present value of the asset's estimated future cash flows. Provision for
asset impairment is calculated aratognized on an individual asset basis or, if it is
difficult to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount
of the asset group to which the asset belongs is determined. An asset group is the smallest
combination of asts that can generate cash inflows independently.
Goodwill arising from business combinations, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets that have not yet reached a usable condition are tested for
impairment at least at the enflaach year, regardless of whether there is an indication of
impairment.
The Company performs goodwill impairment testing and the carrying value of goodwill
arising from a business combination is apportioned to the relevant group of assets from
the date opurchase in accordance with a reasonable method; if it is difficult to apportion

to the relevant group of assets, it is apportioned to the relevant group of asset combination.
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1.

2.

A relevant group of assets or a combination of groups of assets can bemefihéo
synergies of a business combination.

When testing for impairment of a relevant group of assets or a combination of groups of
assets that includes goodwill, if there is an impairment, the group of assets or combination
of groups of assets that dosst include goodwill is first tested, the recoverable amount is
calculated and compared with the relevant carrying amount, and a corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. Impairment test is then carries out on the asset group or
combination of asset gups containing goodwill and compdrés book value with the
recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount is lower than the book value, the amount
of impairment loss shall first offset the book value of goodwill allocated to the asset
group or combinatiomf asset groups, and then offset the book value of other assets in
proportion according to the proportion of the book value of other assets in the asset group
or combination of asset groups except goodwill.

The above impairment losses on assets, oncegmemsm, will not be reversed in

subsequent accounting periods.

(21) Long-term amortized expenses
Long-term amortized expenses are expenses that have been incurred but should be borne
by the current and future periods and are apportioned over a period ohamont year.
The Companys longterm amortied expenses include renovation costs, consulting
services and tooling, etc.
Amortization method
Longterm amortied expenses are amortized evenly over the benefit period of the
expense item.
Amortization period
The amortization period is determined based on the period of earnings and if a
long-term amortization item does not benefit subsequent accounting periods, the
amortized value of the unamortized item is transferred to current profit or loss in

full.

(22) Contract liability
The Company presents contract assets or contract liabilities in the balance sheet based on
the relationship between the performance obligation of it and the payment by the

customer. The Compaisyobligations to transfer goods or provide sawito customers
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for consideration received or receivable from customers are shown as contractual
liabilities. The contract assets and contract liabilities are presented under the same

contract on a net basis.

(23) Employee benefits

1. Accounting treatment of short-term employee benefits
During the accounting period when employees provide services, the Company
shall recognize the sheidérm employee compensation actually incurred as liability
and record it in the current profits and losses or relevant as$gt cos
Employee benefits of the Company include social insurance charges, housing
provident funds, labor union expenditures and the personnel education funds. The
Company shall determine the welfare benefits in accordance with the prescribed
allocation base ral ratio required by corresponding regulations during the
accounting period when the employees provide services.
The employee welfare expenses incurred by the Company shall be recorded in the
current profits and losses or relevant asset costs accordihg ctual amount;

where the employee welfare is noonetary, it shall be measured at the fair value.

2. Accounting treatment for postemployee benefits
(1) Defined contribution plan

According to relevant regulations of the local government, the Company akall p
the basic endowment insurance and unemployment insurance for the employees.
During the accounting period when the employees provide services, the payable
amount shall be calculated according to the payment base and proportion required
by the local regdtions. The payable amounts are recognized as liabilities and
included in the current profits and losses or relevant asset costs. In addition, the
Company also participates in the enterprise annuity plan / supplementary pension
fund approved by the relevianational departments. The Company shall pay to the
annuity plan / local social insurance institution in accordance with the prescribed
percentage of the total wages, and the corresponding expenditure shall be included

in the current profits and lossesrefated asset costs.

(2) Defined benefit plan

The Company shall determine the welfare obligations generated by the defined
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benefit plan to vest in the period that the employees render services according to
the projected accumulated benefit unit method amtude them in the current
profits and losses or relevant asset cost.

The deficit or surplus generated from the present value of defined benefit plan
obligation less the fair value of the defined benefit asset is recognized as a net
defined benefit liabily or net defined benefit asset. When the Company has a
surplus in the defined benefit plan, it shall measure the net defined benefit asset at
the lower level of the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the asset ceiling.

All defined benefit plan obligains, including those expected to be paid within
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period for which the employee
provides services, are discounted by the market yield of treasury bonds or quality
corporate bonds in the active market @& #ame term and currency on the balance
sheet date and under the terms of the defined benefit plan.

Service costs arising from the defined benefit plan and the net interests of net
defined benefit liability or net defined benefit asset are included ircdhent

profits or losses or relevant asset costs; changes in the remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability or net defined benefit asset are included in other
comprehensive income and are not transferred to profits and losses during the
subsequentaccounting period, and all the parts originally included in other
comprehensive income are transferred to undistributed profits within equity at the
termination of the original defined benefit plan.

At the timing of settlement of the defined benefit pl#me gain or loss on a
settlement is the difference between the present value of the defined benefit plan

obligation being settled and the settlement price determined on the settlement date.

3. Accounting treatment of termination benefits
The Company shallecognize a liability and expense for termination benefits in
profit or loss at the earlier of the following dates: when the Company can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits for its unilaterally termination of labor
relationship plan or layoff; ah when the Company recognizes costs for a

restructuring and involves the payment of termination benefits.

(24) Estimated liabilities

Any obligations related to contingent matters meet the following conditions, a provision
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1.

shall be recognized:

(1) The Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

(2) It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation;

(3) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The provisions are initially measured at the best estimate of the expenditures required to
settle the relevant present obligations.
When determining the best estimate, consider factors such as contingent risks,
uncertainties and time value of money relaieadontingencies. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision shall be the determined after
discounting the relevant future cash flows.
Where there is a continuous range of possible outcomes, and each pointangbasras
likely as any other, the migoint of the range is used; in other cases, the best estimate is
treated separately :
If the contingent events involve a single project, it shall be determined according to the
most likely amount.
If they involve mutiple items, it shall be determined according to various possible results
and relevant probabilities.
If all or part of the expenses required to settle the provisions are compensated by a third
party, the compensation amount shall be recognized sepassatelp asset when it is
expected to be received, and the recognized compensation amount shall not exceed the
book value of the provisions.
The Company reviews the book value of the provisions on each balance sheet date, and if
there is conclusive evidendeat the book value does not reflect the current best estimate,

the book value shall be adjusted to reflect the current optimal estimate.

(25) Share-based payment
The share payment of the Company is a transaction that grants equity instruments or
assumes equitpasediabilities to obtain services provided by employees or other parties.

The share payment of the Company is the payment of the shares settled in equity.

Share payment and equity instruments settled by equity
Where the share payment of equity settlement is exchanged for the service

provided by the employee, it shall be measured at the fair value of the equity
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instrument granted to the employee. For the share payment transaction with the
viable right immediatelyafter the grant, the Company shall recognize relevant
costs or expenditures according to the fair value of the equity instrument on the
grant date, with a corresponding increase in equity. For the service within the
vesting period after the service or ghaptions conditioned upon the achievement

of the specified performance conditions, on each balance sheet date of the vesting
period, the Company, according to the best estimate of the number of equity
instruments, shall account for the current serviagesthe relevant costs or
expenditures according to the fair value, with a corresponding increase in equity.

If the terms of the share payment settled by equity are modified, the services
obtained are confirmed at least in accordance with the unmodified.ténm
addition, any increase in the fair value of the granted equity instrument or any
change that is favorable to the employee on the date of modification is confirmed.
During the vesting period, if the granted equity instrument is cancelled, the
Companyshall account for the cancellation as an acceleration of vesting, and shall
therefore recognize immediately the amount that otherwise would have been
recognized for services received over the remainder of the vesting period into the
current profits and Iees, with a corresponding increase in equity. However, if a
new equity instrument is granted, and on the grant date, the new equity instrument
granted is used to replace the cancelled equity instrument, the alternative equity
instrument granted is proceds@ the same way as the terms and conditions of the

original equity instrument.

2. Share payment and equity instruments settled by cash
The sharébased payment settled in cash shall be measured according to the fair
value of liabilities calculated and detg@ned on the basis of shares or other equity
instruments undertaken by t@ompany. For the share payment transaction with
the viable right immediately after the grant, the Company shall recognize relevant
costs or expenditures according to the fair vadfieghe assumed liabilities, and
increase the liabilities accordingly. For granted after complete performance
conditions waiting period of service or meet the vesting shased payment
transactions, in the waiting period for each of the balance sheetldsBampany
will record the services acquired in the current period into the relevant costs or
expenses and record the corresponding liabilities based on the best estimate of the

practicable rights and the fair value of the liabilities assumed bgdhgany. On
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each balance sheet date and settlement date before the relevant liabilities are settled,
the fair value of the liabilities shall be-measured, and the changes shall be

recorded into the current profits and losses.

(26) Preferred shares, perpetual londs and other financial instruments
In accordance with the terms of the contract and the economic substance of the issued
perpetual bonds reflected therein rather than in legal form only, the Company classifies
the financial instrument or its componensdiaancial assets, fiancial liabilities or equity
instruments upon initial recognition.
Financial instruments such as perpetual bond issued by the Company meeting one of the
following conditions, shall be clagsl adinancial liabilities as a wholer its components
at initial recognition:

(1) The Company cannot unconditionally avoid contractual obligations performing
by delivering cash or othénancial assets;

(2) Contract obligations including delivery of variable number of own equity
instrumens for settlement;

(3) It includes derivative instruments that are settled by their own equity, and the
derivative instruments cannot exchange fixed amount of cash or other financial assets
with fixed amount of their own equity instruments for settlement;

(4) There are contract terms that indirectly form contractual obligations;

(5) When the issuer liquidates, the perpetual bonds are in the same order as the
ordinary bonds and other debts issued by the issuer.

Financial instruments such as perpetual bondf#pmnce shares that do not meet any of

the above conditions shall be claskas equity instruments at initial recognition.

(27)Revenue

1. Accounting policy adopted in revenue recognition and measurement
Revenue is recognized when the Company perfornpeifermance obligations in
the contract, namely, when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods or
services. To gain control of the relevant goods or services means to dominate the
use of the goods or services and obtain almost all the econameifitbérom it.
If two or more performance obligations are included in the Contract, the Company
shall, on the commencement date of ¢bhatract, allocate the transaction price to

each performance obligation in proportion to the standinde selling pries of
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the distinct goods or service. The Company measures revenue at the transaction
price apportioned to each performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration that the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferripgppmised goods or services to a customer,
excluding payments collected on behalf of a third party and amounts expected to
be returned to theustomer. The Company determines the transaction price
according to the terms of the contract and in combinatiith Vs previous
customary practices, and considers the influence of variable consideration,
significant financing components existing in the contract-cash consideration,
consideration payable to a customer and other factors when determining the
transction price. The Company shall include in the transaction price some or all of
an amount of variable consideration only to the extent that it is highly probable that
a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. If there is a significant financing component aoritvact,

the Company shall determine the transaction price that reflect the price a customer
would have paid for thpromised goods or services if the customer had paid cash
for those goods or service when or as they transfer to the customer, and amortize
the difference between the transaction price and the contract consideration by the
effective interest rate methodrihg the contract period.

If one of the following conditions is met, it shall be the performance obligations
within a certain period, otherwise, at a certain point:

A The customer shall obtain and consume the economic benefits brought by
the Company durinthe performance of the Company.

A The customer can control the goods under construction during the
performance process.

A The commodities produced by the Company during the performance of
the contract have irreplaceable purposes, and the Company haghttte collect
money for the accumulated part of the contract that has been completed throughout
the whole contract period.

For the performance obligations performed within a certain period of time, the
Company shall recognize the income according tg#reormance progress within
that period, except if the performance progress cannot be reasonably determined.

Considering the nature of the goods or services, the Company adopts the output
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method or the input method to determine the performance progresise If
performance progress cannot be reasonably determined, and the cost incurred is
expected to be compensated, the Company shall recognize the income according to
the cost amount incurred until the performance progress can be reasonably
determined.

For peformance obligations performed at a certain point in time, the Company
recognizes revenue at the point when the customer obtains control of the relevant
goods or services. In determining whether the Customer has acquired control of the
goods or serviceshe Company shall consider the following indications:

A The Company has the present right to payment collection for the goods
or services, that is, the customer has a present payment obligation for the goods or
services.

A The Company has transferred legile to the merchandise to the
customer, meaning that the customer already has legal title to the merchandise.

A The Company has transferred the commodity to the customer, namely the
customer has physical possession of the commaodity.

A The Company hasansferred the main risks and reward in the ownership
of the commodity to the customer, who has acquired the main risks and reward in
the ownership of the commodity.

A The customer has accepted the goods or services, etc.

2. Specific principles
1) For the goods sold by distribution, the sales income shall be recognized after
confirming that the other party has obtained the goods and signed on the logistics
documents. The Company shall provide the buyer with the medical equipment
distributed by theCompany and relevant materials according to the requirements
of the contract or agreement, and the sales income is recognized after the
acceptance of the buyer;
2) The Company shall recognize revenue from selling goods directly to the hospital
after the hepital confirms that the goods are used and the invoice is received,;
3) TheCompany sells the goods to the agents on a commission basis, and the sales
revenue shall be recognized based on the actual usage confirmed by the hospital
with the agents on monthbasis or based on the list issued by the agents according
to the contract;
4) For medical equipment sold by means of installment settlement, the amount of
commodity sales revenue shall be determined according to the fair value of the
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receivable contraair agreed price after completing the installation and debugging

of the medical equipment and passing the inspection;

(28) Contract cost

Contract cost includes contract performance cost and contract acquisition cost.
If the costs incurred by the Company to aeki the performance of the Contract do not
fall within the scope of inventory, fixed assets or intangible assets, it shall be recognized
as an asset when the following conditions are met:

A This cost is directly related to a current or expected contract.

AThis cost increases the resources of the Company to be used to fulffill its future
performance obligations.

AThe cost is expected to be recovered.
If the Company is expected to recover the incremental cost incurred in obtaining the
contract, it shall beécluded in the contract acquisition cost that is recognized as an asset.
The assets related to the contract cost shall be amortized on the same basis as the income
recognition of goods or services related to the assetgever, if the amortization period
of the contract acquisition cost does not exceed one year, the Company shall include them
in the current profits and losses upon occurrence.
If the book value of the assets related to the contract cost is higher than the difference
between the followingtéms, the Company shall make provision for impairment of the
excess part and confirm it as an asset impairment loss:

1. Residual consideration expected to be obtained from the transfer of goods or
services related to the asset;

2. Estimated costs arisingpfn the transfer of the related goods or services.
If the impairment factors in the previous period change later so that the aforementioned
difference is higher than the book value of the asset, the Company shall reverse the
previously recognized impairmemprovision and account into the current profits and
losses, but the book value of the asset cannot reverse to higher than where it would have

been absent an impairment.
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(29) Government subsidy

1. Type
Government subsidy consist of monetary or-nwnetary assetsbtained from the
government, which is divided into assetated government subsidies and revenue
related government subsidies.
Assetrelated government subsidies refer to the government subsidies obtained by
the Company and used for the acquisition @nstruction of longerm assets or
obtainment of such assets by other forms. Reveslaged government subsidies
refer to those other than asselated government subsidies.
Government subsidies related to assets are used for the purchase and constructio
of fixed assets, intangible assets and other-teng assets;
Government subsidies related to revenue are those other tharrebmset

government subsidies.

2. Confirmation point
Government subsidies shall be recognized when the Company can meeitttte rel
conditions stipulated in the financial supporting policies, and it is expected to
obtain the financial supporting assets
(1) The Companycan meet the conditions attached to the government
subsidies;
(2) The Compangan receive government subsidies.
3. Accounting treatment
Assetrelated government subsidies shall offset the book value of the relevant
assets or be recognized as deferred income. If recognized as deferred income, the
current profits and losses during the service life of relevant asseteas@nable
and systematic method (those related to the daily activities of the Company shall
be included in other earnings; if unrelated to the daily activities of the Company, it
shall be included in neaperating income);
Revenuerelated government subf@d used to compensate the Company for
related costs or losses of the future period shall be recognized as deferred income,
and shall be included in the current profit and loss (those related to the daily
activities of the Company shall be included in otearnings; if unrelated to the
daily activities of the Company, it shall be included in operating income) or

offset relevant costs or losses during the period when they are recognized; those
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used to compensate the Company for related costs or Idssadyancurred shall

be included in the current profit and loss (those related to the daily activities of the
Company shall be included in other earnings; if unrelated to the daily activities of
the Company, it shall be included in Roperating income)rooffset relevant costs

or losses.

The policy preferential loans obtained by the Company are divided into the
following two situations and should be treated separately:

(2) If the government allocates the discount interest funds to the lending bank, and
the lending bank provides loans to the Company at the policy preferential interest
rate, the Company shall take the actual loan amount received as the entry value of
the loan, and calculate the relevant loan expenses according to the loan principal
and the plicy preferential interest rate.

(2) If the government directly allocates the discount interest funds to the Company,
the Company will deduct the relevant loan expenses with the corresponding

discount interest.

(30) Deferred income tax assets and deferreiicome tax liabilities
Income tax includes the current income tax and the deferred income tax. Except for the
income tax arising from the business merger and the transactions or matters directly
included in the owner's equitiincluding other comprehensiiacomg, the Company
includes the current income tax and deferred income tax into the current profits and losses.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are calculated and
recognized based on the differeritemporary differendebetween the tax basis of the
assets and liabilities and their book value.
The deferred income tax assets shall be recognized for the deductible temporary
difference to the extent that the future taxable income is likely to be obtained for
deductingdeductible temporary difference. For the deductible losses and tax credits that
can be carried forward to subsequent years, the corresponding deferred income tax assets
shall be recognized to the extent that the future taxable income is likely to beoused t
offset the deductible losses and tax credits
For the taxable temporary differences, the deferred income tax liabilities are recognized,
except in special circumstances.
No recognition of deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities may

include:

99



2022 Annual Reponf Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Alnitial recognition of the goodwill;

Alt is not a business merger, occurrence and does not affect the accounting profits and
taxable incoméor deductible lossg¢s$ransactions or matters.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for tdxabmporary differences related to
investments of subsidiaries, affiliates and joint ventures, unless the Company can control
the timing of the temporary difference and the temporary difference will likely not to be
reversed in the foreseeable future. &efd income tax assets are recognized for the
deductible temporary differences related to the investment of subsidiaries, affiliates and
joint ventures, when the temporary difference is likely to turn back in the foreseeable
future and the taxable incornsed to deduct the deductible temporary difference is likely

to be obtained in the future.

On the balance sheet date, the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities shall be measured at the tax rate applicable to the period duringtihvnigbsets

are expected to be recovered or the liabilities are expected to be settled.

On the balance sheet date, the Company reviews the book value of the deferred income
tax assets. If it is likely that sufficient taxable income is not obtained tet dfffs deferred
income tax assets, the book value of the deferred income tax assets is written down. If
there are sufficient taxable income, the written down value is reversed.

When it has the legal right to net settle and intends to net settle or aasgete and pay

off liabilities simultaneously, the current income tax assets and the current income tax
liabilities are reported as the net offset.

On the balance sheet date, the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities are offset irthe net amount when:

AThe tax payer has the legal right to net settle the current income tax assets and the
current income tax liabilities;

ADeferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are with the same tax
collection and administratio department of the same tax subject income tax related or
related to different tax subject, but in the future period of every important deferred
income tax assets and liabilities, involving the tax subject intention to netting current

income tax assets adiabilities or assets, liabilities at the same time.
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(31) Lease
Lease refers to a contract in which the lessor gives the use right of the assets to the lessee
for consideration within a certain period of time. On the commencement date of the
contract, the @mpany evaluates whether the contract is a lease or includes a lease. If a
party to a contract transfers the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for
a certain period in exchange for consideration, the contract is a lease or coldases a
If the contract also contains a number of separate leases, the Company shall split the
contract and treat each lease separately. Where the contract contains both the leased and
nonleased parts, the lessee and the lessor shall split the leasezhdeased parts.
For rent reductions and deferred payments on existing lease contracts directly caused by
the COVID-19 outbreak, and while meeting the following conditions, the Company will
not evaluate any lease changes or reevaluate the classifichteas® under simplified
method:
The lease consideration after the concession is reduced or basically unchanged before the
concession, among which, the lease consideration is not discounted or discounted at the
discount rate before the concession;

1 The redwtion is for the lease payments payable be8@rdune 2022 only, the
increase or decrease of lease payments due 3ffidune2022 does not affect the
satisfaction of the conditiomnd

T After considering the qualitative and quantitative factors, the ¢¢hers and
conditions of the lease have no major changes.

The Company as the lessee

(1) Right-of-use assets

At the commencement date, the Company recognizes theofigise assets for
leasing other than sheterm leasing and lowalue assets. Theght-of-use assets
are initially measured at cosfhe cost of the righdf-use asset shall comprise:
The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives reeived(if any);
Any initial direct costs incurred by the Company;
Any estimate of costs to be incurred by the Compamdismantling and removing
the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the edition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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The Company shall subsequently adopt the strdiightmethod to depreciate the
right-of-use assets. For the ownership of the leased asstits expiration of the

lease term, the Company shall draw depreciation within the remaining useful life

of the leased assets; otherwise, the Company shall depreciate the leased assets from
the earlier of the lease term or the remaining useful life df Rased assets.

The Company shall determine whether the impairment of the-ofglde assets

has occurred in accordance with the principle of note "lll. (20) Impairment of long

term asset”, and account for the recognized impairment loss.

(2) Lease liabilites
At the commencement date, the Company recognizes the lease liabilities for
leasing other than shetgrm leasing and lowalue assets. The lease liabilities are
initially measured at the present value of the outstanding lease payments. The lease
paymenincludes:
Fixed payments (including isubstance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable (if any);
Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
Amounts expected to be payable by the under residual value guarantees;
The exertse price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option;
Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The Company adopts the intereste implicit in the lease as the discount rate, but
if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be reasonably deterniised,
incremental borrowing interest rate will be used as the discount rate.
The Company calculates the interest expense ofetiwe liabilities during each
period of the lease term at a fixed periodic interest rate, and includes them in the
current profits and losses or relevant asset costs.
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are
included into current gains and losses or relevant asset costs upon actual
occurrence.
After the commencement date, if the following circumstances occur, the Company
shall remeasure the lease liabilities and adjust the correspondingfrighe assets.

If the bod value of the rightf-use assets has been reduced to zero, but the lease
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liabilities still need to be further reduced, the difference shall be included in the
current profit and loss:

When the appraisal result of the purchase option, renewal optiternsination

option changes, or the actual exercise of the foregoing option is inconsistent with
the original appraisal result, the Company remeasures the lease liabilities at the
present value calculated by the changed lease payment and the revisedt discoun
rate;

In the event of changes in the substantial fixed payment, the expected amount
payable of the guarantee allowance, or the index or ratio used to determine the
amount of lease payment, the Company shall remeasure the lease liabilities
according to tB present value of the changed lease payment and the original
discount rate. However, if the change in the lease payment comes from the change

in the floating rate, the present value is calculated using the revised discount rate.

(3) Shortterm lease and lowalue asset leasing
The Company chooses not to recognize the Hoffhuse assets and lease liabilities
for the shorterm lease and lowalue asset lease, and includes the relevant lease
payment into the current profits and losses or the relevant asset twes straight
line method during each period of the lease term. Short lease refers to a lease
at the commencement of lease, not exceeding 12 months and without the purchase
option. Lowvalue asset lease refers to the lease with low value whemgke si
leased asset is a new asset. If the Company sublets or expects to sublet the leased
assets, the original lease is not a-/alue asset lease.

(4) Lease modifications
If a lease is changed and the following conditions are metCtrmapanywill
account fotthe lease change as a separate lease.
The lease modification expands the scope of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more leased assets;
The increased consideration is equivalent to the separate price of the expanded
portion of the lease scopejasted for the circumstances of that contract.
If a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective date
of the lease modification, th€ompanyreapportioned the consideration of the
modified contract, redetermined the leasen, and remeasured the lease liability

based on the present value of the modified lease payments and the revised discount
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rate.
If a lease change results in a reduction in the scope of the lease or a shortening of
the lease term, th€ompanyreduces the arrying value of the righdf-use asset
accordingly and recogrés the gain or loss related to the partial termination or
complete termination of the lease in the profit or loss for the current period. If other
lease changes result in the remeasuremertheflease liability, theCompany
adjusts the carrying value of the rigiftuse asset accordingly.

(5) COVID-19related rent reductions
For those leases that use the simplified rent reduction method related to @Q9VID
the Company does not evaluate whether ldase changes have occurred, and
continues to calculate the interest expense of the lease liabilities according to the
discount rate consistent with the one before the reduction and include it into the
current profits and losses, and continues to degtethe righof-use assets in
accordance with the same method as the one before the reduction. In case of rent
reduction, the Company shall take the reduced rent as the variable lease payment
amount. When the reduction agreement is reached to termimatzitjinal rent
payment obligation, th€ompany shall offset the relevant asset cost or expense at
the prediscounted amount and adjust the lease liabilities accordingly; if the rent
payment is delayed, the Company shall offset the previously recognizesl lea
liability upon the actual payment.
For shortterm lease and lowalue asset lease, the Company continues to include
the original contract rent into the relevant asset cost or expenses based on the
method used prior to the reduction. In case of rentctemy the Company shall
use the reduced rent as the variable lease payment and offset the relevant asset
costs or expenses during the reduction period; if the rent payment is delayed, the
Company shall recognize the rent payable during the original payeednd and

offset the previously recognized amount payable upon the actual payment.

2. The Company as the lessor
At the commencement date, tBempany divides the lease into finance lease and
operating lease. Finance lease refers to a lease that essentially transfers almost all
the risks and rewards of the ownership of the leased assets, regardless of whether
the ownership is ultimately transfedreor not. Operating lease refers to a lease

other than a finance lease. When the Company is the sublease lessor, the transfer
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lease is classified based on the rightise assets generated by the original lease.

(1) Accounting treatment of operating leagi
The lease collection amount of the operating lease is recognized as rental income
according to the straighine method during each period of the lease term. The
Company will capitalize the initial direct expenses related to the operating lease
and apportin them into the current profits and losses during the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income recognition. Variable lease payments not included
in lease are recorded in the current profits and losses upon actual occurrence. In
case of any change the operating lease, tl@mpany shall treat it as a new lease
from the effective date of the change, and the amount received in advance or lease
receivable related to the lease before the change shall be regarded as the amount of

the new lease.

(2) Accounting treatment of finance leasing
At the commencement date, the Company recognizes the finance lease receivable
and stop the recognition of the finance lease assets. When the Company initially
measures the financial lease receivable, the net leasstnment is the entry value
of the financial lease receivable. The net lease investment is the sum of the present
value (discounted based on the interest rate implicit in the Jeak¢he non
guaranteed residual value and the lease amount that is notececati the
commencement of the lease
The Company calculates and recognizes interest income for each period of the
lease term at fixed periodic interest rates. The termination of recognition and
impairment of finance lease receivables shall be treatedcordance witmote
"lll. (10) Financial Instruments".
Variable lease payments not included in the net lease investment are recorded into
the current profits and losses upon actual occurrence.
If the finance lease is changed and meets the following conslitthe Company
shall treat the change as a separate lease:
This change expands the lease scope by increasing the right to use one or more
leased assets;
The added consideration is equal to the separate price of the extended part of the

lease adjusted fahe circumstances of the contract.
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If the change of finance lease is not treated as a separate lease, the Company shall
handle the changed lease under the following circumstances:

If the change takes effect on the beginning date of the lease and theilebe

classified as operating lease, @@mpany shall account it as a new lease from the
effective date of the lease change, and take the net lease investment before the
effective date of the lease change as the book value of the lease assets;

If the change takes effect on the start date of the lease and the lease will be

classified as a finance lease, the Company shall account it in accordance with the
policy of thisnote "lll, (10) Financial Instruments" on the modification of re

agreement of the otract.

(3) COVID-19related rent reductions
For operating lease that uses the simplified rent reduction method related to
COVID-19, the Company continues to recognize original contract rent based on
the method used prior to the reduction as lease incon@ask of rent reduction,
the Company shall take the reduced rent as the variable lease payment amount and
reduce the rental income during the reduction periods; if the rent payment is
delayed, the Company shall recognize original contract rent as leasabérand
reduce the previously recognized lease receivable upon the actual receipt.
For finance lease that uses the simplified rent reduction method related to COVID
19, the Company continues to recognize interest income calculated based on
previous disount rate as lease income. In case of rent reduction, the Company
shall take the reduced rent as the variable lease payment amount. When the
reduction agreement is reached, and the original rent payment obligation is waived,
the Company shall reduce theepiously recognized lease income based on the
pre-discounted amount or discounted amount prior to the reduction. The Company
records the insufficient offset as investment income and adjusts corresponding
lease receivable; if the rent payment is delayed, Gompany shall reduce the

previously recognized lease receivable upon the actual receipt.

3. Sales and leaseback transaction
The Company evaluates and determines whether the asset transfer inliessale

back transaction is sales according to the principle describabia"lll. (27)
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Revene".

(1) As the lessee

If the asset transfer in the sddmseback transaction is for sale, the Company as
the lesseeshall measure the riglof-use asset arising from theaseback at the
proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right of
use retained by the sellerssee. Accordingly, the selllrssee shallecognizeonly

the amount of any gain or loss that relates to the rights traegsferrthe buyer
lessor.

If the asset transfer in the sddémseback transaction is not for sale, the Company
shall continue taecognizethe transferred asset and shall recegra financial
liability equal to the transfer proceeds. For accounting treatnof financial

liabilities, seethis notélll. (10) Financial Instruments".

(2) As the lessor

If the asset transfer in the sales and leaseback transaction is the sale, the Company
as the lessor shall account for the purchase of the asset and feasbeapplying

the "2. The Company acts as the lessor" policy; If the asset transfer in the sale
leaseback transaction is not for sale, the Company as the lessor shall not recognise
the transferred asset and shall recognise a financial asset equal tangfert
proceeds. For accounting treatment of financial assets, please refer to n¢i@y'lil.

Financial Instruments"

(32) Termination of business operation
Termination is a separate component that meets one of the following conditions and has
been disposedf or classified in the category oéld for sale by the Company:
(1) The component represents an independent main business or a separate major operating
area;
(2) This component is part of a related plan to dispose of a separate main business or a
separag major operating area;
(3) This component is a subsidiary company acquired exclusively for resale.
On-going profit and losses are listed separately in the income statement. Operating gains
and losses such as impairment loss and turnover amount and digpiosashall be

reported as termination gains and losses. For the termination of operation reported in the
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current period, the Company shall report the information previously reported as-the on
going profits and losses as the termination profit and lbfseocomparative accounting

period.

(33) Significant accounting judgements and estimates
1. Changes in major accounting policies
(1) Implementation of Interpretation of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 15
On 30 December 2021, the Ministry Binance issued the Interpretation on the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 15 (Cai Kuai [2021] No. 35,
hereinafter referredtolad nt er pr et ati on No. 150) .
, Accounting treatment for trial run sales
Interpretation No.15 stipulates the accting treatment and presentation of
products or byproducts produced by an enterprise before a fixed asset reaches the
working condition for its intended use or in the process of research and
development, and stipulates that the net amount after offsettstg by revenue
related to trial run sales shall not be used to offset the costgeaf &issets or
research and development expenditures. The provisions came into force from 1
January 2022, and retroactive adjustment shall be made for trial operdésn sa
occurring between the beginning of the earliest period for presentatiimatial
statements and 1 January 2022.
The Companyés i mplementation of the provi s
C o mp afmandia position and operating results.
. Judgment on lossnaking contracts
Interpretation No.15 spezis t hat t he f#Acontract perfor man
an enterprise when determining whether a contract constitutes -andkgsg
contract shall include the incremental cost of performing the ainérad the
amortized amount of other costs directly related to the performance of the contract.
The provisions came into force from 1 January 2022. Enterprises shall implement
the provisions for contracts under which all obligations have not bedfas at
1 January 2022. The cumulative effect shall be used to adjust to the retained
earnings and other relevant financial statement items at the beginning of the year to

which the implementation date belongs to, and the comparatiecial statement

dat of prior period shall not be adjusted.
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The Companydés i mplementation of the provis

financial position and operating results.

2. Changes in significant accounting estimates

Not applicable.
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V. Tax

1) Main taxes andrates

Type Tax basis Tax rate(%)

The VAT payable is the difference between output ta:
(calculated based on sales of goods and taxable servi

VAT income under the tax lajvand the deductible input tax o 1356913
the period
Urbanmalnte_nance and Based on valuadded tax and consumption taxes paid 57
construction tax
C Enterprise income tax Based on taxable profits 1525

o

mpanies subject to differeahterprisencome tax rates are disclosed as follows:

Name of tax payer Tax rat€%)
Lepu Medical TechnologgBeijing) Co., Ltd 15
Lepu Medical Equipme(Beijing) Co., Ltd 15
Beijing Tiandi Hexie Technology Co., Ltd 15
Lepu Medical Electronics Technolo@o., Ltd 15
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Material Co., Ltd 15
Jiangsu Brightnedsledical Device Co., Ltd 15
Beijing Lepu Medical Technolog¢o., Ltd 15
Lepu(Beijing) Diagnostics Co., Ltd 15
Yantai Addcare BieTech Limited Company 15
Shenzhen Sonolepu Medical Technold&yy,, Ltd 15
Shenzhen Lepu Intelligent Medical Equipmént., Ltd 15
Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd 15
Lepu Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd 15
Lepu Hengjiuyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd 15
Beijing Yongzheng Pharmaceutidab., Ltd 15
Zhejiang Lepu Pharmaceutidab., Ltd 15
Lepu Zhiyao Technologgo., Ltd 15
Beijing Aipuyi Medical Testing Center Co. Ltd 15
Beijing JWJ Science & Technology Developmé., Ltd 15
Shanghai Lepu Cloudmed Co., Ltd (used naBfenghai Yocaly Health Managem&u., Ltd) 15
Shenzhen Creative Indust@po., Ltd 15
Lepu Smart CoréTianjin) Medical Equipmen€o., Ltd 15
Shenzhen Carewell Electroni€®., Ltd 15
Shenzhen Viatom Technolo@po., Ltd 15
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Sichuan Xingtai Pule Medical Technolo@yp., Ltd 15
Beijing Huaco Healthcare Technologi€s., Ltd 15
Shanxi Tianshengharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 15
Tianjin Jiumijiu Optometry Technology Co., Ltd. 15
Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Instrument Co., Ltd. 15
IPE Biotechnology Co., Ltd 15

2) Tax incentives

Enterprise income tarcentives
(1) The company was approved as a kigth enterprise bBeijing Science and Technology
CommissionBeijing Finance Bureau anBleijing Taxation Bureau of Taxation in December
2020. The approval certificate of higdch enterprise is "GR202011004226", and the
certificate is valid for three yeark. enjoyed the preferential tax rate of 15% for hitgch

enterprisesn 2022.

(2) Lepu Medical EquipmenBeijing) Co., Ltd.was approved as a higbch enterprise by
Beijing Municipal Science and Technology Commissi@egijing Municipal Bureau of
Finance, Beijing Municipal Taxation Bureau, State Administration of Taxation in October
2020. The approval certificate of higgch enterprise is "GR202011002701", and the validity
period is three yearst enjoyed the preferenal tax rate of 15% for highech enterprisem
2022.

(3) Beijing Tiandi Hexie Technology Co., Lidas approved as highch enterprises by
Beijing Science and Technology Commissi&jjing Municipal Bureau of Finance, Beijing
Municipal Taxation Bureau, St Administration of Taxation irDecember2022. The
approval certificate of higtech enterprises isGR202211003069and is valid for three
years.It enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for hitdch enterpriseim 2022.

(4) Lepu Medical Electronic§echnology Co., Ltd. was approved as a figgh enterprise

by Shaanxi Provincial Department of Science and Technology, Shaanxi Provincial Finance
Department and Shaanxi Provincial Taxation Bureau of the State Administration of Taxation
in October 2021. Td certificate number is "GR202161000568" and valid for three yiars.
enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for hitgch enterpriseis 2022.

(5) Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Mater@b., Ltd. was approved as a hitglth enterprisU
by Shanghai Science é&mTechnology Commission, Shanghai Finance Bureau and Shanghai
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Municipal Tax Service, State Taxation Administration in November 2020. The approval
certificate number of the higtech enterprise is "GR202031005228", which is valid for three
years.It enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for higgch enterpriseim 2022

(6) On 30 November2021,Jiangsu Brightness Medical Device Co., .Ltehs approved as a
high-tech enterprise by the Department of Science and Technology of Jiangsu Province,
Department of Finace of Jiangsu Province, Jiangsu State Taxation Bureau and Jiangsu
Provincial Local Taxation Bureau on Elecember 2021. The approval certificate of high
tech enterprise is "GR202132005093" and is valid for three yi¢@&nsjoyedthe preferential

tax rateof 15% for hightech enterpriseisi 2022

(7) Beijing Lepu Medical Technology Co., Ltd. was approved as a-teigh enterprise by
Beijing Science and Technology Commissi@gijing Finance Bureau and Municipal Tax
Service, State Taxation Administration intGlwer 2021. The approval certificate of higch
enterprise is GR202111000006, and the validity period is three ykaenjoyed the

preferential tax rate of 15% for higlch enterpriseis 2022

(8) Lepu(Beijing) Diagnostics Co., Ltdvas jointly recognied as a highech enterprise by
Beijing Science and Technology CommissiBejjing Finance Bureau arBeijing Municipal

Tax Service, State Taxation Administration in July 2020. The approval certificate of high
tech enterprise is "GR202011001272" and theopeis valid for three yearst enjoyed the

preferential tax rate of 15% for higlch enterpriseis 2022.

(9) Yantai Addcare Bielech Limited Company was approved as a Hegih enterprise by
Shandong Provincial Department of Science and Technology, tDepdrof Finance of
Shandong Province, Shandong Provincial Taxation Bureau, State Administration of Taxation
on 17 August2020. The approval certificate of higdch enterprise is "GR202037000937",
valid for three yeardt enjoyed the preferential tax ratof 15% for higktech enterprisem

2022

(10) Shenzhen Sonolepu Medical Technology Co., Ltd. was approved as dettigh
enterprise by Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Commission, Shenzhen Tax
Service, State Taxation Administration and Shenzhearféie Bureau iDecember 2022The

approval certificate of higkech enterprise iISGR202244206174and is valid for three years.
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It enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for hitgth enterpriseisn 2022.

(11) Shenzhen Lepu Intelligent Medical Equipment.,ddd. was approved as a higgch
enterprise by Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Commission, Shenzhen Finance
Commission and Shenzhen Tax Service, State Taxation Administration in DecbRer

The certificate number isGR202244200821and valid for three yeardt enjoyed the

preferential tax rate of 15% for higlch enterpriseis 2022.

(12) Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltdwas approved as a higlch enterprise by the
Department of Science and Technology of Henan Province, The Depadhiféntince of
Henan Province, The Provincial Taxation Bureau of Henan Province, and the Local Taxation
Bureau of Henan Provincen October 2021. The approval certificate of the Higth
enterprise is "GR202141002247", valid for three ydamnjoyedthe preferential tax rate of

15% for hightech enterpriseis 2022.

(13) Lepu Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Lpdissed the higtech enterprise certification

in September 2020, and received the Higth enterprise certificate by Henan Provincial
Technology Degrtment, Henan Provincial Finance Department, Henan Provincial State
Taxation Bureau and Henan Provincial Local Taxation Bureau. The certificate number is
"GR202041000353", valid for three yeats.enjoyed the preferential tax rate of 15% for
high-tech etterprisesn 2022.

(14) Lepu Hengjiuyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltghich passed the higlhch enterprise
certification in September 2020, and received the -tégh enterprise certificatmintly

issued by Henan Provincial Department of Technology, Henan [RraVifrinance
Department, Henan Provincial State Taxation Bureau and Henan Provincial Local Taxation
Bureauin September 2020. The certificate number is "GR202041000266", valid for three
years. It enjogdthe preferential tax rate of 15% for hitdgch entegorisesin 2022.

(15) Beijing Yongzheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. passed theteicjin enterprise certification
in October 2021, and received the higbh enterprise certificajeintly issued byBeijing
Municipal Science and Technology CommissiBeijing Municipal Finance Bureadeijing
Municipal Bureau of Taxation and the State Administration of Taxati@ctober 2021The
certificate number is "GR202111002954", valid for three yétenjoyedthe preferential tax
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rate of 15% for highech enterpriseis 2022.

(16) Zhejiang Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was approved as atdibhenterprise by
Zhejiang Provincial Department of Science and Technology, Zhejiang Provincial Department
of Finance, Zhejiang Provincial State Taxation Bureau and Zhejiang Provincial Local
Taxation Bureau in December 2020. The approval certificate of-teigh enterprise is
"GR202033005652", and the validity period is three ydaenjoyedthe preferential tax rate

of 15% for hightech enterpriseis 2022.

(17) Lepu Zhiyao Technology Co., Ltd.as approved as a higlch enterprise by Zhejiang
Provincial Department of Science and Technology, Zhejiang Provincial Department of
Finance, Zhejiang Provincial Taxation Bureau, State Administration of Taxation in December
2021. The approval certificate bigh-tech enterprise is "GR202133001464" and valid for
three yeardt enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for hitdch enterpriseim 2022.

(18) Beijing Aipuyi Medical Inspection Centre Co., Ltd. was recognized as a-tbigh
enterprise byBeijing Science and Technology CommissidBeijing Finance Bureau and
Beijing State Taxation Bureau iDecember2021. The approval certificate of higdch

enterprise is "GR202111004599", which is valid for three ydtemnjoyed the preferential
tax rate of 15% fohigh-tech enterpriseis 2022.

(19) Beijing JWJ Science & Technology Development Co., Ltd. was recognized as-a high
tech enterprise bBeijing Science and Technology Commissi@eijing Finance Bureau and
Beijing State Taxation Bureau in October 2021. The approval certificate number @€bigh
enterprise is "GR202111001140", which is valid for three ydtemnjoyed the preferential

tax rate of 15% for highech enterpriseis 2022.

(20) Shanghai Lepu Cloudmed Catd was approved as a higéch enterprise by Shanghai
Science and Technology Commission, Shanghai Finance Commission and Shanghai Taxation
Bureau inDecember 2022The certificate number iSGR202231002246and is valid for

three yeardt enjoyedthe peferential tax rate of 15% for higbch enterpriseis 2022.

(21) Shenzhen Creative Industry Co., Ltd. was approved as atddbhenterprise by

Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Commission, Shenzhen Finance Commission
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and Shenzhen Taxation Bureautloé State Administration of Taxation in December 2021.
The certificate number is "GR202144203071" and is valid for three ydagsjoyed the

preferential tax rate of 15% for higlach enterpriseim 2022.

(22) Lepu Smart CordTianjin) Medical Equipment Co.Ltd. was approved as a hitgch
enterprise by Tianjin Science and Technology Bureau, Tianjin Finance Bureau and Tianjin
Taxation Bureau in December 2020. The certificate number is "GR202012002228" and valid
for three yeardt enjoyedthe preferentialax rate of 15% for higkech enterpriseim 2022.

(23) Shenzhen Carewell Electronics Co., Ltd. was approved as adulghenterprise by
Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Commission, Shenzhen Finance Bureau and
Shenzhen Taxation Bureau of the Statemidstration of Taxation in December 20 The
certificate number is "GR202044206139" and is valid for three ydarenjoyed the

preferential tax rate of 15% for higlch enterpriseis 2022.

(24) Shenzhen Viatom Technology Co., Ltd. was approved as atdobhenterprise by
Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Commission, Shenzhen Finance Bureau and
Shenzhen Taxation Bureau in Decemb@?2.The certificate number isS5R202244201183

and is valid for three yeardt enjoyed the preferential tax ratefd5% for hightech

enterprisesn 2022.

(25) Sichuan Xingtai Pule Medical Technology Co., Ltd. was approved as atduigh
enterprise by Sichuan Department of Science and Technology, Sichuan Department of
Finance and Sichuan Taxation Bureau of Taxation ireBéer 2021. The certificate number

is "GR202151002878" and is valid for three year2082 it will enjoy the preferential tax

rate of 15% for highech enterprises.

(26) Beijing Huaco Healthcare Technologies Co., Ltd. was approved as-#eiglenterprise
by Beijing Municipal Science and Technology Commissi@eijing Municipal Bureau of
Finance, andBeijing Municipal Taxation Bureau of the State Taxation Bureau in December
2021. The approval certificate of hisdxch enterprise is "GR202111007086" and védid

three years. In 2@ it will enjoy the preferential tax rate of 15% for hitgth enterprises.

(27) In December 2021Shanxi Tiansheng Pharmaceutical Co., Wes approved as a high

115



2022 Annual Reponf Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

tech enterprise by the Department of Science and Technolo§havfxi Province, Shanxi
State Taxation Bureau ar®hanxiProvincial Taxation Bureau. The approval certificate of
high-tech enterprise isGR202114000399and is valid for three yeardt enjoyed the

preferential tax rate of 15% for higlch enterpriseis 2022.

(28) In 3 December 202Tianjin Jiumijiu Optometry Technology Co., Ltdas approved as
a hightech enterprise byianjin Municipal Bureau of Science and Technology, Tianjin
Municipal Bureau of Finance, Tianjin Municipal Taxation Bureau, State Administrafion
Taxation The approval certificate of higlech enterprise iSGR202112003808and is valid
for three yeardt enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for hitdch enterpriseism 2022.

(29) In 12 December, 2022Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Instrument Co., itds approved as

a hightech enterprise by the Department of Science and Technology of Jiangsu Province,
Jiangsu State Taxation Bureau and Jiangsu Provincial Local Taxation Bureau. The approval
certificate of ligh-tech enterprise isGR202232017056and is valid for three yeardt
enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for hitgch enterpriseis 2022.

(30) IPE Biotechnology Co., Ltdwas approved as a highch enterprise byBeijing
Municipal Science and Techrogly CommissionBeijing Municipal Bureau of Finance, and
Beijing Municipal Taxation Bureau of the State Taxation BurealDétember 2022The
approval certificate of higkech enterprise i$GR202211004835and valid for three years.
In 2022, it enjoyedthe preferential tax rate of 15% for higgch enterprises.

3) Other tax incentives

(1) According to the relevant requirements of Brevisions on Transitional Policies for the
Pilot Program of the Collection of Valu&dded Tax in Lieu of Business Tax (Cai SR0i[6]

No. 36) the Circular on Clarifying the Exemption of Elderly Care Agencies from Value
added Tax and Other Policies (Cai Shui [2019] No. 20 the Announcement of the
Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation Administration on Extending the Initioe
Period of Certain Preferential Tax Policies (Cai Shui [2021] Np.6)edical services
rendered by a medical institution are exempt from vallded tax. Therefore, Beijing Aipuyi
Medical Testing Center Co. Ltd. is exempt from vedagled tax, urbaoonstruction tax and

education surcharge.
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(2) According to theCircular of the State Administration of Taxation of the Ministry of
Finance on Issues Relating to the Administration ofHgempt Qualification Certification

for Non-Profit Organizations (Cai Shy2018] No. 13) medical service income obtained by

a nonprofit medical institution at prices stipulated by the State is exempt from various taxes.
The real estate, land, vehicles and vessels used by profitmrmedical institution are exempt

from propety tax, urban land use tax and vehicle and vessel use tax. The portion-of non
medical service income that is directly used to improve the conditions of medical and health
services can be deducted from its taxable income upon review and approval by the tax
authorities, and the balance is subject to corporate income tax. AccordingGucthlar of

the Department of Finance of Anhui Province and Anhui Provincial Tax Service, State
Taxation Administration on Announcement of the 2015 Provieial Nonprofit
Organization TaxExemption Qualification LishindCircular of the Department of Finance of
Anhui Province and Anhui Provincial Tax Service, State Taxation Administration on
Announcement of the 2020 Provindievel Nonprofit Organization TaxExemption
Quialification List (Wan Cai Shui Fa [2020] No. 128Mefei Hightech Cardiovascular
Hospital is a nofprofit organization qualified for tax exemption and enjoys preferential tax

policies for norprofit organizations within five years from the year of igmition.
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V. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Cash at bank and on hand

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Cash on hand

998,841.96

534,460.52

Bank deposits

4,721,596,434.76

3,666,190,504.74

Other monetary funds

744,683,508.67

130,821,863.49

Total

5,467,278,785.39

3,797,546,828.75

Including: cash at bank and on hand deposite
overseas

2,126,350,141.54

372,392,264.10

Note:

The cash at bank and on hand balances restricted for use due to mortgage, pledge, and frozen,

restricted to access dbe centralised management of funds, or restricted to be remitted to China

from foreign countries are as following:

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Deposit for bank acceptance bills

81,058,816.58

53,008,268.16

Fixed deposits

56,490,090.32

59,282,351.55

Frozen deposits

5,339,263.86

Performance Bond

1,648,552.38

677,640.48

Total

144,536,723.14

112,968,260.19

(2) Financial assetdheld-for-trading

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

277,214,058.48

Including Equity instrument investment

19,104,943.05

wealth management products

258,109,115.43

Total

277,214,058.48

Note:

Investments in equity instruments are investments in shares of listed companies held
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by the Company.

(3) Notes receivable

1. Notes receivable bycategory

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Bank acceptance notes

68,366,738.81

34,766,157.96

Trade acceptance notes

30,000,000.00

19,005,193.50

Total

98,366,738.81

53,771,351.46

2. Notes receivable pledged at the end of the year

Item Amount pledged
Bankacceptance notes 3,274,907.07
Total 3,274,907.07

3. Outstanding endorsed or discounted notes unmatured at the end of the year

Amount derecognised at the eni Amount not derecognised at en

Item of the period of period
Bank acceptance notes 25,897,840.48
Trade acceptance notes 30,000,000.00

Total

55,897,840.48

(4) Accounts receivable

1. Ageing analysis of accounts receivable

Ageing 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Within 1 year 1,582,742,600.68 1,285,290,038.70
1-2 years 182,488,635.91 230,056,532.64
2-3 years 120,018,798.29 131,358,287.55
3-4 years 74,821,688.85 61,489,537.16
4-5 years 44,370,357.92 56,995,599.49
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Ageing 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Over 5 years 58,274,108.65 57,291,537.57
Subtotal 2,062,716,190.3 1,822,481,533.11
Less: Provision for bad debts 154,085,988.98 161,359,845.73
Total 1,908,630,201.32 1,661,121,687.38
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2.Accounts receivable by method of bad debt provision

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Book balance Provision for bad debts Book balance Provision for bad debts
Category Percent P Carrying Percentag Percent. Carrying Value
Amount age Amount er(tf;)ntage Value Amount e Amount age
(%) ° (%) (%)
Provision for bad
debts 2,027,715.40 0.10 2,027,715.40 100 2,027,715.40 0.11 2,027,715.40 = 100
made on an
individual basis
Provision forbad
debts 5 060,688,474.90 99.90 152,058,273.58 7.38 1,908,630,201.32 1,820,453,817.71 99.89 159,332,130.33 875 | 1,661,121,687.38
made on a grouping
basis
Including
Expected creditloss - o cag 47490 99.90 152,058,273.58 7.38 1,908,630,201.32 1,820,453,817.71 99.89 159,332,130.33 875 = 1,661,121,687.38
of grouping basis
Total 2,062,716,190.30 100 154,085,988.98 1,908,630,201.32 1,822,481,533.11 100 161,359,845.73 1,661,121,687.38
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Provision for bad debts made an individual basis

2022.12.31
Name Provision for bad Percentage Reasons for
Book balance debts (%) 9 Provision
Xin)_(iang Yashijie Estimatedly
Medical Laboratory 2,027,715.40 2,027,715.40 100.00 irrecoverable
(Limited Partnership)
Total 2,027,715.40 2,027,715.40

Accounts receivable with provision for bad debts on a grouping: basis

Items of bad debt provided on grouping basis:

2022.12.31
Name
Accounts receivable Provision for bad debts Percentage(%)

Within 1 year 1,582,742,600.68 7,913,713.68 0.50

1-2 years 182,488,635.91 18,248,863.62 10.00

2-3 years 120,018,798.29 24,003,759.65 20.00

3-4 years 74,821,688.85 22,446,506.69 30.00

4-5 years 42,342,642.52 21,171,321.29 50.00
Over 5 years 58,274,108.65 58,274,108.65 100.00

Total

2,060,688,474.90

152,058,273.58
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Provision, reversal or recovery, and offset or wribéfrof bad debts during the reporting periods

Change in the year
e zoztdz3t Provision accrued and Increase in 2021231
business Offset or written off
reversed L
combinations
Expected
credit
loss of 159,332,130.33 26,080,071.87 2,720,553.94 36,074,482.56 152,058,273.58
grouping
basis
Provision
for bad 2,027,715.40 2,027,715.40
debts
made on
indisir(]jual 161,359,845.73 26,080,071.87 2,720,553.94 36,074,482.56 154,085,988.98
basis

Accounts receivable written off during the reporting periods

Item

Amount

Written-off

36,074,482.56

Top five accounts receivable by ending balance of debtors

The total amount of the top five accounts receivabtk ending balance aggregated by party

in arrears was RMB205,395,127.39, representing 9.96% of the total ending balance of accounts

receivable, and the corresponding provision for bad debts with ending balance aggregated to

RMB8,673,895.71
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(5) Receivablefinancing

Receivable financing

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Notes receivable 134,291,997.64 81,021,515.38
Total 134,291,997.64 81,021,515.38

Note
1) The Company and some of its subsidiaries discounts and endorses a portion of its bank
acceptance billsnore frequently for dayo-day fund management purposes. Therefore, the
Company and some of its subsidiaries classified bank acceptance bills with higher remaining
credit rating on the books as financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehasive income, and the Company believed that the bank acceptance bills held by it
are not subject to significant credit risk and will not incur significant losses due to bank

defaults, and therefore no bad debt provision has been recognized.

2) As of 31 Decerber 2022, bank acceptance drafts worth RIMB92,577.8Tvere pledged
to China Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd for the application of issuing notes payable, and the

pledging period was from 16 April 2022 to 16 April 2023

3) As of 31 December 2022, the bank acceptaaceivable of the Company, which has been
endorsed or discounted and is not yet due on the balance sheet date, is RMB53,020,750.76,

and all the acceptance is terminated.

(6) Prepayments
1) Ageing of prepayments

Ageing 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Amount Percentag@b) Amount Percentage(%)
Within 1 year 306,237,085.94 80.26 244,929,506.94 86.51
1-2 years 53,762,367.05 14.09 29,169,401.75 10.30
2-3years 13,205,510.86 3.46 1,670,147.74 0.59
Over 3 years 8,367,174.53 2.19 7,365,299.35 2.60
Total 381,572,138.38 100.00 283,134,355.78 100.00

2) Top five prepayments by suppliebased on ending balance

The total amount of the top five prepayments of the ending balance, classified by

concentration of prepaid objects, aggregated to RMB35,184,147.32, repreSchfrg

of the total closing balance of prepayments.
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(7) Other receivables

Item 2022.13.31 2021.12.31
Other receivables 124,645,400.43 178,277,572.38
Total 124,645,400.43 178,277,572.38
1. Other receivables
(1) Ageing analysis:
Ageing 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Within 1 year 45,582,271.18 97,426,184.91
1-2 years 21,190,382.11 78,136,800.04
2-3years 70,809,442.32 57,458,874.87
3-4 years 53,446,718.32 83,995,938.90
4-5years 82,632,296.43 4,484,292.03
Over 5 years 25,634,820.10 21,476,481.91
Subtotal 299,295,930.46 342,978,572.66

Less: Provision for bad debts

174,650,530.03

164,701,000.28

Total

124,645,400.43

178,277,572.38
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(1) Other receivables hyethod of bad debt provision

Type

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Book balance

Provision for bad debts

Amount

Percentage
(%)

Amount

Percentage
(%)

Carrying value

Book balance

Provision for bad debts

Amount

Percentage
(%)

Amount

Percentage
(%)

Carrying value

Provision for bad
debts
made on an
individual basis

129,805,890.71

43.37

129,805,890.71

100.00

129,805,890.71

37.85

129,805,890.71

100.00

Provision for bad
debts
made on a
grouping basis

169,490,039.75

56.63

44,844,639.32

26.46

124,645,400.43

213,172,681.95

62.15

34,895,109.57

16.37

178,277,572.38

Including

Expected credit
loss of grouping
basis

169,490,039.75

56.63

44,844,639.32

26.46

124,645,400.43

213,172,681.95

62.15

34,895,109.57

16.37

178,277,572.38

Total

299,295,930.46

100.00

174,650,530.03

124,645,400.43

342,978,572.66

100.00

164,701,000.28

178,277,572.38
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Other receivables assessed individually for provision for bad debts at the end of the year

2022.12.31
Name Book balance Provisionfor bad Percentag®6) Reasgqs for
debts Provision
Beijing Bound Estimated
Assegai Technical 127,799,293.21 127,799,293.21 100.00 imecoverable
and TradeCo., Ltd
Beijing Yalian
Yashijie 2,006,597.50 2,006,597.50 100.00 _ Estimated
Technology Trade irrecoverable
Co,, Ltd
Total 129,805,890.71 129,805,890.71

Otherreceivabls with provision for bad debts on a grouping basis

The project of collective assessment

Name . : 2022.12.31
Other receivables Provision for bad debts Percentag@o)
Within 1 year 45,582,271.17 227,911.55 0.50
1-2 years 21,190,382.11 2,119,038.22 10.00
2-3 years 70,809,442.33 14,161,888.46 20.00
3-4 years 2,177,905.54 653,371.68 30.00
4-5 years 4,095,218.50 2,047,609.31 50.00
Over 5 years 25,634,820.10 25,634,820.10 100.00
Total 169,490,039.75 44,844,639.32
(2) Provision for bad debt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Expected credit | Expected credit
Expected credit | losses during the: losseduring the

Provision for bad debt losses for next 12:  whole life span whole Total
months (not credit life span
impaired) (credit impaired)
Beginning Balance (1/1/2021 34,895,109.57 129,805,890.71: 164,701,000.28

Beginning balance for the
current year (1/1/2021 )
--Transfer to stage 2
--Transfer to stage 3
--Transfer back stage 2
--Transfer back stagel
Provision made during the yeé 9,828,482.18 9,828,482.18
Reverse during the year
Offset during the year

Written during off the year 1,269,674.11 1,269,674.11
Other changes 1,390,721.68 1,390,721.68
Closing Balance 44,844,639.32 129,805,890.71: 174,650,530.03

(3) Provision for bad debts made, reversed or recovered dhemgporting period.

Change in the year

Transferred
Type 2021.12.31 Accrued form Offset or written off 2022.12.31
consolidation
E’é‘:‘fgitfd 34,895,109.57 082848218  1,390,721.68  1,269,674.11 44,844,639.32
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Change in the year
Transferred
Type 2021.12.31 Accrued form Offset or written off 2022.12.31
consolidation
loss of
grouping
basis
Provision
for bad
debts
made on i 129,805,890.71 129,805,890.71
an
individual
basis
Total 164,701,000.28 9,828,482.18 1,390,721.68 1,269,674.11 174,650,530.03

(4) Other receivables actually written off during the reporting period

Item Amount
Written-off 1,269,674.11

(5) Others categorized by nature

Nature of other receivables 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Comeandgo money 262,086,444.37 318,551,152.56
Reserve 23,954,251.82 12,150,044.54
Others 13,255,234.27 12,277,375.56
Total 299,295,930.46 342,978,572.66

(6) Top five other receivables by ending balance of debtors
The aggregate amount of the top five other receivables at the end of the period, grouped by party
in default, was RMB200,421,207.96, representitg96% of the total ending balanad other

receivables, and the corresponding aggregate closing balance mfthsion for bad debts was
RMB146,294,528.26.
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(8) Inventories

Breakdown of inventories

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Provision for

impairment of
inventories/

Provision for
impairment of

Type inventories/ rovision for
yp Book balance provision for Carrying value Book balance = POV Carrying value
. . impairment of
impairment of
contract
contract
performance
performance cost
cost

Raw

material | 919,977,229.57 1,929,365.58 918,047,863.99: 779,717,096.05 : 1,386,152.41: 778,330,943.64
S

Z‘r’ggje'gs 380,410,500.74  510,515.67 | 379,899,985.07 351,489,049.94  12,078.72 & 351,476,971.22

Fg:)'f)gid 1,011,717,053.25 43,073,014.25 @ 968,644,039.00 819,052,548.38 | 9,926,674.65 809,125,873.73
11,354,905.7

Total | 2,312,104,783.56 45512,895.50 @ 2,266,591,888.06 1,950,258,694.37 5 1,938,933,788.59

Provision for impairment of inventories and provision for impairment of contract

performance cost

Increase f or the year Decrease for the year
Item 2021.12.31 2022.12.31
Provision made Others Reyersal or Others
writing-off
Raw
. 1,386,152.41 719,486.96 176,273.79 1,929,365.58
materials
Work in
12,078.72 579,841.68 81,404.73 510,515.67
progress
F;‘clzzzd 9,926,674.65 37,233,324.62 4,086,985.02 43,073,014.25
Total 11,324,905.78 37,952,811.58 579,841.68: 4,344,663.54 45,512,895.50

(9) Non-current assets due within one year

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Longterm receivables due within one year 4,844,368.53 16,275,600.92
Finance lease receivables due within one year 697,871.20
Loans and advances due within one year 14,880,000.00
Total 4,844,368.53 31,853,472.12

(10)  Other current assets

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Insurance 1,092,883.70 1,088,498.90
Advance Payment of Income Tax 80,748,883.31 115,332,786.84
Others 3,675,430.41 5,245,754.22
Total 85,517,197.42 121,667,039.96
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(11) Long-term receivables
Information on long-term receivables
2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Provisi Provisio
Item on for n for Carrying Range of
Book balance bad Carrying Value: Book balance bad Value discount rate
debts debts
Finance
lease 6%-8%
payments
Receipt in
installment g 559 759.08 8,259,759.08 = 11,129,273.70 11,129,273.70 4.75%6.00%
s for sale of
goods
Total 8,259,759.08 8,259,759.08 | 11,129,273.70 11,129,273.70
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(12) Long-term equity investments
Change for the year
Decr Investment gain Adjustmen Declarati
ease or loss 9 tto onand | Provision Ending balance of
Investee 2021.12.31 Increase in in . other Other changes: payment of 2022.12.31 provision for
. . recognized . . . ; Others . .
investment inves . . compreh in equity of cash | impairme impairment
using equity ) .
tmen ensive dividend nt
method . )
t income or profit
1.Associates
Beijing Bound
Assegai Technical | 138,024,410.41 138,024,410.41 138,024,410.41
and Trade Co., Ltd.
Waterstone
Pharmaceuticals 105,757,377.67 -12,638,643.86: -163,362.01: 782,200.70 93,737,572.50
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd.
Sichuan Rekind - 3 966 766,69 16,154,534.23 120,121,300.92
Medtec Inc.
Lepu Bl?_?(:larma €O 123,085,543.37 -94,925717.02 15,124.10 | 94,148,209.54 122,323,159.99
Beijing QS Medical )
Technology Co., Ltd. 59,660,702.26 5,890,484.13 53,770,218.13
Beijing Yuding
Additive
Manufacturing 70,603,359.93 2,302,151.02 72,905,510.95
Research Institute
Co., Ltd.
Aortec Medical
Technology Co.Ltd. 50,930,399.78 -798,428.03 50,131,971.75
Star Cl_cl’meo dpharma 21,413,876.54 -2,057,895.97  503,001.06  -53,546.47 529,192.69  20,334,627.85
Beijing Zhongan
Yisheng Medical 17,698,630.95 : 2,285,714.00 -910,235.86 19,074,109.09
Technology Co., Ltd.
Beijing Anpu
Technology Co., Ltd. 119,570.01 334,922.80 454,492.81
Ningbo Kaisheng
Investment
Management Center 255,953.70 4,416.43 260,370.13
(Limited Partnership
Ningbo Jinyi 99,513.24 -58.78 99,454.46
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Investment
Management Center
(limited Partnership

Ningbo Hengsheng

Hengrui Investment

Management Center
(Limited Partnership

182,324.69

3,810.70

186,135.39

Ningbo Meiunicom
Investment
Management Center
(Limited Partnership

49,491.63

-60.01

49,431.62

Xi'an Chaogian
Intelligent
TechnologyCo., Ltd

45,949,369.07

-2,042,323.60

43,907,045.47

Beijing Haijinge
Medicine Technology
Co., Ltd

111,504,150.74

11,098,576.96

-6,202,760.38

116,399,967.32

Xinyu Baiaotongda
BiotechnologyCo.,
Ltd.

24,995,979.78

25,000,000.00

-106.62

49,995,873.16

Beijing Purun
Medical Equipment
Co., Ltd

10,464,027.03

360,676.64

10,824,703.67

Tianjin Walkman
Biomaterial Co., Ltd.

226,319,632.86

21,397,682.21

11,510,706.38

259,228,021.45

Shenzhen Bone
Medical Devices Co.,
Ltd.

43,207,471.70

-3,175,638.66

40,031,833.04

Hunan Pinxing
Bioengineering Co.,
Ltd.

55,485,412.15

30,000,000.00

-1,994,313.35

83,491,098.80

Shenzhen Ruihan
Medical Technology
Co., Ltd.

72,611,914.00

-8,169,365.76

64,442,548.24

Beijing Yuewei

Medical Technology 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.
Beijing

Anyoushengshi Clinic 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00
Co., Ltd.
Anyou 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00

Ophthalmology Clinic
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(Fuzhou) Co., Ltd.

Subtotal 1,209,773,964.2CG 158,995,310.21 -90,833,476.49 354,763.15 88,674,103.39 529,192.69 1,367,493,857.15 138,024,410.41

Total 1,209,773,964.2C 158,995,310.21 -90,833,476.49 354,763.15 88,674,103.39 529,192.69 1,367,493,857.15 138,024,410.41

Note: During the reporting period, the Company held a 9.7659% equity interest of Beijing Yiliankang Technology Co., aghdvithbalance of RMBO due to an
excess loss incurred.
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(13) Investments in other equity instruments

1) Information on investments in other equity instruments

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Beijing Life InsuranceCo., Ltd 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
Chengdu Shengnuo Biotechnology Co.,.Ltd 143,985,600.00 237,232,800.00

Suzhou Danging Phase Il Innovative Pharmaceutical Indust
Investment PartnersHip.P.)

86,855,409.08

90,797,968.70

Beijing Synergetic Yixin Investment Partnersigijpnited

. 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
Partnership
ShanghaXingze Xinghe Investment Management CerfteP.) 47,177,815.19 48,208,964.46
Suzhou Sinovent Pharmaceutic@ls., Ltd 45,000,000.00 45,000,000.00

Shenzhen City Hechuang Intelligent and Health Venture
Investment Fun@d..P.)

44,218,115.69

44,218,115.69

Changzhou Shanlan Medical Investment Partnei@iniited
Partnership

32,958,797.12

38,436,955.65

Beijing Chongde Yingsheng Venture Capi@o., Ltd

10,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

Shanghai Shujia Medical Managemé@., Ltd

10,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

Shanghai Magic Sugar Medical Technoldgy., Ltd

200,000.00

200,000.00

Genapsys,lic "Genapsys"

159,361,220.27

Gritstone Oncology, Ific "Gritstone™

45,691,089.39

155,999,767.55

Rgenix,Int "Rgenix™

42,117,281.40

79,680,580.04

PionyrImmunotherapeutics, hc"Pionyr")

63,141,071.85

57,833,904.72

Beam Therapeutics,hc"Beam™

30,348,324.23

56,639,729.16

MeiraGTx,LLC "MeiraGTx"™

13,611,765.51

45,746,864.77

Oric Pharmaceuticals,hc"Oric"”

18,388,963.21

42,036,807.57

Cold Genesys,Iric. "Cold™

41,756,422.39

38,246,617.83

Shandong Boshan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

39,000,000.00

GANG LIINVESTMENT GROUP

104,469,000.00

Total

1,168,919,655.0€

1,509,640,296.41
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2) Information on investments in equity instruments notheld for trading

. Reasorfor transfer
- . Amount of retained . .
Dividend income . Reason for designation a: from other
) ) Accumulated earnings transferred . .
Item recognized during . Accumulated loss at fair value through over comprehensive
gain from other L . )
the year L comprehensive income : income to retained
comprehensive incom .
earnings
. According to the
Chengdu Shengnuo Biotechnology Co.,.Ltd i 1,944,000.00 4,514,400.00 management judgmen
Shanghai Xingze Xinghe Investment 26,852.84 1,728.965.23 1,469,620.45 According to t_he Sales
Management Centék.P.) management judgmen
Changthu S_ha_nlan Medical Investment 7.200,035.01 6.120,029.76 According to t_he Sales
Partnership (limited Partnership) management judgmen
Genapsys 173,985,158.99 | -173,985,158.99 According tothe Disposal
management judgmen
Oric R 3,054,198.81 According to the
management judgmen
. According to the
Pionyr 47,309,151.55 - management judgmen
Beam 18,768,568.68 - According to the
management judgmen
Gritstone . 89,522,895.85 According to the
management judgmeén
. According to the
MeiraGTx 6,282,026.83 management judgmen
. According to the
Rgenix - 51,308,642.93 management judgmen
Cold 1,378,791.54 - According to the
management judgmeén
(14)  Other non-current financial assets
Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Guizhou Yizhiying TechnologZo., Ltd 16,500,000.00 6,500,000.00

Suzhou Prius Gene Technologg., Ltd
Shining3d TeclCo., Ltd

10,000,000.00
132,110,000.00

10,000,000.00
77,340,000.00
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Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31

Total 158,610,000.00 93,840,000.00
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(15) Investment properties

Investment properties at cost method

Item

Buildings

Land use rights

Total

1.0riginal carrying amount

" 1" 2021.12.31

380,764,632.78

2,929,797.60

383,694,430.38

(2) Increase during thgear

28,154,759.60

28,154,759.60

& Purchase

0 Transfers from inventories/fixed
assets/construction in progress

28,154,759.60

28,154,759.60

8 Increase from business
consolidations

(3) Decrease during the year

0 Disposals

"4 2022.12.31

408,919,392.38

2,929,797.60

411,849,189.98

2.Accumulated depreciation or
amortization

" 1" 2021.12.31

65,593,595.87

504,954.51

66,098,550.38

(2) Increase during the year

15,425,731.73

78,252.42

15,503,984.15

0 Provision made camortization

8,293,141.06

78,252.42

8,371,393.48

& Transfers from fixed assets

7,132,590.67

7,132,590.67

8 Increase from business
consolidations

(3) Decrease during the year

0 Disposals

© 4 2022.12.31

81,019,327.60

583,206.93

81,602,534.53

3.Provision for impairment

© 17 2021.12.31

(2) Increase during the year

& Provision made

(3) Decrease during the year

0 Disposals

"4 2022.12.31

4.Carrying value

" 1" Closing @rrying value

327,900,064.78

2,346,590.67

330,246,655.45

2° Opening arrying value

315,171,036.91

2,424,843.09

317,595,880.00

(16) Fixed assets

1) Fixed assets and disposal of fixed assets

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Fixed assets 2,604,619,204.3C 2,182,280,171.68
Total 2,604,619,204.3C 2,182,280,171.68
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2) Breakdown of fixed assets

Item

Buildings

Machinery and equipmen

Transportation equipment

Office &
other equipment

Total

1.0riginal carrying amount

~ 17 2021.12.31 1,604,341,347.74 1,467,908,682.22 46,083,582.46 498,950,779.71 3,617,284,392.13
(2) Increase during the year 230,286,534.04 442,406,654.03 2,813,617.35 89,907,840.02 765,414,645.44
0 Purchases 5,418,489.09 150,731,691.39 2,198,036.16 75,454,756.74 233,802,973.38
8 Transfers from cons;r;g:zgsl 116,749,662.14 159,525,572.12 4,996,650.06 281,271,884.32

& Additions due to business
combinations involving entities not under 108,118,382.81 44,735,890.39 615,581.19 9,456,433.22 162,926,287.61

common control

8 Transfers from investment properties 87,413,500.13 87,413,500.13
(3) Decrease during the year 28,154,759.60 9,412,325.81 1,505,116.42 14,841,096.99 53,913,298.82
3 Disposal or retirement 9,412,325.81 1,505,116.42 14,841,096.99 25,758,539.22

8 Transfers to investment properties

28,154,759.60

28,154,759.60

"4 2022.12.31

1,806,473,122.1¢&

1,900,903,010.44

47,392,083.39

574,017,522.74

4,328,785,738.75

2.Accumulated depreciation

" 1" 2021.12.31

351,635,205.12

744,909,683.32

34,771,253.75

290,323,761.75

1,421,639,903.94

(2) Increase during the year 74,987,761.27 141,896,381.13 4,563,662.39 91,343,936.26 312,791,741.05
d Provision made 57,865,244.45 126,329,343.72 4,084,209.07 85,122,019.56 273,400,816.80
d Additions due to business

combinations involving entities not under 17,122,516.82 15,567,037.41 479,453.32 6,221,916.70 39,390,924.25

common control

(3) Decrease during the year 7,132,590.67 6,786,157.68 1,293,719.18 8,416,034.88 23,628,502.41
0 Disposal or retirement 6,786,157.68 1,293,719.18 8,416,034.88 16,495,911.74
0 Transfers to investment properties 7,132,590.67 7,132,590.67

"4 2022.12.31

419,490,375.72

880,019,906.77

38,041,196.96

373,251,663.13

1,710,803,142.58

3.Provision for impairment

© 17 2021.12.31

13,275,844.55

56,592.37

31,879.59

13,364,316.51

(2) Increase during the year

d Provision made

& Additions due to business
combinations involving entities not under

common control
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. . . . . Office &
Item Buildings Machinery and equipment Transportation equipment other equipment Total
(3) Decrease during the year 924.64 924.64
0 Disposal or retirement 924.64 924.64
© 47 2022.12.31 13,275,844.55 56,592.37 30,954.95 13,363,391.87
4.Carrying value
" 17 Closing @rrying value 1,373,706,901.91 1,020,826,511.3C 9,350,886.43 200,734,904.66 2,604,619,204.30
~ 27 Opening arrying value 1,239,430,298.07 722,942,406.53 11,312,328.71 208,595,138.37 2,182,280,171.68
Note:

1) The Company signed a RMB fund mortgage contract with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited @wsjinyping SutBranch on 21 June

2018. The collateral is the building. As of 31 December 2022, the building with a net value of RMBB57,879,825.05 wdsrstilbrigage. Please refer to the
note "V. (34) Longterm Loan".

2) The Company signed a RMB loan rnigage contract with China Development Bank Corporation BeijingB3abch in December 2018s refer to "V. (34)

Longterm Loan" in this noteThe collateral involves the buildings and land use rightsofA31 December 2022, building buildings with a watue of

RMB87,390,661.39 and land use rights with a net value of RMB 609,759,999.48 were still under mortgage.
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17)

Construction in progress

1) Construction in progress and construction materials

Iltem

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Construction in progress

1,513,606,170.3C

1,158,461,800.35

Total

1,513,606,170.3C

1,158,461,800.35

2) Breakdown of construction in progress

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Item Provisi Provisio
rovision n for Carrying
Book balance for Carrying value Book balance : . )
. - impairm value
impairment
ent
Lepu International 4 5, 640 259 21 1,204,640,289.21  785,446,391.68 785,446,391
Center Project .68
Other engineering
projects of Zhejiang 260,983,406
Lepu Pharmaceutica 188,813,984.32 188,813,984.32  260,983,406.22 5o
Industry
Synthesis workshoy 41,852,925.21 41,852,925.21 12,388,458.73 12'388’4753
Lepu
Pharmaceuticz0
billion tablets of 5 56 959 19 21,636,920.19  1,705398.48 1,705,398.4
solid pharmaceutica 8
preparation
workshop
40 million powder 34,413,992.
needle workshop 34,413,992.31 31
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Other 56,687,711.94  25,669.57 56,662,042.37 63,549,822.50 25’623' 63‘524'155'
Total 1,513,631,839.87 25,669.57: 1,513,606,170.3C 1,158,487,469.92 25’623 1’158’6106;58
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Aumn? Ratio of
Other accumulate
transf . o Rate of
decrease d Accumulated | Includingcapitali PP Source
. erto - Progress of capitalizatio
Name of Increase inthe: d contributio . amount of zedamount of . of
. Budget B fixed 2022.12.31 constructio o - . n of interest .
project period amount n to the capitalized interest in the . fundin
assets: . . n - . in the
- in the constructio interest period ) g
in the . period (%)
erio period n to budget
P (%)
Lepu
memation 2,100,000,000.00  785446,391.68 419,193,897.53 1,204,640,289.2 57.36 Inprogress 71,293,244.37 3424147222 490  Other
Project
Total 785,446,301.68 419,193,897.53 1.204,640,289.2 71,293,244.37  34,241,472.22
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Right-of-use assets
Item Buildings and structures Total
1.0Original carrying amount
" 17 2021.12.31 244,399,504.69 244,399,504.69
(2) Increase for the year 134,168,610.50 134,168,610.50
0 Increase in leases 119,501,197.09 119,501,197.09
& Additions due to business combinations 14,667,413.41 14,667,413.41

involving entities not under common control

& Revaluation adjustments

(3) Decrease for the year

47,965,114.29

47,965,114.29

& Transfers tdixed assets

0 Disposal 47,965,114.29 47,965,114.29
T 47 2022.12.31 330,603,000.90 330,603,000.90
2.Accumulated depreciation
~ 17 2021.12.31 55,077,569.13 55,077,569.13
(2) Increase for the year 80,540,264.72 80,540,264.72
d Provision made 78,365,986.18 78,365,986.18
o Additions due to business combinations 2174.278.54 2174.278.54

involving entities not under common control

(3) Decrease for the year

26,930,942.80

26,930,942.80

O Transfers to fixed assets

0 Disposal 26,930,942.80 26,930,942.80
© 47 2022.12.31 108,686,891.05 108,686,891.05
3.Provision for impairment
© 17 2021.12.31

(2) Increase for the year

& Provision made

(3) Decrease for the year

O Transfers to fixed assets

3 Disposal

"4 2022.12.31

4.Carrying value

1" Closing arrying value

221,916,109.85

221,916,109.85

" 27 Opening arrying value

189,321,935.56

189,321,935.56

(19) Intangible assets

Breakdown of intangible assets

Item Land use rights Patent rights Non-patent rights Others Total
1.Original carrying
amount
~17 20211231 | 1,161,441,575.75 490,096,585.25  444,502,99548 115,786277.07 2,211,827,433.55
ii)a'r””easem”he 56,309,215.01  49,813,884.90 7,141,668.00  19,402,015.67  132,666,783.58
3 Purchase 41,063,749.40  4,024,940.09 604,536.99  3,945070.19 49,638,296.67
d Internal
research & 45,743,654.65 6,401,197.33 52,144,851.98
development
& Additions due
to business
combinations 15,245,465.61 135,933.68  15,456,045.48 30,883,634.93

involving entities
not under common

control
Eﬁl Bzgease for 54,231,716.79 1,281.93 54,232,998.72
0 Disposal 1,281.93 1,281.93

0 Lapsed and
derecognised parts

54,231,716.79

© 47 2022.12.31 1,217,750,790.7¢€

539,910,470.15

397,412,946.69

135,187,010.81

2.Accumulated
amortization

© 17 2021.12.31

210,752,616.52

329,728,466.62

186,383,356.92

76,579,812.55

54,231,716.79
2,290,261,218.41

803,444,252.61
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Item Land use rights Patent rights Nor-patent rights Others Total
gze)a'r””ease for the 37,764,378.16  66,316,197.27 31,424,182.34  26,148,110.68  161,652,868.45
8 Purchase 35,826,712.55  66,309,245.99 31,354,435.36  20,347,943.38  153,838,337.28
o Internal
research & 1,937,665.61 6,951.28 69,746.98  5,800,167.30 7,814,531.17

development

(3) Decrease for

45,139,031.06 153.06 45,139,184.12

the year

0 Disposal 153.06 153.06

0 Lapsed and
derecogF:lised parts 45,139,031.06 45,139,031.06
© 4 2022.12.31 248,516,994.68 396,044,663.89 172,668,508.26 102,727,770.17 919,957,936.94
3.Provision for
impairment
~ 17 2021.12.31 650,811.61 9,092,685.73 9,743,497.34
(2) Increase for the
year

o Provision
made
(3) Decrease for 9,092,685.73 9,092,685.73
the year

0 Disposal

o Lapsed and

derecognﬁsed part 9,092,685.73 9,092,685.73
~ 4 2022.12.31 650,811.61 650,811.61
4.Carrying value

1" Closing 969,233,796.08 143,214,094.65  224,744,438.49  32,459,240.64 1,369,652,469.86
carrying value
" 27 Opening

) 950,688,959.23 159,717,307.02 249,026,952.83  39,206,464.52.  1,398,639,683.60
carrying value

Note: As of 31 DecemberR022, the intangible assetgeneratedrom the Company's internal
research and development of intangible assets accounted for 16.38% of the balance of intangible

assets. See "\16)" for the mortgage of intangibkssets.
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(20) Research and development expenses
Increase for the year Decrease for the year
Additions due
to business
Int | h combinations T ferred t
Item 2021.12.31 nternal researc Recognized as ranslerea 1o povision for 2022.12.31 Detailed basis for capitalization
and development involvi intangible assets current profit impairment
expense involving 9 or loss p
entities not
under common
control
Suitable
preparationfor 4.6 493 590,74 11,452,278.27 427,945,869.01
diabetes
mellitus

Heart plugging
device

53,312,694.72

19,400,583.18

16,733,627.73

55,979,650.17

According to theaccounting standards fc
enterprises: 1, there is no material obsta

Catheter 51,144,440.17  88,584,200.79 16,093,713.82 123,634,927.14 " the technical realization of R & [
project projects; 2, R & D project satisfies th
Valvular mass production conditions; 3, frot
project 89,325,527.45 51,799,612.67 91,125,140.12 expected market demand for the produ
Digital project or services, future economicemefits are
platform 22,730,178.82 73,505,980.57 96,236,159.39 expected to flow to the Company; 4, R
construction D expenditure can be reliably measur
Renalartery and collected; the listed projects satisfy t
catheter and 8,939,866.64 127,130.68 9,066,997.32: conditions for R & D expenditure
equipment capitalization. .

Surgical A

auxiliary 8,666,638.39 6,533,447.21 15,200,085.60

instruments

The Digital 5,473,107.45 3,464,195.76 8,937,303.21

DSA Project

145



2022 Annual Repof Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Increase for the year

Decrease for the year

Internal research

Additions due

to business

combinations

Item 2021.12.31 Recognized as Transferred.to Provision for 2022.12.31 Detailed basis for capitalization
and development involvi intangible assets current profit impairment
expense involving 9 or loss p
entities not
under common
control

Al-related
software and 2,649,028.73 451,649.74 3,100,678.47
hardware
development
Others 102,758,086.14 71,297,023.95 2,355,328.35 16,216,831.96 160,193,606.48

Total 711,493,159.25 326,616,102.82 2,355,328.35 52,144,851.98 988,319,738.44
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(21)  Goodwill

Changes in goodwiill

Investee Companies or matters
forming goodwill

Increase duringheyear

Decrease durinthe year

2021.12.31

Businessombinations Other

Disposal Other

2022.12.31

Book value

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy
MaterialCo., Ltd

48,281,830.04

48,281,830.04

Lepu Medical
Equipmen(Beijing) Co., Ltd

9,342,820.07

9,342,820.07

Beijing Star GK Medical Device
Co., Ltd

121,871,085.31

121,871,085.31

Comed B.V.

18,585,245.77

18,585,245.77

Lepu Medical Electronics
TechnologyCo., Ltd

47,855,359.94

47,855,359.94

Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

310,645,774.09

310,645,774.09

Beijing Haihetian Technology
Developmento., Ltd

84,686,478.35

84,686,478.35

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy
Material Co., Ltd

20,119,884.31

20,119,884.31

Lepu Medical
Equipmen(Beijing) Co., Ltd

58,498,557.73

58,498,557.73

Beijing Star GK Medical Device
Co., Lid

374,821,392.22

374,821,392.22

Comed B.V.

161,437,254.14

161,437,254.14

Lepu Medical Electronics
TechnologyCo., Ltd

532,643,436.89

532,643,436.89

Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

102,648,567.78

102,648,567.78

Beijing Haihetian Technology
DevelopmenCo., Ltd

81,138,405.26

81,138,405.26

Shanghai Shape MemoAlloy
Material Co., Ltd

39,517,205.84

39,517,205.84

Lepu Medical

46,445,203.02

46,445,203.02
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Investee Companies or matters
forming goodwill

2021.12.31

Increase duringheyear

Decrease durinthe year

Businessombinations

Other

Disposal

Other

2022.12.31

Equipmen(Beijing) Co., Ltd

Beijing Star GK Medical Device
Co., Ltd

63,095,761.52

63,095,761.52

Comed B.V.

6,222,591.99

6,222,591.99

Lepu Medical Electronics
TechnologyCo., Ltd

5,630,100.00

5,630,100.00

Lepu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

38,074,178.51

38,074,178.51

Beijing Haihetian Technology
DevelopmentCo., Ltd

44,440,139.86

44,440,139.86

Liaoning Bo'ao Bie
pharmaceuticaCo., Ltd

258,946,517.73

258,946,517.73

Shanghai Yocaly Health
Managemen€o., Ltd

339,697,339.55

339,697,339.55

Shenzhen Viatom Technology
Co., Ltd

66,708,602.76

66,708,602.76

Shaanxi XingtaBiotechnology
Co., Ltd Asset Groups

43,619,177.73

43,619,177.73

IPE Biotechnology Co., Ltd 2,778,719.69 2,778,719.69
Lepu Youkang (Hainan) Health
Industry Co., Ltd (used name:
Huiyan Shijin(Hainan) 6,372,201.50 6,372,201.50

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd ( used
name: HuiyarShijin(Hainan)
Pharmaceutical Co., Lid

Aonuo(Qingdao)Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd

85,693,914.06

85,693,914.06

Suzhou Bonsmile Medical
TechnologyCo., Ltd

122,553,625.20

122,553,625.20

Tianjin Jiumijiu Optometry
TechnologyCo., Ltd

153,974,707.22

153,974,707.22

Beijing Huaco Healthcare
Technologie<o., Ltd

139,648,752.7C

139,648,752.70

Qingdao Lishan Eye Nursing
Product Co.,Ltd.

35,214,700.12

35,214,700.12

ShanxiTiansheng Pharmaceutice
Co., Ltd.

16,708,313.46

16,708,313.46

Wenzhou Jingyuan
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

5,575,458.64

5,575,458.64

Subtotal

3,435,994,830.7€

57,498,472.22

3,493,493,303.00
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Investee Companies or matters 2021.12.31 _ Incr_eas_e durintheyear _ Decrease durinthe year 20221231
forming goodwiill Businessombinations Other Disposal Other

Provision for impairment

ComedB.V. 18,585,245.77 18,585,245.77
Beijing Yongzheng

Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. 35,889,505.24 35,889,505.24
peling Star Medical Devices 60,186,381.16 60,186,381.16
Lepu Medical Electronics

Technology Co., Ltd. 47,855,359.94 47,855,359.94
Subtotal 162,516,492.11 162,516,492.11
Book value 3,273,478,338.67 57,498,472.22 3,330,976,810.89

Note: The ending balance of the Compampoodwill accounts for 13.60% of the total assets in the consolidated financial statemen@ooifhay.

1) In January 2022, the Compdrysubsidiary (Beijing Litong Technology Co., Ltd.) acquired 70.00% of equity of Qingdao Lishan Eye Nursing Product Co., Ltd.
through capital increase at RMB50,000,000.00. The goodwill is measured as the excesssbfahine business combination over the net fair value of Lishan Eye
Nursing Product Co., Ltdd &lentifiable assets and liabilities. The Company recognized goodwill of F&\2R4,700.12Zrom acquiring Lishan Eye Nursing Product

Co., Ltd..

2)In May 2022, he Compang subsidiary (Lepuyoukang (Beijing) Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.) acquired 51.00% of equity of Shanxi Tiansheng
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. through capital increase at RdME00,000.00he goodwill is measured as the excess of the cobediusiness combination over the net

fair value of Shanxi Tiansheégglentifiable assets and liabilities. The Company recognized goodwill of F\B8,313.4%0m acquiring Shanxi Tiansheng.
3) In October 2022, the Compaysubsidiary (Sichuan Xingtai PWéedical Technology Co., Ltd.) acquired 76.00% of equity of Wenzhou Jingyuan Biotechnology
Co., Ltd. throughissuing equity securities ®MB32,173,850.30The goodwill is measured as the excess of the cost of the business combination over the net fair

value of Wenzhou Jingyuénglentifiable assets and liabilities. The Company recognized goodwill of )38/8,458.63rom acquiring Wenzhou Jingyuan.See the
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note "VI. Changes in Scope of Consolidation " for details.

4) In the impairment test of goodwilelating relevant asset group or an asset group portfolio, when there are indications of impairment of -gelatingll asset
group or an asset group portfolio, first conduct the impairment test of asset group or an asset group portfolio, exclgoatyvaincalculate the recoverable
amount, and compare it with the relevant carrying amount. If the carrying amount of the asset group or the portfolithexamedgrable amount of the asset
group or the portfolio, the Company shall recognize the impairmest Then conduct the impairment test of the asset group or the portfolio to which goodwill has
been allocated, compare the carrying amount, including the goodwill with its recoverable amount. If the carrying amounitateeds the recoverable antoun

of the asset group or the portfolio, the Company shall recognize the impairment loss. Once the above impairment letsesr®fressgnized, they will not be

recovered during the later accounting period.

5) Composition of asset group or asset grpagfolio: for the carrying amount of goodwill from business combination, it is allocated to the relevant asset group in a
reasonable basis from the date of acquisition; if it is difficult to allocate to the relevant asset group, allocateeietmthasset group portfolio. When the carrying
amount of goodwill is apportioned to the relevant asset group or asset group portfolio, it shall be apportioned actiwedingpirtion of the fair value of each

asset group or asset group portfolio to thaltfair value of the relevant asset group or asset group portfolio. If the fair value is difficult to measure reliailfaat sh
apportioned according to the proportion of the carrying amount of each asset group or asset group portfolio to thenptahreamt of the relevant asset group or

asset group portfolio.
6) Expected value of future cash flows of the asset group (recoverable amount): The recoverable amount is estimated resieigt tvelUip of expected future net

cash flow" model. The weigbd average cost of capital before tax (WACC) is used as the discount rate of the enterprise free cash flow by disequatagtth

value of future cash flow of the asset group allocated.
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7) Determining and measuring recoverable amount

(1) Important assumptions and basis

W assumes that the enterprise continues to operate according to the actual situation of the assets on the base date of appraisa

Y assumes that the company will have even cash outflow and cash inflow after thetdasel dash outflow.

y assumes that on the basis of the existing management mode and management level, the company's business scope andistede with tom current
direction.

Y no major changes occur to the in relevant interest rates, exclaeggetax benchmarks and tax rates, and policy collection fees.

(2) Key parameters: The cash flow projections used for calculation is based on-yeafiyeriod financial budgets (or profit forecasts) approved by management,
and pretax discount tax wit a range of 11.84% to 15.73%.The detailed forecast period for the cash flow projections of the asset group is 5 jearashafidw
remains stable in the sixth and subsequent years. The gross margin and sales are used as the key parametansgirihdetershi flow projections of the asset
group to which goodwill is allocated. The management determines that the budget gross margin and sales are basedroartiie gnussales realized before the
budget period, and the management's expectatithe development of the industry and the expected operating situation in the future years.

(3) Discount rate (weighted average cost of capital WACC) (before tax) confirmation basis:

The discount rate R was determined by using the weighted average cagitalfmodel WACC (before tax)

R=Ke*[E/(E+D)]+Kd*(1-T)*[D/(E+D)]

Note:

T: income tax rate

Kd: Debt cost (interest rate for loans over five years)

Ke: Equity capital cost, the equity capital cost is determined by the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM);
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the calculation formula is as followke=Ri+ E R P1#Rt
Note:

Rt: risk-free return rate (riskree yield rate over 10 years)
ERP: Market risk premium

b1: Financial leverage risk factor

Rc: Enterprisespecific risk value

(22)  Long-term deferred expenses

Item 2021.12.31 Additionsduring theperiod Amortizationfor the period Other decreases 2022.12.31
Renovation costs 116,027,107.35 90,795,008.95 56,902,707.48 149,919,408.82
Zzancmg consulting 13,047,684.12 4,286,116.14 8,761,567.98
Mould 24,158,850.75 5,514,940.33 9,004,602.27 20,669,188.81
Others 44,544,995.48 17,957,976.33 8,970,605.06: 53,532,366.75

Total 197,778,637.70 114,267,925.61 79,164,030.95 232,882,532.36

(23) Deferredincometax assets and deferredhcometax liabilities
1) Deferred income taxassets not offset
ltem 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Deductible temporary difference Deferredincometax assets Deductible temporary difference Deferredincometax assets
z;‘;‘é'tss'on for impairment of 555,679,237.19 94,069,899.82 515,845,522.52 86,890,227.18
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ltem 2022.12.31 2021.12.31

Deductible temporary difference Deferredincometax assets Deductible temporary difference Deferredincometax assets
Unrealized financing income 949,069.04 142,360.36 1,499,310.50 224,896.58
Unrealized Internal Income 177,297,702.53 32,219,746.64 109,480,367.38 16,654,290.41
Deductible tax loss 67,039,748.39 14,440,726.53 68,911,067.78 14,348,597.59
Deferred income 82,323,728.03 12,348,559.18 52,929,454.01 7,939,418.10
Gains or losses arising from thé
equity held prior to the purchas
date are reneasured at fair 17,741,733.33 2,661,260.00 17,741,733.33 2,661,260.00
value
Others 51,173,822.88 8,435,512.12 56,881,382.51 8,836,165.32

Total

952,205,041.39

164,318,064.65

823,288,838.03

137,554,855.18
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2) Deferred income taxliabilities not offset

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Taxable temporary difference

Deferredincometax liabilities

Taxable temporary difference

Deferredincometax liabilities

Appraisal and value appreciation of consolida
assets of enterprises not under common contr

84492202653

154,781,116.24

888,069,202.29

162,773,807.56

Changes in the fairalue of financial assets

39,604,488.89

6,020,276.04

245,442,241.79

49,083,076.23

Gains or losses arising from the equity held p

to the purchase date-neeasured at fair value

213,728,382.8C

32,059,257.42

213,728,382.8C

32,059,257.42

Others

308646891.07

45,664,418.71

144,622,403.94

20,854,560.54

Total

1,405,901,789.29

238,525,068.41

1,491,862,230.82

264,770,701.75

3) Deferred income tax assets or liabilities presented as net of offsetting

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Reciprocal amount

Balance after offsetting

Reciprocal amount

Balance after offsetting

Deferred Tax Asset

32,846,631.67

131,471,432.98

137,554,855.18

Deferred Tax Liability

32,846,631.67

205,678,436.74

264,770,701.75

(24)  Other non-current assets
2022.12.31 2021.12.31
| o o
tem Bookbalance I_DrOV|§|on of Carrying value Bookbalance I_Drow_snon of Carrying value
impairment impairment
Prepaid project
payment and 196,751,576.91 196,751,576.91 195,846,524.54 195,846,524.54
equipment payment
Equity  investment 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00
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2022.12.31 2021.12.31
It isi o
em Bookbalance Tr;%\g?;r;r?tf Carrying value Bookbalance lijr;(;)\g?r?ﬁr;r?tf Carrying value
preparation funds
Others 149,378,808.33 149,378,808.33 42,524,595.73 42,524,595.73
Total 446,130,385.24 446,130,385.24 298,371,120.27 298,371,120.27
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(25)  Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings by category

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Pledge loans 30,030,708.36 55,058,819.45
Guaranteed borrowings 128,972,839.50 175,236,694.43
Credit loans 221,763,888.87 353,624,241.42
Total 380,767,436.73 583,919,755.30

Notes:

1) Shortterm borrowings include theorresponding amount of discounted and outstanding notes receivable that have not been derecognized totaling
RMB178,617,978.37

2) The pledge of the pledge loans is a fixed deposit of BMBI7,018.6@&broad.

(26) Notes payable

Types 2022.12.31 2021.12.31

Bankacceptance bills 182,573,344.20 228,532,548.74
Total 182,573,344.20 228,532,548.74

(27)  Accounts payable

Breakdown of accounts payable

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Within one year (inclusive) 1,115,816,796.3Z 1,055,871,678.51
1-2 years 194,657,227.02 47,695,551.72
2-3 years 12,122,996.26 20,173,469.65
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Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31

Over 3 years 15,051,635.16 10,889,103.44

Total 1,337,648,654.7€ 1,134,629,803.32
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(28)  Contract liabilit ies

Breakdown of contract liabilities

ltem 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Within one yeafinclusive) 653,557,100.78 318,356,225.65
1-2 years 52,282,948.47 21,021,288.52
2-3 years 13,319,483.61 4,528,141.98
Over 3 years 11,956,426.20 10,055,870.79
ltem 731,115,959.06 353,961,526.94
(29) Employee benefits payable
1) Breakdown of employee benefits payable
Iltem 2021.12.31 Increase Decrease 2022.12.31
Shortterm remuneration 198,069,507.22 1,961,297,125.48 1,954,859,527.07 204,507,105.63
Postemployment benefits 1,478,432.23 170,224,252.13 169,508,358.51 2,194,325.85
defined contribution plans
Terminationbenefits 12,425,515.40 12,425,515.40
Total 199,547,939.45 2,143,946,893.01 2,136,793,400.9¢ 206,701,431.48
2) Breakdown of short-term employee benefits
Item 2021.12.31 Increase Decrease 2022.12.31
(1) Salaries, bonuses, 193,545,362.30 1,678,352,576.27 1,674,351,495.01 197,546,443.56
allowances and subsidies
(2) Employee benefits 70,305,439.99 70,305,439.99
(3) Social insurance 888,995.98 98,359,017.83 97,861,060.97 1,386,952.84
contribution
Including: Medical insurance 798,172.04 91,885,231.20 91,389,604.11 1,293,799.13
contribution
Work-related injury 87,592.73 5,482,623.27 5,484,197.58 86,018.42

158



2022 Annual Repof Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Item 2021.12.31 Increase Decrease 2022.12.31
insurance contribution
Maternity insurance 3,231.21 991,163.36 987,259.28 7,135.29
contribution
(4) Housing ProvidenEund 603,867.08 91,988,699.82 91,295,579.18 1,296,987.72
(5) Labour union & employee 3,031,281.86 22,291,391.57 21,045,951.92 4,276,721.51

education funds
" 6 Shortterm paid absences
" 7 Shortterm profit

sharing schemes
Total 198,069,507.22 1,961,297,125.48 1,954,859,527.07 204,507,105.63

3) Breakdown of defined contribution plans

Item 2021.12.31 Increase Decrease 2022.12.31
Basic pension insurance 1,424,571.32 164,608,345.56 163,917,782.74 2,115,134.14
Unemployment insurance contribution 53,860.91 5,615,906.57 5,590,575.77 79,191.71
Total 1,478,432.23 170,224,252.13 169,508,358.51 2,194,325.85

(30) Taxes payable

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Value-added tax 157,446,690.38 72,766,315.73
Enterprise income tax 142,912,336.95 119,292,005.74
Individual income tax 5,245,783.83 4,785,780.79
City maintenance and construction tax 10,881,887.19 4,595,179.51
Educational surcharge 8,254,161.89 3,478,057.97
Others 7,952,229.41 5,844,315.27

Total 332,693,089.65 210,761,655.01

(31) Other payables
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Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Dividends payable 3,353,503.56 4,293,781.40
Other payable 478,584,471.05 323,108,965.23
Total 481,937,974.61 327,402,746.63
1. Dividends payable

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Dividends for ordinary shares 1,626,800.00 1,626,800.00
Dividends payable by subsidiaries to minority shareholders 1,726,703.56 2,666,981.40
Total 3,353,503.56 4,293,781.40

2. Other payable
(1) Other payable by nature

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Guarantee deposit 101,023,999.50 110,820,981.80
Current payments 180,081,427.76 115,631,032.13
Equity payments 60,344,849.89 60,000,000.00
Land and project funds 125,558,010.99 24,829,153.87
Others 11,576,182.91 11,827,797.43
Total 478,584,471.05 323,108,965.23

(32) Non-current liabilities due within one year
Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31

Long-term borrowings due within one year

272,250,000.00

184,250,000.00

Bonds payable due within one year

1,225,656,272.71

Long-term payable due within one year

Lease liabilities due withione year

62,170,871.67

65,489,598.07

Total

1,560,077,144.38

249,739,598.07
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(33)  Other current liabilities

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Output valueadded tax payable 63,551,803.84 24,039,717.73
Endorsed outstanding notes 46,269,295.48 19,793,600.00
Total 109,821,099.32 43,833,317.73
(34) Long-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings by category:
Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Pledge loans 145,201,590.28 245,366,819.44
Mortgage borrowings 100,737,722.13 440,767,666.67
Credit loans 485,609,079.61 523,370,998.64
Total 731,548,392.02 1,209,505,484.75
Notes:

1) On 21 August2018, the Company signed a loan contract of RB@Bmillion with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Beijing Changping

Subbranch According to the contract, the loan interest rateaiseinterest rate, and the pledge period is frbinJune2018 to 31 Decembef025. The

pledge is45% equity ofZhejiang LEPU Pharmaceutical Co., Ltteld by the company. As of 31 DecembeR2the balance of the loan w&MB145

million.

2) On 27 December 2018, the Company entered into a borrowing contract of RMB760 million with Beijing Branch of China Dev&apkpemith a

borrowing rate of benchmark interest rate, a pledge period from 27 December 2018 to 26 December 2027, and #hpldalye pdrcel No. T560082
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and buildings thereon of Lepu International, a subsidiary of the Company. Meanwhile, 7 buildings of the Company at Chedbdjian 3, Changping
District, Beijing, were also pledged for a period from 27 December 2018 De@émber 2027. As of 31 December 2022, the balance of such borrowing
was RMB220 million, of which longerm borrowings due within one year were RMB120 million and were reclassified toun@mt liabilities due within

one year.

(35) Bonds payable

1. Breakdown of bonds payable

Item 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Mediumterm notes 1,222,260,046.39
Convertible bonds 1,506,513,884.7¢ 1,451,136,827.9C
Total 1,506,513,884.7¢ 2,673,396,874.2¢
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Increase or decrease of bonds payafaecluding preferred shares, perpetuminds and other financial instruments classified as financial liabjlities

Reclassifie
Name of Date of . Bond Iszuiinc Interest Amortization Repayment dcifrgr?:]
Book value . Amount issued 2021.12.31 accrued at | of premiums in current s Other decrease 2022.12.31
bond issuance ;| term current i . liabilities
. par value and discounts period o
period due within
one year
First batch
of the 3year 24,900,000.0 24,900,000.0
medium 100.00 ;| 2020/4/9 Y 600,000,000.00 615,819,002.26 ! ! . 1,698,113.16 ! ! . 617,517,115.42
s 0 0
term notes
2020
Second
batch of the
medium 10000 2020/9/1  Y®&"  600,000,000.00 606,441,044.13 282000000 4 69811316 282000000 608,139,157.29
term notes S
2020
Convertible
corporate 10000 2021373 5V§ar 1,638,000,000G 1,451,136,827.9 745262583 2975 491357307 97,706.50 1,506,513,884.78
bonds
Total 2,838,000,00%0 2,673,396,874;.2 60,552,6253.8 56,331,93748 58,013,5737.9 97.706.50 1,225.656,272.71 1,506,513,884.78
Description:

1) As approved by the China Securities Regulatory Commission under license No. [2021] 741,

the Company publicly issued l&)B8860ble

corporate bonds with par value of RMB100 eact80march 2021, for a total issue amount of RMB1,638 million, witlugon rates of 0.3% in the first

year, 0.5% in the second year, 1.0% in the third year, 1.5% in the fourth year and 1.8% in the fifth year.The termvefrtilddedoonds under the issuance

is five years from the date of issuance, i.e. fRBhMarch 32021 to 29 March2026; the conversion period commences on the first trading day following the

expiry of the sixmonth period after the date of the issuance of the convertible bonds, and end on the maturity date of the Convertille. Bomads.,

October 82021 to29 March2026. The initial conversion price of the convertible bonds is RMB29.73 per share. The conversion price shall be adjusted upo

the issuance in case of certain events of the Company, such as distribution of share dividends, conversiaseonfishare capital, issuance of new shares

or rights issue or distribution of cash dividends (excluding any increase in the share capital as a result of converstamwedrtible bonds under the
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issuance). As approved at the 2020 annual generingethe Company carried out the profit distribution plan for 2020 and the conversion price of the
convertible bonds was adjusted from RMB29.73 per share to RMB29.50 perBinang. the reporting period, the company implemented the annual profit
distribution plan for 2021 and adjusted the conversion price from RMB29.50 per share to RMB29.23 per share. The conversisragjicgedarom
RMB29.23 per share to RMB28.68 per share after issuing the GDRs and the conversion price was adjusted from BaBP&u&8to RMB28.73 per

share.

2) The ending balance of the first phase of mediarmm notes in 2020 is RMB 617,517,115.42, which is reclassified teuwent liabilities due within one

year.

The ending balance of the secgrtthse of mediurerm notes in 2020 is RMB 608,139,157.29, which is reclassified tecunwent liabilities due within one year
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(36)

Lease liabilities

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Lease payment amount

253,149,792.89

210,631,946.11

Less: Unrecognized financirmpst

28,253,696.42

20,030,847.48

Less: Lease liabiliés due within one year

62,170,871.67

65,489,598.07

Total

162,725,224.80

125,111,500.56

(37) Deferred income
Cause of
Item 2021.12.31 Increase Decrease 2022.12.31 formation
;‘;‘r’]‘i;”mem 140,026,782.82 58,862,128.33  15,141,102.86 183,747,808.29 -
Total 140,026,782.82 58,862,128.33 15,141,102.86. 183,747,808.29
Projects with government grants:
Amount
Grants included in Other Relating to
Item 2021.12.31 increased proleor loss changes 2022.12.31 assets/ revenue
during the
period
Support
funds for - 1 39,199,979.7. Relating to
enterprise 40,053,699.80 853,720.08 2 | assed
development
Heart
pacemaker .
R&D and 34,020,000.00 280,000.00 33,740,000.0 Relating to
. 0 | assed
production
base
Anti-
epidemic
production 30,000,000.00 2181,818.20 27,818,181.8 Relating to
base 0 | asset
construction
project
Compensatio
n for
demolition .
and reward 12,017,128.33 12’017’1283'3 Relating to
assed
for land
acquisition
and storage
Enterprise .
development.  9,629,359.83 207,454.79 9,421,905.04 Relating to
fund assed
Industrializat
ion of 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 Retingto
aspartic assed
insulin
Central
government Relating to
funds for 6,895,999.85: 431,000.04 6,464,999.81 asset 9
infrastructur
e investment
40 million
powder Relating to
injections 5,270,000.00 167,306.25 5,102,693.75: asses
per year
project
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Incentive
funds for
investment
projects in
weak links
of the
industrial
chain

Relating to

4,500,000.00 4,500,000.00
asses

Clinical
research
funding for
paclitaxet 4,000,000.00: 4,000,000.00:
eluting
balloon
catheter

Relating to
assed

Renal artery
ultrasound 3,600,000.00 3,600,000.00 Relating to
ablation asses

system

Lepu
Pharmaceuti
cal
innovative 3,820,474.36 425,044.32 3,395,430.04
drug R&D
service
platform

Relating to
assed

Anticancer
drug
production 3,780,000.00 576,445.42 3,203,554.58
line project
grants

Relating to
asse$

Industrial
Investment
Project
Support
Scheme
Funding

Relating to

3,010,000.00 3,010,000.00: asset

Annual
output of 3
billion
tablets of 3,142,044.14 388,119.65 2,753,924.49
solid
preparation
project

Relating to
assed

Novel fully
degradable
polymer
scaffolds

Relating to

6,686,345.19 4,119,678.52 2,566,666.67:
assed

Esomeprazol
e sodium for
injection
production 2,406,250.40; 387,499.21 2,018,751.19
and
construction
project

Relating to
assed

Land 1,115,777.96 49,533.93 1,066,244.03 Relating to
subsidies assed

Research
and
development
of core
components
of electronic
endoscope
such as 1,800,000.00 1,800,000.00 Relatingto
optical revenue
amplificatio
n imaging
module and
LED
hyperspectra
| lighting
module

Developmen 1,700,000.00 1,700,000.00: Relating to
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t of
implantable
cardiac
resynchroniz
ation
treatment
pacemaker

assed

New
generation of
fully
degradable
polymer
scaffold

1,500,000.00

1,500,000.00

Relating to
asses

Subsidies for
the
inspection
center
project

1,183,333.44

99,999.96

1,083,333.48

Relating to
assed

Modeling
and
monitoring
of data
driven
surgical
actuator
interaction
with
digestive
tract soft
tissue

1,060,000.00

1,060,000.00

Relating to
revenue

National
Intervention
al
Cardiology
Medical
Instruments
&
Engineering
Technology
Research
Center

1,200,000.00

300,000.00

900,000.00

Relating to
assed

Shenzhen
Science and
Technology
Innovation
Commission
grant

900,000.00

900,000.00

Relating to
revenue

SIAT-40
research and
development
of magnetic
resonance
guided
transcranial
ultrasound
brain
stimulation
and neural
regulation
equipment

1,222,222.16

666,666.72

555,555.44

Relating to
assed

Subsidies for
technical
renovation
projects of
enterprises
producing
key
epidemic
prevention
and control
materials

569,500.06

66,999.96

502,500.10

Relating to
assed

Special
funds of
Baoji

582,345.00

129,410.00

452,935.00

Relating to
assed
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Municipal
Government

Design and
research and
development
of micro
diagnostic
instrument
for early
gastrointesti
nal
carcinoma

Relatingto

417,000.00 417,000.00
asses

Spectral
_endoscppic _
inspection 385,000.00 385,000.00 Relating to
technology revenue
and system
development

Subsidies for
technologica
| upgrading
projects of
small and
mediu

Relating to

481,097.71 145,239.52 335,858.19
assed

Study on
system
Integration
and control
strategy of 170,000.00 170,000.00
digestive
endoscopy
surgery
robot

Relating to
revenue

Special

funds for
120 130,000.00 23,833.37 106,166.63
ambulance
equipment

Relating to
asses

Conformanc

e evaluation 259.999.85 259.999.85 Relating to
- Benzene assed

sulfonic acid

Cardiovascul
ar system
regeneration
and repair 199,288.42 199,288.42
key product
development
project

Relating to
revenue

Special
funds for the
industrializat
ion project
of new type 43,333.15 43,333.15 Relating to
of single asses

rivet
occluders
with nickle-
free surface

Special
funds for the
product
industrializat
ion project
of new type
of single
rivet
occluders
with nickle-
free surface
and
traditional
occluders

Relating to

151,666.50 151,666.50
assed
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Special
funds for
project on
development 287,045.00
of nanofilm
singlerivet
occluders

287,045.00

Relating to
asses

Research
and
development
of digestive
ultrasonic
electronic
endoscopy
system and
core
components

2,700,000.00

2,700,000.00

Relating to
asses

Total 140,026,782.82 58,862,128.33

14,287,382.78

853,720.08

183,747,808.
29

(38)  Other non-current liabilities

Item

2022.12.31

2021.12.31

Financial liabilities measured at amortized ¢

679,985,509.35

Total

679,985,509.35

Note:

During the reporting period, the company's subsidiary, Lepu Scientech Medical

Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., was successfully listed. The capital increase by the

specific investment in financial liabilities measured at ainedtt costs according to the

requirements of accounting standards.

(39)  Share capital

Increase

+) or decreasg uring the period

Bon .
Conversi
Item 2021.12.31 Issuance of _us on from Others Subtotal 2022.12.31
new shares | isswa
reserve
nce
Total
?z;nbe 1,804,587,310.0C 88,421,980.00 -12,399,599.000 76,022,381.00 1,880,609,691.0C
shares
Note:

() In September 2022, the Company issued Global Depositary Receipts ("GDR") which

were listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange. The total number of GDR issued was

17,684,396.00, corresponding to 88,421,980.00 A shares of the Company.

(2) Other changes are mainly due to the repurchase of shares by the Company, as detailed
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